g GRgs&

A =
Gresham-Barlow @ School District

O

EEEEEEEEEEEE

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Regular Board Meeting / Business Meeting ¢

AGENDA

October 2, 2014




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
October 2, 2014

Executive Session — 6 p.m.
Negotiations ORS 192.660 (2)(d)
Regular Board Meeting / Business - 7 p.m.
Public Safety and Schools Building
1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. ROLL CALL

Matt O’Connell, Chair Kathy Ruthruff, Director
Carla Piluso, Vice-Chair Kent Zook, Director
Sharon Garner, Director
Dan Chriestenson, Director
Kris Howatt, Director

Jim Schlachter, Superintendent
Mike Schofield, Chief Financial Officer

1. COMMUNICATION FROM THE AUDIENCE

Time has been set aside later on the agenda for Citizens” Requests of the Board. If
anyone in the audience wishes to address the board this evening, there are yellow
“Citizens” Requests of the Board” forms on the table in the back of the room; please
complete a form and give it to our board secretary, Ms. Cook.

IV. APPROVE MEETING AGENDA

V. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed below are matters considered by the board to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
member of the board or persons in the audience requests specific items be removed
from the consent agenda and placed on the regular agenda.

1. Minutes from Regular Business Meeting
Minutes from Regular Work Session
Financial Summary

Personnel Changes

Out-of-State Travel

Policy Updates - Section G, Personnel

Physical Restraint and Seclusion Review, 2013-14

___________________________________________ September 4, 2014
September 18, 2014

NG W

VI. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

None



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt.
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business
October 2, 2014

Page 2

VII. GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT

VII. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

IX. RECESS/RECONVENE (5 Minutes)

X. COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND /OR REPORTS

This portion of the board meeting agenda has been provided for the presentation of
advisory committee minutes. No action or discussion is required by the board;
however, there may be occasional reports or discussion regarding work being
completed by the committee(s).

8. District Advisory Council (DAC) Vadnais

9. Achievement Compact Advisory Committee

XI. BOARD REPORTS

XII. CABINET REPORTS

XII. ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS

e  Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA) (2 Minutes)
e Oregon School Employees Association (OSEA) (2 Minutes)

XIV. CITIZENS' REQUESTS OF BOARD (3 Minutes per Guest / 15 Minutes Total)

XV. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

10. Nutrition Services Annual Report_______ . Schofield
11. Enrollment and Class Size Report________ . .
12. Lewis and Clark Montessori Public Charter School

Annual Evaluation and Report Drilling
13. Technology Refresh Drilling
14. Deep Creek-Damascus K-8 Hiu/Okazaki
15. Common Core State Standards and Smarter Balanced
Assessment Consortium Drilling
XVI. RECESS/RECONVENE (5 Minutes)
XVII. ACTION ITEMS
First Reading
16. Date, Time and Place of 2014-15 Board Meetings - Amendment Schlachter

17. Achievement Compact Advisory Committee
Membership and Recommendations



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt.
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business
October 2, 2014

Page 3

XVII. ACTION ITEMS (Continued)

Second Reading

None

XVII. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Oct. 9: DAC Meeting - 7 p.m.
Kelly Creek Elementary School
Board Representatives: Dan Chriestenson and Kris Howatt

Oct. 16: Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Oct. 30: Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Nov. 6: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

XIX. ADJOURNMENT

Note: The board may, by majority vote, take action on items listed under first reading or information.

JS:1¢:9/28/14:2:26 PM



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business

September 4, 2014

The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education met in regular session on Thursday,
September 4, 2014, in the council chambers of the Public Safety and Schools building, 1331 NW
Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon.

The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. by the chair, Matt O’Connell. Other board
members in attendance were Sharon Garner, Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, Kent Zook, Carla
Piluso, and Dan Chriestenson.

The following central office administrators were present:

Jim Schlachter . Superintendent
James Hiu_______ Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations
Teresa Ketelsen Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
Mike Schofield Chief Financial Officer
Randy Bryant . Executive Director of Human Resources
Linda Okazaki Director of Elementary Education
Tim Drilling ... ... Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability
Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services
Athena Vadnais Director of Communications and Community Engagement

The chair led board members, administrators and all those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

MOTION 13 MEETING AGENDA (7:04 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kent Zook and carried unanimously
to approve the meeting agenda as presented.

MOTION 14 CONSENT AGENDA (7:05 p.m.)

The following items were included on the consent agenda:

1. Minutes from Previous Meetings:
a. Business Meeting July 10, 2014
b. Board Planning Session August 15, 2014
2. Financial Report
3. Personnel Changes
4. Out-of-State Travel

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kent Zook and carried unanimously
to approve the consent agenda as presented.

PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS (7:06 p.m.)

Community Care Day: The board honored area churches responsible for
coordinating “Community Care Day.” During August, more than 500 volunteers
joined together to work on several beautification projects at schools. Their
projects included weeding, raking, spreading bark dust, pruning, and painting.

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 4, 2014



The volunteers donated 2,500 hours of work district-wide. Coordinating
churches recognized by the school board were:

Cornerstone Church

East Hill Church

First Baptist Church

Good Shepherd Community Church
Grace Community Church
Mountainview Church

Gresham Police Department: The board honored the Gresham Police
Department and the school resource officers serving Gresham-Barlow schools.
The district’s two school resource officers and all available Gresham police
officers responded to Reynolds High School last spring when an active shooter
was on the campus. The district’s school resource officers and the entire police
force played a critical role in securing the scene in the shortest amount of time,
thus saving countless lives.

Gresham-Barlow School District Flight Team: The board recognized the school
district’s Flight Team. The Flight Team is made up of employees trained to
provide counseling support in the event of a tragedy. The following Gresham-
Barlow Flight Team members helped students, parents, and staff at Reynolds
High School in the aftermath of the shooting.

Kate Allen_ Licensed Clinical Social Worker

Tricia Bootzin Counselor, Gordon Russell Middle School
Darcie Brand Counselor, Clear Creek MS and Hollydale ES
LindaEby .. .. Counselor, Gordon Russell Middle School

Nicole Galberth __Mental Health Therapist, Structured Skills Program

Karen Harshfield __Counselor, North Gresham Elementary

Whitney Roush____ Counselor, Deep Creek-Damascus K-8 School
Ann Tripp___...... Counselor Clear Creek Middle School
Carl Smith. Special Education Program Director and Flight Team Leader

Vicki Kerbaugh-Mills, Former SCRIP Coordinator: The board and the Gresham-
Barlow Education Foundation recognized the district’s former SCRIP
coordinator, Vicki Kerbaugh-Mills. Vicki served as the SCRIP coordinator for 10
years before retiring last school year. During her tenure, the SCRIP fundraising
program raised $410,000 for schools and the Gresham-Barlow Education
Foundation.

GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT (7:30 p.m.)

Foundation reports are typically presented every-other-month. Accordingly,
there was no Foundation report this month.

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT (7:30 p.m.)

Superintendent Schlachter thanked school board members for attending the all-
staff convocation event. He shared that the theme of the event focused on
reviewing student achievement efforts. The district has continued to increase its
graduation rate over the last several years. An achievement gap persists that
staff members must focus on to ensure every student is prepared for success.

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 4, 2014



The superintendent shared that the school district will revisit its mission and
vision through a strategic planning process. A strategic visioning team will
convene made up of high school students, parents, staff, and community
members. The team will explore past successes, emerging opportunities,
persistent problems, and internal and external factors and trends as they relate to
the district’s vision.

Mr. Schlachter invited school board members to visit schools this fall. School
board members will also have the opportunity to visit schools this coming

spring.
RECESS/RECONVENE (7:35 p.m.)

The meeting was recessed at 7:35 p.m. and reconvened at 7:41 p.m.

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND/OR REPORTS (7:41 p.m.)

District Advisory Council (DAC): Athena Vadnais explained that the first
2014-15 DAC meeting will be held on September 11, 2014, at Springwater High
School. According to tradition, all school board members are invited to attend
this “kick-off” meeting for the new school year.

Mrs. Vadnais also referred to a list of 2014-15 DAC meeting dates and proposed
topics that was included in the agenda packet.

BOARD REPORTS (7:44 p.m.)

Board members summarized various meetings and other activities they
participated in during the month.

CABINET REPORTS (7:55 p.m.)

James Hiu reported on the successful opening of the newly combined
Deep Creek-Damascus K-8 school.

ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS (7:59 p.m.)

Nancy Anderson, a teacher at Dexter McCarty School, reported on behalf of the
Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA).

Megan Sternberg, an educational assistant at Sam Barlow High School, reported
on behalf of Oregon School Education Association (OSEA) Chapter 8 employees.

CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF THE BOARD (xxxxx p.m.)

There were no citizens’ requests of the board.

CENTER FOR ADVANCED LEARNING (8:08 p.m.)

Carol Egan, director of the Center for Advanced Learning, presented the school’s
annual report to the board. (A copy of her slide presentation has been filed with

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 4, 2014



these minutes.) Students Chad Navarrette, Jonathan Flores, and Chris Karn
assisted Ms. Egan with the presentation.

BOARD POLICY REVIEW PROCESS AND COMMITTEE OVERVIEW (8:27 p.m.)

Teresa Ketelsen provided an overview of the process for reviewing school board
policies, which included the following;:

e A committee comprised of two school board members and two members of

the superintendent’s cabinet will review policy revisions recommended by the
Oregon School Boards Association.

e The committee’s recommendations will be presented to the board for
consideration.

¢ A first and second reading will be required before adoption.

e Kris Howatt and Dan Chriestenson will represent the board on the policy
review committee.

COMMUNITY ELIGIBILITY PROVISION (BREAKFAST AND LUNCH
PROGRAM) (8:30 p.m.)

Mike Schofield reported that the district is eligible for the National School Lunch
and School Breakfast Program’s Community Eligibility Provision (CEP). The
program works to improve access to school meals in high poverty areas and
eliminate administrative paperwork of collecting household applications.
Sodexo, the district’s school lunch provider, has advised that the program will
not require additional funding from the district.

Based on current demographics, the following Gresham-Barlow schools are
eligible to provide free breakfast and lunch for all students for the 2014-15 school
year:

East Gresham Elementary
Hall Elementary

Highland Elementary
Hogan Cedars Elementary
Hollydale Elementary
Kelly Creek Elementary
North Gresham Elementary
Powell Valley Elementary
West Gresham Elementary

MOTION 15 MESD BUDGET COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT (REAFFIRMATION)
(8:34 p.m.)

It was moved by Dan Chriestenson, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried
unanimously to reaffirm John Hartsock’s appointment to serve as the board’s
designee on the Multnomah Education Service District’s budget committee for
year three of the term.

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 4, 2014



MOTION 16

MOTION 17

MOTION 18

Submitted by:

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 4, 2014

OUTDOOR SCHOOL GRANT AWARD - GRAY FAMILY FUND (8:36 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried
unanimously to accept the grant funds in the amount of $20,000 from the Gray
Family Fund in support of Outdoor School.

NOMINATIONS FOR OSBA BOARD OF DIRECTORS, POSITIONS 17
AND 19 (8:37 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried
unanimously to declare that the board has no candidates to nominate for
Position 17 or Position 19 on the OSBA Board of Directors.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF BUDGET COMMITTEE VACANCIES (8:41 p.m.)

It was moved by Kathy Ruthruff, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried
unanimously to declare vacancies for budget committee positions 1, 3 and 4.

It was noted that the incumbents are all eligible to reapply.

ANNOUNCEMENTS (8:45 p.m.)

Sept. 11, 2014: DAC Meeting - 7 p.m.
Springwater Trail High School
Board Representatives: All

Sept. 18, 2014: Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Sept. 19,2014:  Pre-Homecoming Game Board Social — Time TBA
Mt. Hood Community College

Sept. 25,2014:  Special Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Sept. 29,2014:  OSBA Fall Regional Dinner Meeting — 5:30 p.m.
Embassy Suites Portland Airport

Oct. 2, 2014: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:47 p.m.

Linda J. Cook
Executive Assistant to the Superintendent and
Board of Directors



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Mike Schofield
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 2 — Financial Summary
EXPLANATION: Open Enrollment: The district’s benefits team has had a busy

month with open enrollment for medical, dental and vision
insurance. The enrollment period closed September 4, 2014.

The attached financial report reflects staffing additions made for
enrollment at the start of the school year.

PRESENTER: Mike Schofield

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: Financial Report as of August 31, 2014
RECOMMENDATION: None

REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

MS:mkh:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

As of August 31, 2014 Financial Report 2014-2015
GENERAL FUND
Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Actual Adopted Variance
Aug QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 Annual YTD Budget To Budget
Revenue
Current Taxes - - 21,500,000 1,125,000 1,050,000 23,675,000 - 24,076,296 (401,296)
Prior Year Taxes 99,863 199,863 210,000 95,000 165,000 669,863 99,863 650,000 19,863
Other Taxes / Interest 525 10,725 245 2,700 350 14,020 525 10,000 4,020
Total Taxes 100,388 210,588 21,710,245 1,222,700 1,215,350 24,358,883 100,388 24,736,296 (377,413)
Common School Fund - - - 584,401 584,401 1,168,802 - 1,045,947 122,855
County School Fund - - - - 2,000 2,000 - 25,000 (23,000)
Federal Forest Fees - - - - 13,289 13,289 - 12,000 1,289
State School Fund (SSF) 6,279,499 25,201,316 19,065,840 19,065,842 12,710,562 76,043,560 18,846,036 76,608,116 (564,556)
Other SSF Revenue 6,279,499 25,201,316 19,065,840 19,650,243 13,310,252 77,227,651 18,846,036 77,691,063 (463,412)
Total Formula Revenue 6,379,887 25,411,904 40,776,085 20,872,943 14,525,602 101,586,534 18,946,424 102,427,359 (840,825)
High Cost Disability - - - - 340,000 340,000 - 340,000 0
Prior Year SSF - - - - 600,000 600,000 - - 600,000
State Restricted - = = = = = - = 0
Other State Revenue - - - - 940,000 940,000 - 340,000 600,000
Tuition / Transportation 463 1,163 18,500 13,000 47,500 80,163 463 85,000 (4,837)
Earning on Investment 8,150 23,068 34,000 43,000 33,000 133,068 14,568 135,000 (1,932)
Student Fees / Admissions 2,313 17,340 49,000 137,700 182,000 386,040 13,840 425,000 (38,960)
Rentals 1,281 24,979 47,000 62,000 56,000 189,979 9,979 235,000 (45,021)
Donations 640 51,283 34,000 172,000 80,000 337,283 20,283 260,000 77,283
Services to other Funds - 25,000 25,000 - 270,000 320,000 - 250,000 70,000
Misc. 13,973 33,943 185,000 40,000 115,000 373,943 13,943 400,000 (26,057)
MESD Transfer - - 2,156,391 - - 2,156,391 - 2,156,391 0
Other County Funds - - - - - - - - 0
Drivers' Education - = = = = = - = 0
Other Federal Revenue - = = = = = - = 0
Child Care Development - - 10,000 15,000 10,000 35,000 - 33,000 2,000
Sale of Fixed Assets - - - - 5,000 5,000 - 5,000 0
Bond Proceeds - - - - - - - - 0
TRANFERS - - - - = = - - 0
Total Other Revenue 26,820 176,776 2,558,891 482,700 798,500 4,016,867 73,076 3,984,391 32,476
TOTAL REVENUE $6,406,707 $25,588,680 $43,334,976 $21,355,643 $16,264,102 $106,543,401 $19,019,500 $106,751,750 (208,349)  17.8%
6,250,000 | BFB Budget
Expenditures
Licensed Salaries 24,824 2,824,649 8,325,000 8,325,000 14,450,000 33,924,649 49,649 34,042,961 118,312
Support Staff Salaries 285,427 1,384,857 2,400,000 2,400,000 4,100,000 10,284,857 584,857 10,356,057 71,200
Admin Salaries 425,000 1,298,370 1,293,774 1,293,774 1,293,774 5,179,692 867,112 5,065,496 (114,196)
Confidential Salaries 37,723 111,837 111,171 111,171 111,171 445,350 74,780 444,687 (663)
Subs'/ Temp Salaries 88,062 281,182 905,000 775,000 1,285,000 3,246,182 111,182 3,518,231 272,049
Total Salaries 861,036 5,900,895 13,034,945 12,904,945 21,239,945 53,080,730 1,687,580 53,427,432 346,702
PERS 181,740 1,355,294 3,150,000 3,150,000 4,950,000 12,605,294 355,294 13,087,829 482,535
FICA 65,938 454,302 1,005,000 1,005,000 1,592,000 4,056,302 129,302 4,066,182 9,880
Insurance 164,638 1,338,420 3,030,000 3,030,000 4,770,000 12,168,420 328,420 12,384,352 215,932
Other Benefits 85,206 277,651 335,000 370,000 465,000 1,447,651 167,651 1,594,730 147,079
Total Benefits 497,522 3,425,667 7,520,000 7,555,000 11,777,000 30,277,667 980,667 31,133,093 855,426
Purchased Services 753,397 1,808,736 3,600,000 3,900,000 4,500,000 13,808,736 1,108,736 14,265,691 456,955
Charter School Payments 584,527 2,153,699 1,410,000 1,505,000 1,030,000 6,098,699 1,628,699 5,410,766 (687,933)
Supplies & Materials 203,511 448,214 510,000 350,000 535,000 1,843,214 248,214 2,204,746 361,532
Capital Outlay 85,727 135,727 27,998 - - 163,725 85,727 115,000 (48,725)
Other Objects 28,007 909,590 35,000 9,000 96,000 1,049,590 893,590 798,908 (250,682)
Transfers - 810,000 - - - 810,000 810,000 810,000 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $3,013,727 $15,592,528 $26,137,943 $26,223,945 $39,177,945 $107,132,361 $7,443,213 $108,165,636 $1,971,890 6.9%)
Reserves - Contingency/Unappropriated Ending Balance 4,836,114
Beginning Cash Balance $6,080,252 $0
($588,960)]  $113,001,750 Budget
$5,491,292
I 5.1% (Percentage of Projected Expenditures)
Expenditure Summary
Salaries 1,687,580 22.7%
Benefits 980,667 13.2%
Purchased Serv 2,737,435 36.8%
Supplies 248,214 3.3%
Capital Outlay 85,727 1.2%
Other Objects 893,590 12.0%
Transfers 810,000 10.9%
$ 7,443,213 100.0%

07-10-14

Board - Report 2014-15 - AUGUST




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Randy Bryant
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 3 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires
EXPLANATION: The following resignations have been accepted, or terminations

processed:
Licensed Resignations/Terminations

Emily Pratt, .83 FTE Art Teacher, Gresham High School. Notice of
resignation received August 25, 2014, effective with her last day of
work on September 5, 2014. Held by the district for contractual
obligations for 8 days.

Classified Resignations/Terminations
Laura Cortes, Educational Assistant-ELL, East Gresham

Elementary School. Notice of resignation received September 10,
2014, effective with her last day of work on September 19, 2014.

Karin Hampton, Educational Assistant, Deep Creek-Damascus
K-8. Notice of resignation received September 8, 2014, effective
with her last day of work on September 12, 2014.

Stephanie Wilson, Educational Assistant and Educational
Assistant-Title 1, North Gresham Elementary School. Notice of
resignation received September 5, 2014, effective with her last day
of work on September 19, 2014.

In compliance with district policy, the following personnel are
being recommended for employment:

Licensed New Hires

Shelley Dietz, 3« Grade Teacher, East Orient Elementary School.
Temporary Contract. New FTE. Late hire due to class sizes.

Kerry Furnier, 1+ Grade Teacher, Highland Elementary School.
Temporary Contract. Replacing Amy Hudson who was
temporarily reassigned.



Board of Directors

Re: No. 3 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires

October 2, 2014
Page 2

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

RHB:pd:lc

Kelsey Lulay, .50 FTE, Special Education Intern, Damascus Middle
School. Replacing Joanna Goltz who was reassigned.

Victoria Swartz, 4+ Grade Teacher, Powell Valley Elementary
School. Temporary Contract. New FTE. Late hire due to class
sizes.

Classified New Hires

Maegan Adams, Educational Assistant 5 — Special Education
Functional Skills, Sam Barlow High School. Replacing
Jeff Koldwyn who resigned.

Anna Fenwick, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Education,
East Orient Elementary School. Replacing Kelli Blubaugh who
was reassigned.

Ann Gallant, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Education, Powell
Valley Elementary School. Replacing Danielle Ferguson who
resigned.

Jessica Gordon, Educational Assistant 2 - Kindergarten,
East Gresham Elementary School. Replacing Eva Zekry who was
reassigned.

Brenda Graham, Educational Assistant 2, Highland Elementary
School. New position.

Surin Ho, Educational Assistant 3 — Title I, West Gresham
Elementary School. Replacing Susan Davais who is on a leave of
absence.

Amanda Morgan, Educational Assistant 3 — Title I, West Gresham
Elementary School. Replacing Surin Ho who was temporary for
2013-14 and has been reassigned.

Diane Spencer, Educational Assistant 3 — Title I, Kelly Creek
Elementary School. Replacing Lisa Ishman (Title I) who was
reassigned.

Randy Bryant

None
None

Consent agenda approval



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 4 - Out-of-State Travel
EXPLANATION: The administration seeks approval for the following out-of-state
travel plans:
School Destination Date(s) Group Funds
Choir Music
Clear Festival Nov. 14 gi(;trict
Creek MS Clark College 2014 Choir classes Funds
Foundation Required
Vancouver, WA equire

Purpose: Singing for a panel of judges meets National Standard #1
(singing alone and with others.)

Choir Music N
Dexter Festival Nov. 14 Di(;trict
McCarty | Clark College 2014 Choir classes Funds
MS Foundation R rod

Vancouver, WA equire

Purpose: Choir workshop, musical experience, performing and

listening.
. No
B[ixct;;t I‘g\éggr‘a/:l[?/‘\lfzs June 11, | 8" Grade District
y v 2015 Band & Choir | Funds
MS WA .
Required

Purpose: To celebrate the three years of hard work and dedication
these students have put into the McCarty music program.




Board of Directors
Re: No. 4 - Out-of-State Travel

October 2, 2014
Page 2
School Destination Date(s) Group Funds
Speech &
Debate No
Sam Tournament Oct. 30- SBHS Speech | District
Barlow Whitman Nov 2,
& Debate Funds
HS College 2014 Required
Walla Walla, q
WA
Purpose: Tournament competition relative to common core state
standards.
Speech &
S Debate No
ant Tournament January SBHS Speech | District
Barlow . 8-11,
Arizona State & Debate Funds
HS ; . 2015 :
University Required
Phoenix, AZ
Purpose: Tournament competition relative to common core state
standards.
S National Speech No
lerrllow & Debate June 13- | SBHS Speech | District
HS Tournament 20,2015 | & Debate Funds
Dallas, Texas Required
Purpose: Tournament competition relative to common core state
standards.
PRESENTER: James Hiu
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: None
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the out-of-state
travel requests listed above.
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

JH:pkh:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Teresa Ketelsen
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 5 - Policy Updates, Section G, Personnel
EXPLANATION: Changes to the policies listed below were presented for first

reading at the September 25, 2014, board work sessions. The
changes were recommended by the Oregon School Boards
Association.

These policies, as listed in the supplementary materials, are now
being submitted for approval through the consent agenda.

PRESENTER: Teresa Ketelsen

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: Policies from Section G — Personnel

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends board approval of the policies

changes as presented.
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

JJ:mkh:lc



GAA

GAB

GB

GBA

GBC

GBCA

GBCBA

GBD

GBDA

GBE
GBEB/GBEBA
GBEC

GBEDA

GBG
GBH/JECAC
GBI

GBJ
GBK/JFCG/KGC
GBL

GBLA

GBM

GBN/JBA
GBNA
GBNAA/JFCFA
GBPA

GCA

GCAB
GCBC/GDBC
GCBDA/GDBDA
GCBDB/GDBDB
GCBDC/GDBDC
GCDA/GDDA
GCEC
GCL/GDL
GCN/GDN
GCPB/GDPB
GCPC/GDPC
GCQA/GDQA
GCQB

GCQBA

GDA

GDC

GDIA

TK: 10/2/14

Board Policies from
Section G - Personnel
Presented for Second Reading and Consent Agenda

October 2, 2014

Personnel: Definitions

Job Descriptions

General Personnel Policies *
Equal Employment Opportunity
Staff Ethics

Staff Religious Dress
Alcohol/Controlled Substance Use
Board-Staff Communications
Provisions for Nursing Mothers
Staff Health and Safety*
Communicable Disease
Drug-Free Workplace *

Drug and Alcohol Testing - Transportation Personnel*
Staff Participation in Political Activities
Custodial Parent**

Gifts and Solicitations.

Weapons in Schools - Staff*
Tobacco-Free Environment
Personnel Records *

Disclosure of Information

Staff Complaints *

Sexual Harassment

Hazing/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying/Cyberbullying/ Menacing — Staff

Cyberbullying
Children on District Premises
License Requirements

Personal Communication Electronic Devices and Social Media - Staff

Associated Payroll Costs *

Family Medical Leave *

Early Return to Work

Domestic Violence/Harassment/Sexual Assault/Stalking Leave
Criminal Records Checks/Fingerprinting

Job Sharing

Staff Development and Professional Growth*
Evaluation of Staff

Resignation of Staff *

Retirement of Staff

Outside Employment

Research

Copyrights and Patents

Educational Assistants

Recruitment of Classified Staff *

Notice of Employment *



Code: GAA
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Personnel: Definitions

“Licensed employees” are those holding a position that requires a license issued by the state Teacher
Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC).

1. “Ateacher” is an employee who holds a teacher’s license or is registered to teach by TSPC.

2. “A contract teacher” means any teacher who has been regularly employed by a school district for a
probationary period of not more than three successive school years and who has been
re=etectedtained for the next succeeding school year.

3. “A probationary teacher” is one who is not a contract teacher and who works at least 135 consecutive
days in any school year as a teacher in the district. At least 30 consecutive days of employment in
the district in a successive year shall be sufficient to keep the service intact, and the teacher shall not
lose credit for previous probationary years served.

4. “A temporary teacher” is any teacher employed to fill a position designated as temporary or
experimental or to fill a vacancy that occurs after the opening of school because of unanticipated
enrollment or the death, disability, retirement, resignation, contract non=extension or dismissal of a
contract or probationary teacher.

5. “Asubstitute teacher” is any teacher employed to take the place of a probationary or contract teacher
who is temporarily absent. A substitute teacher is employed on a day-to-day basis, without contract,
and does the work of the regularly assigned teacher during the latter’s absence from duty.

Substitutes will not be eligible for fringe benefits and will be paid at a rate established annually by
the Board in accordance with the provisions of Oregon law.

6.  “Anintern teacher” is a regularly enrolled student of a college or university who teaches under the
supervision of the staff of such institution and of the district in order to acquire practical experience
in teaching. The intern teacher may receive both academic credit from such institution and financial
compensation from the district.

7. “An administrator” is an employee who has been granted administrative authority and who spends
more than one-half time in the organization, direction, supervision, control or evaluation of district
employees or programs.

8. “A specialist” is an employee who has a teaching license or a letter of authorization from the Oregon
Department of Education and who is employed half-time or more.

Personnel: Definitions - GAA
1-2



“Classified personnel” are those employees in positions for which no teaching or administrative licenses
are required by law.

1.  “Regular classified employees” are those employed in positions established by the Board requiring
15 or more hours per week for at least a full school year.

2. “Part-time regular classified employees” are those employed in positions established by the Board
requiring less than 15 hours per week for at least a full school year.

3. “Temporary/Substitute classified employees” are those employed on an as-needed basis. The Board
shall determine if these employees are eligible for benefits.

“Supervisory employees” are those individuals having authority to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall,
promote, discharge, assign, reward or discipline other employees, or responsibly to direct them, or to adjust
their grievances or effectively to recommend such action if the exercise of such authority is not of a merely
routine or clerical nature but requires the use of independent judgment. No nurse, charge nurse or similar
nursing position shall be deemed to be supervisory unless such position has been traditionally classified as
supervisory.

“Confidential employees” are designated in accordance with Oregon law. Such employees will be
excluded from any bargaining unit. Salaries and benefits for confidential employees will be established by
the Board.

“Administrative employee” means an employee of the district who possesses authority to formulate and
carry out administrative and/or program decisions, or who represents administration’s interest by taking or
effectively recommending discretionary actions that control or implement district policy, and who has
discretion in the performance of these administrative and/or program responsibilities beyond the routine
discharge of duties. An “administrative employee” need not act in a supervisory capacity in relation to
other employees.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.650(6), (23) ORS 342.610 OAR 584-020-0005
ORS 332.505 ORS 342.815

ORS 332.554(3) ORS 342.835

ORS 342.120 ORS 342.840

ORS 342.125 ORS 342.845

ORS 342.420

Job York v. Portland Sch. Dist., No. FDA 83-7 (August 1983).
10/11/01 |NC Corrected 4/10/14

Personnel: Definitions - GAA
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html

Code: GAB

Adopted: 7/11/94
GreSham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/01; 5/02/02; 12/02/10
Orig. Code(s): GAB

Job Descriptions

Employee position descriptions shall be maintained for each position and must at least include the
following two features:

1.

Describe the relationships of the position to the organizational structure of the district; to whom is
the person responsible and who does he/she supervise; and an outline of minimum qualifications and
terms of employment;

Statement of essential job functions and responsibilities followed by a description of the more
specific tasks to be performed.

Job descriptions serve:

1.

4.

5.

To describe all essential functions that the individual who holds the position must be able to perform
unaided or with the assistance of a reasonable accommodation;

To describe attendance standards;
To help applicants determine the qualifications needed to fill a position;
To help district administrators determine which candidates to recommend for appointment; and

To assist administrators in the evaluation of the employee’s performance of position responsibilities.

“Essential functions” as used in this policy means the fundamental job duties of the employment position.
A job function may be considered essential for any of several reasons, including but not limited to the

following:

1. The function may be essential because the reason the position exists is to perform the function;

2. The function may be essential because of the limited number of employees available among whom
the performance of the job function can be distributed; and/or

3. The function may be highly specialized so that the individual is hired for his/her expertise or ability

to perform the particular function.

Job descriptions will be developed under the supervision of the superintendent for each position in the
district. Each job description shall be dated. As job descriptions are reviewed and/or revised new dates
will be affixed.

Job Descriptions - GAB
1-2



Job descriptions will be coded and retained electronically. The descriptions will be available for
inspection by any district employee or patron. Each employee shall receive a copy of his/her job
description.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 342.850(2)(b)(A)
OAR 581-022-1720

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).
The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212.

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008.

Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

HR9/23/10| RS Corrected 4/10/14

Job Descriptions - GAB
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GB
Adopted: 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/015: 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GB

General Personnel Policies *

The quality of the professional and support staff is of primary importance in achieving the district’s
educational goals. In filling any licensed or classified position, the district will seek out and appoint the
best-qualified person available for the position.

The employment of candidates to fill positions will be approved by the Board upon the superintendent’s
recommendation. The superintendent will employ all substitutes and part-time personnel as needed.

Notice of all regular job openings will be available to current staff members according to contract
provisions. Staff are encouraged to apply for open positions. The district will give consideration to all
staff applications. Vacant positions may also be advertised through professional and institutional
placement agencies, appropriate employment agencies and general and specialized media.

Applications or inquiries concerning job openings will be directed to the personnel office on standard
district application forms. The selection process will be coordinated and supervised by the director of
personnel, with the involvement of staff and community, as appropriate.

Each candidate selected for a position with the district must possess or demonstrate eligibility for any
license or permit required to fill the position. In addition, the individual must be insurable by the district’s
insurance carrier for any position requiring liability insurance coverage or bonding.

In accordance with Oregon law, the district may require any candidate, as a condition of employment, to
hold a current, recognized first-aid card. A current employee required to hold a card will obtain it within
90 days from the date the district gives notification.

Personnel selected for employment will be notified in writing. This notification will specify the
assignment, the job classification, the salary or hourly rate, the length of the work week and the length of
the assignment. Unsuccessful applicants who were interviewed will be notified.

Initial assignments will be made by the superintendent or designee.

The superintendent will establish regulations governing the recruitment, selection and employment of
personnel in accordance with this policy.

END OF POLICY

General Personnel Policies * - GB
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 342.664

ORS 408.225

ORS 408.230

ORS 408.235

ORS 653.305 - 653.326
ORS 659A.309

OAR 581-022-0705(4)
OAR 839-006-0435
OAR 839-006-0440
OAR 839-006-0445
OAR 839-006-0450
OAR 839-006-0455
OAR 839-006-0460
OAR 839-006-0465

3/7/02|NC

General Personnel Policies * - GB
2-2


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/408.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/408.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/408.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/653.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659A.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html

Code: GBA
Adopted: 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/01; 5/02/02; 12/02/04;
2/07/08; 12/02/10
Orig. Code(s): GBA

Equal Employment Opportunity

Equal employment opportunity and treatment shall be practiced by the district regardless of race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation', national origin, marital status, age, veterans’ status, genetic information;
and disability if the employee, with or without reasonable accommodation, is able to perform the essential
functions of the position.

The superintendent will appoint an employee to serve as the officer in charge of compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008
(ADA), and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IV, Title VII, Title IX and other civil
rights or discrimination issues. The superintendent will also designate a Title IX coordinator to comply
with the requirements of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. The Title IX coordinator will
investigate complaints communicated to the district alleging noncompliance with Title IX. The name,
address and telephone number of the Title IX coordinator will be provided to all students and employees.

The superintendent will develop other specific recruiting, interviewing and evaluation procedures as are
necessary to implement this policy.

END OF POLICY

!“Sexual orientation” means an individual’s actual or perceived heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality or gender identity,
regardless of whether the individual’s gender identity, appearance, expression or behavior differs from that traditionally
associated within the individual’s sex at birth.

Equal Employment Opportunity - GBA
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 174.100 ORS 659A.009 OAR 581-021-0045
ORS 192.630 ORS 659A.029 OAR 581-022-1720
ORS 243.672 ORS 659A.030 OAR 839-003-0000
ORS 326.051 ORS 659A.109 OAR 839-006-0435
ORS 332.505 ORS 659A.142 OAR 839-006-0440
ORS 342.934 ORS 659A.145 OAR 839-006-0445
ORS 408.225 ORS 659A.233 OAR 839-006-0450
ORS 408.230 ORS 659A.236 OAR 839-006-0455
ORS 408.235 ORS 659A.309 OAR 839-006-0460
ORS 659.850 ORS 659A.321 OAR 839-006-0465
ORS 659.870 ORS 659A.409

ORS 659A.003 ORS 659A.805

ORS 659A.006

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2006).

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e (20006).

Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634 (2006); 29 C.F.R Part 1626 (2000).

Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107 (20006).

Equal Pay Act of 1963, 29 U.S.C. § 206(d) (2006).

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 503, 791, 793-794 (2006).

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2006); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2006).

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).
Wygant v. Jackson Bd. of Educ., 476 U.S. 267 (1989).

Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008.

The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212.

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008.

R7/25/11|RS

Equal Employment Opportunity - GBA
2-2


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/174.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/192.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/326.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/408.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/408.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/408.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_003.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html

Code: GBC
Adopted: 5/01/97
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/01: 5/02/025: 10/07/10
Orig. Code(s): GBC/GBCA

Staff Ethics

1. Conflict of Interest

No district employee will use his/her district position to obtain personal financial benefit or avoidance of
financial detriment or financial gain or avoidance of financial detriment for relatives, household members
or for any business with which the employee, household member or relative is associated.

This prohibition does not apply to any part of an official compensation package, honorarium allowed by
ORS 244.042, reimbursement of expenses; or unsolicited awards of professional achievement. Further,
this prohibition does not apply to gifts from one without a legislative or administrative interest. Nor does
it apply if the gift is under the $50 gift limit for one who has a legislative or administrative interest in any
matter subject to the decision or vote of the district employee.

District employees will not engage in, or have a financial interest in, any activity that raises a reasonable
question of conflict of interest with their duties and responsibilities as staff members. This means that:

1.  Employees will not use their position to obtain financial gain or avoidance of financial detriment
from students, parents or staff;

2. Any device, publication or any other item developed during the employee’s paid time shall be district
property;

3. Employees will not further personal gain through the use of confidential information gained in the
course of or by reason of position or activities in any way;

4.  No district employee may serve as a Board or budget committee member in the district;

5. An employee will not perform any duties related to an outside job during his/her regular working
hours or during the additional time that he/she needs to fulfill the position’s responsibilities; nor will
an employee use any district facilities, equipment or materials in performing outside work;

6.  If an employee authorizes a public contract, the employee may not have a direct beneficial financial
interest in that public contract for two years after the date the contract was authorized.

If an employee has a potential or actual conflict of interest, the employee must notify his/her supervisor in
writing of the nature of the conflict and request that the supervisor dispose of the matter giving rise to the
conflict.

Staff Ethics - GBC
1-6



In order to avoid both potential and actual conflicts of interests, district employees must abide by the
following rules when an employee’s relative or member of the household is seeking and/or holds a
position with the district:

1. A district employee may not appoint, employ, promote, discharge, fire, or demote or advocate for
such an employment decision for a relative or a member of the household, unless he/she complies
with the conflict of interest requirements of ORS Chapter 244. This rule does not apply to
employment decisions regarding unpaid volunteer position, unless it is a Board-related position.

2. A district employee may not participate as a public official in any interview, discussion, or debate
regarding the appointment, employment, promotion, discharge, firing, or demotion of a relative or a
member of the household. An employee may still serve as a reference, provide a recommendation,
or perform other acts that are part of the normal job functions of the employee.

3. More than one member of an employee’s family may be hired as a regular district employee. In
accordance with Oregon law, however, the district may refuse to hire individuals, or may transfer
current employees, in situations where an appointment would place one family member in a position
of exercising supervisory, appointment or grievance adjustment authority over another member of
the same family.

In the conflict of interest context, a “member of the household” means any person who resides with the
employee and “relative” means:

1.  The employee’s spouse', parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-
law;

rd-The spouse of the employee’s parent, step-

parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-law.

II. Gifts
District employees must comply with the following rules involving gifts:

Employees are public officials and therefore will not solicit or accept a gift or gifts with an aggregate value
in excess of $50 from any single source in a calendar year that has a legislative or administrative interest in
any matter subject to the decision or vote of the district employee. All gift related provisions apply to the
employee, their relatives; and members of their household. The $50 gift limit applies separately to the
employee; and to the employee’s relatives or members of household, meaning that the employee and each
member of their household and relative can accept up to $50 each from the same source/gift giver.

1. “Gift” means something of economic value given to an employee without valuable consideration of
equivalent value, which is not extended to others who are not public officials on the same terms and
conditions.

'"The term spouse includes domestic partners.

Staff Ethics - GBC
2-6



2.

a.  The employee’s spouse', parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law;

b.  The spouse of the employee’s parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law.

3. “Member of the household” means any person who resides with the employee.
Determining the Source of Gifts

Employees should not accept gifts in any amount without obtaining information from the gift giver as to
who is the source of the gift. It is the employee’s personal responsibility to ensure that no single source
provides gifts exceeding an aggregate value of $50 in a calendar year, if the source has a legislative or
administrative interest in any matter subject to the decision or vote of the district employee. If the giver
does not have a legislative/administrative interest, the ethics rules on gifts do not apply and the employee
need not keep track of it, although they are advised to do so anyway in case of a later dispute.

Determining Legislative and Administrative Interest

A legislative or administrative interest means an economic interest distinct from that of the general public,
in any action subject to the official decision of an employee.

A decision means an act that commits the district to a particular course of action within the employee’s
scope of authority and that is connected to the source of the gift’s economic interest. A decision is not a
recommendation or work performed in an advisory capacity. If a supervisor delegates the decision to a
subordinate but retains responsibility as the final decision maker, both the subordinate and supervisor’s
actions would be considered a “decision.”

Determining the Value of Gifts

The fair market value of the merchandise, goods; or services received will be used to determine benefit or
value.

“Fair market value” is the dollar amount goods or services would bring if offered for sale by a person who
desired, but was not obligated, to sell and purchased by one who is willing, but not obligated, to buy. Any
portion of the price that was donated to charity, however, does not count toward the fair market value of
the gift if the employee does not claim the charitable contribution on personal tax returns. Below are
acceptable ways to calculate the fair market value of a gift:

1. In calculating the per person cost at receptions or meals the payor of the employee’s admission or
meal will include all costs other than any amount donated to a charity.

Staff Ethics - GBC
3-6



For example, a person with a legislative or administrative interest buys a table for a charitable dinner
at $100 per person. If the cost of the meal was $25 and the amount donated to charity was $75, the
benefit conferred on the employee is $25. This example requires that the employee does not claim
the charitable contribution on personal tax returns.

For receptions and meals with multiple attendees, but with no price established to attend, the source
of the employee’s meal or reception will use reasonable methods to determine the per person value
or benefit conferred. The following examples are deemed reasonable methods of calculating value
or benefit conferred:

a.  The source divides the amount spent on food, beverage and other costs (other than charitable
contributions) by the number of persons whom the payor reasonably expects to attend the
reception or dinner;

b.  The source divides the amount spent on food, beverage and other costs (other than charitable
contributions) by the number of persons who actually attend the reception or dinner; or

c.  The source calculates the actual amount spent on the employee.

Upon request by the employee, the source will give notice of the value of the merchandise, goods; or
services received.

Attendance at receptions where the food or beverage is provided as an incidental part of the reception
is permitted without regard to the fair market value of the food and beverage provided.

Value of Unsolicited Tokens or Awards: Resale value

Employees may accept unsolicited tokens or awards that are engraved or are otherwise personalized items.
Such items are deemed to have a resale value under $25 (even if the personalized item cost the source
more than $50), unless, the personalized item is made from gold or some other valuable material that
would have value over $25 as a raw material.

Entertainment

Employees may not solicit or accept any gifts of entertainment over $50 in value from any single source in
a calendar year that has a legislative or administrative interest in any matter subject to the decision of the
employee unless:

1.

The entertainment is incidental to the main purpose of another event (i.e., a band playing at a
reception). Entertainment that involves personal participation is not incidental to another event (such
as a golf tournament at a conference); or

The employee is acting in their official capacity for a ceremonial purpose.

Entertainment is ceremonial when an employee appears at an entertainment event for a “ceremonial
purpose” at the invitation of the source of the entertainment who requests the presence of the
employee at a special occasion associated with the entertainment. Examples of an appearance by an
employee at an entertainment event for a ceremonial purpose include: throwing the first pitch at a
baseball game, appearing in a parade and ribbon cutting for an opening ceremony.

Staff Ethics - GBC
4-6



Exceptions

The following are exceptions to the ethics rules on gifts that apply to employees.

1.

2.

Gifts from “relatives” and “members of the household” are permitted in an unlimited amount; they
are not considered gifts under the ethics rules.

Informational or program material, publications; or subscriptions related to the recipient’s
performance of official duties.

Food, lodging; and travel generally count toward the $50 aggregate amount per year from a single
source with a legislative/administrative interest, with the following exceptions:

a.  Organized Planned Events. Employees are permitted to accept payment for travel conducted in
the employee’s official capacity, for certain limited purposes:

(1) Reasonable expenses (i.e., food, lodging, travel, fees) for attendance at a convention,
fact-finding mission or trip, or other meeting do not count toward the $50 aggregate
amount IF:

(a) The employee is scheduled to deliver a speech, make a presentation, participate on
a panel, or represent the district; AND

(1)  The giver is a unit of a:

1)  Federal, state, or local government;
2)  An Oregon or federally recognized Native American Tribe; OR
3)  Non=profit corporation.

(b) The employee is representing the district:

(i)  On an officially sanctioned trade-promotion or fact-finding mission; OR
(i) Officially designated negotiations or economic development activities where
receipt of the expenses is approved in advance by the superintendent.

(2) The purpose of this exception is to allow employees to attend organized, planned events
and engage with the members of organizations by speaking or answering questions,
participating in panel discussions or otherwise formally discussing matters in their
official capacity. This exception to the gift definition does not authorize private meals
where the participants engage in discussion.

Food or beverage, consumed at a reception, meal; or meeting IF held by an organization and IF the
employee is representing the district.

“Reception” means a social gathering. Receptions are often held for the purpose of extending a
ceremonial or formal welcome and may include private or public meetings during which guests are
honored or welcomed. Food and beverages are often provided, but not as a plated, sit-down meal.

Food or beverage consumed by employee acting in an official capacity in the course of financial
transactions between the public body and another entity described in ORS 244.020(6)(b)(I)(1).

Staff Ethics - GBC
5-6



6.  Waiver or discount of registration expenses or materials provided to employee at a continuing
education event that the employee may attend to satisfy a professional licensing requirement.

7. A gift received by the employee as part of the usual or customary practice of the employee’s private
business, employment or position as a volunteer that bears no relationship to the employee’s district
employment.

8. Reasonable expenses paid to employee for accompanying students on an educational trip.
Honoraria

An employee may not solicit or receive, whether directly or indirectly, honoraria for the employee or any
member of the household or relative of the employee if the honoraria are solicited or received in

connection with the official duties of the employee.

The honoraria rules do not prohibit the solicitation or receipt of an honorarium or a certificate, plaque,
commemorative token or other item with a value of $50 or less; or the solicitation or receipt of an
honorarium for services performed in relation to the private profession, occupation, avocation or expertise
of the employee.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 244.010 to-244.400 OAR 199-005-0003 to-199-020-0020
ORS5266-665 OAR 584-020-0040

ORS2943H

ORS5294336

ORS 332.016

ORS 659A.309

OR. ETHICS COMM’N, OR. GOV’T ETHICS LAW, A GUIDE FOR PUBLIC OFFICIALS{2608.

HR5/27/10 |RC Corrected 6/12/14

Staff Ethics - GBC
6-6


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/244.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/260.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_199/199_005.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Staff Religious Dress

Code: GBCA
Adopted: 4/05/12

All staff when on duty shall be allowed to wear religious attire, in accordance with the employee’s
sincerely-held religious beliefs, while maintaining religious neutrality and refraining from endorsing

religion in the educational environment.

The district retains the authority to specify religious dress guidelines for staff that will prevent such matters

from having an adverse impact on the educational process.

The superintendent may develop administrative regulations to implement this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.650(7)
ORS 327.109
ORS 332.107
ORS 339.351
ORS 659.850
ORS 659A.030

OR. CONST., art. I, § 5.

U.S. CONST. amend. 1.

HRS5/26/11PH

Staff Religious Dress - GBCA
1-1


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/327.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html

Code: GBCBA
Adopted: 7/11/94
GreSham-Barlow SD 10 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/015; 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): GBCBA

Alcohol/Controlled Substance Use

The following conduct is strictly prohibited and will subject an employee to immediate discipline, up to
and including termination:

1. The buying, selling, transportation, possession, provision or use of intoxicants, including alcohol or
any controlled substances as defined by law while on district property, during work hours (including
meal periods) and/or while assigned to extra duty or special projects, including those held after or in
addition to regular school hours and while driving between work sites during the work day in either a
district-supplied vehicle or a vehicle supplied by the employee;

2. Reporting for work either impaired or under the influence of alcohol, intoxicants or any controlled
substance, including prescription drugs. An individual is considered to be “under the influence of
alcohol, intoxicants and/or a controlled substance, including prescription drugs,” when, in the
district’s determination, the controlled substance is at a level that it may impair the individual’s
ability to safely and/or efficiently perform assigned work OR prevent the employee from presenting a
positive role model to students.

If the district has reasonable grounds to believe that an individual is under the influence of intoxicants or
any controlled substance, the district may require the individual immediately submit to a field impairment
test, blood alcohol content test given by a third party, a breathalyzer test or other tests deemed necessary by
the district. Refusal to immediately submit to such tests may result in disciplinary action, up to and
including dismissal. “Reasonable grounds” may include, but are not limited to, such things as slurred
speech, dilated pupils, peculiar odors and unsteady balance.

The district reserves the right, with prior notice and reasonable suspicion, to conduct searches of district
property, vehicles or equipment at any time. This policy serves as prior notice.

The district defines “alcohol,” “controlled substance” and “work site” as follows:

1. “Alcohol” means any alcoholic beverage containing more than one-half of one percent alcohol by
volume, and every liquid or solid, patented or not, containing alcohol and capable of being consumed
by a human being;

2. “Controlled substance” means a drug or its immediate precursor as described in Oregon Revised
Statutes;

3. “Work site” means any building, structure, vehicle or property (including parking lots), or part
thereof, owned or possessed by the district or any other location at which an employee is to perform
work for the district. “Any other location” includes the place of a district-sponsored or district-
approved activity and the employee’s own vehicle when used to transport students or fellow
employees to and from an activity sponsored or approved by the district and when used to transport
fellow employees to and from different work sites following initial arrival at work.

Alcohol/Controlled Substance Use - GBCBA
1-2



The administration will develop appropriate regulations, procedures, consent forms and such notifications
as are needed for an orderly implementation of this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS Chapter 475 OAR 581-053-0015 OAR 584-020-0040

ORS 657.176 OAR 581-053-0545(4)(c)(R)-(T) OAR 839-006-0200 to -0265
ORS 659.840 OAR 581-053-0550(5)(q)-(s)

ORS 659A.300

Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 812; Schedules of Controlled Substances, 21 C.F.R. §§ 1308.11 - 1308.15 (20006).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

4/4/03 | MW

Alcohol/Controlled Substance Use - GBCBA
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/475.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/657.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_006.html

Code: GBD
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Board-Staff Communications

The Board desires to maintain open communication channels between itself and the staff. The basic line of
communication will be through the superintendent. However, this policy does not restrict protected labor
relations communications of bargaining unit members. All recorded communication between the Board
and staff is public record as described in Board policy KBA - Public Records. The superintendent will

develop and recommend to the Board processes for communications between the Board and district
employees.

Communications or reports to the Board or Board committee from any staff member or members should be
submitted through the superintendent. This procedure will not be construed as denying the right of any

employee to address the Board about issues which are neither part of an active administrative procedure,
nor disruptive to the operation of the district.

All official communications, policies and directives of staff interest and concern will be communicated to

staff members through the superintendent. The superintendent will communicate as appropriate to keep
staff fully informed of the Board’s concerns and actions.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
OAR 581-022-1720
Anderson v. Central Point Sch. Dist., 746 F.2d 505 (9th Cir. 1984).

Connick v. Myers, 461 U.S. 138 (1983).
Lebanon Education Association/OEA v. Lebanon Community School District, 22 PECBR 323 (2008)

R6/09/08 | JW

Board-Staff Communications - GBD
1-1


http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GBDA
Adopted: 1/10/08

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Provisions for Nursing Mothers

The district recognizes that a normal and important role for mothers is to have the option and ability to
prov1de for the1r ch11d by breast- feedrng or expressmg milk in the workplace Eaeh—buﬁd-rng—srte—m—t—he

c ce- The superintendent or designee
shall see that the district makes a reasonable effort to provide a room or other location in close proximity to
work areas, other than a restroom, where an employee can breast-feed her child or express milk in privacy.
This policy directs the superintendent or designee to include the following in the development of a
regulation to ensure the provisions for employees required by this policy.

1. The advice of a school nurse or health professional in determining the most reasonable facility
accommodation.

2. The plan shall include an accessible, private room with a lock that would allow a mother:

a.  To breast-feed a child brought in during a lunch or other break period; or
b.  To pump breast milk to be stored for later use.

3. The room shall include:

a.  Electrical outlets for electric pumps;

b.  Sanitation facilities including a sink close by, for hand washing and the rinsing of
containers; and

c. A signup sheet and a sign posting the room as “private during use”;

A reasonable effort will be made to provide a flexible work schedule in consideration of the requirements
of the staff member’s responsibility.

An employee shall be entitled to a 30-minute unpaid rest period to breast-feed or express milk during each
four-hour work period, or the major part of a four- hour work perrod Th1s rest perrod is to be taken at
approximately the mid point of the work period;and cas C Tetd TTES c

pertods-that-are-otherwise provided.' If feasible, the ernployee wrll take the rest perrod at the same time as

the rest periods or meal periods provided by the district.

'Districts should refer to their collective bargaining agreements to determine if the “rest period” is paid, nonpaid or a
combination.

Provisions for Nursing Mothers - GBDA
1-2



An employee that wishes to breast-feed or express milk upon returning to work shall provide reasonable
prior notice to the district.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.650 ORS 653.077 ORS 653.256

R9/28/07 | KP

Provisions for Nursing Mothers - GBDA
2-2


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/653.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/653.html

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Code: GBE
Adopted: 5/02/02

Staff Health and Safety*

The Board authorizes the superintendent to take appropriate means to provide for the health and safety of

all employees while engaged in the performance of their duties.

The superintendent, in consultation with district and building safety committees, will develop and maintain
training and written procedures necessary to accomplish this goal and to meet the requirements of the law.

All employees shall conduct their work in compliance with the safety rules of the district.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.650
ORS 329.095
ORS 453.001 - 453.275

OAR 437-001-0760
OAR 437-002-0020 to -0075
OAR 437-002-0140
OAR 437-002-0144
OAR 437-002-0145
OAR 437-002-0180 to -0182
OAR 437-002-0360
OAR 437-002-0368
OAR 437-002-0377
OAR 437-002-0390
OAR 437-002-0391
OAR 581-022-1420

HR6/26/99 | NC

Staff Health and Safety* - GBE
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/329.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/453.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_001.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GBEB/GBEBA
Adopted: 7/11/94

GreSham'Barlow SD 1 0 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/015; 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): GBEB/GBEBA

Communicable Disease

The district shall provide reasonable protection against the risk of exposure to communicable disease for
employees while engaged in the performance of their duties. Protection from communicable disease
generally shall be through immunization, exclusion or other measures provided for in Oregon Revised
Statutes and Oregon Administrative Rules. Employees shall comply with all measures adopted by the
district and with all rules set by the Oregon State Health BrvistonDepartment of Human Services and the
county health department. Employees have a responsibility to report to the district when infected with a
communicable disease unless stated otherwise by law.

Employees shall provide services to students who are infected with a communicable disease except as
provided by law. In those cases where a communicable disease is diagnosed and confirmed, the district
shall inform the appropriate employees so as to protect against the risk of exposure.

Employees who have the responsibility to work with or to provide services to persons other than students,
shall provide the services to all such persons, including those who are infected with a communicable
disease, and shall provide the services in accordance with this policy. Where the district knows that a
person is infected with a communicable disease, it shall inform the employees, as appropriate, so as to
protect against the risk of exposure.

No employee shall be denied the opportunity to provide service solely on the basis that the employee is
infected with a communicable disease except as otherwise required by law. However, the district may
require an employee infected with a communicable disease, which is diagnosed and confirmed, to comply
with such reasonable measures, including submission to district paid medical examinations, as may be
determined as conditions of continued employment.

The district shall protect the confidentiality of an employee’s health condition/record to the extent possible.
HIV, AIDS and HBV

The district will strictly adhere in its policies and procedures to the Oregon Revised Statutes and Oregon
Administrative Rules as they relate to staff infected with HIV, AIDS or HBV'.

The district recognizes a staff member has no obligation under any circumstance to report his/her condition
to the district and the staff member has a right to continue working.

If the staff member reports his/her condition to the district, strict adherence to written guidelines outlined
by the staff member shall be followed.

"HIV - Human Immunodeficiency Virus; AIDS - Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome; HBV - Hepatitis B Virus

Communicable Disease - GBEB/GBEBA
1-2



These guidelines shall identify who may have the information, who will give the information, how the
information will be given, where and when the information will be given. All such information will be
held in confidence in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes.

When informed of the infection, and with written, signed permission from the staff member, the district
will develop procedures for formulating an evaluation team as directed by the employee. The team shall
address the nature, duration and severity of risk as well as any modification of activities. The team shall
continue to monitor the staff member’s condition and be sensitive to the individual as well as the district’s
needs.

Procedures for accommodating a staff member infected with HIV, AIDS or HBV shall be
nondiscriminatory and shall be the same as with any other illness.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 433.255 OAR 437-002-0360 OAR 581-022-0705
ORS 433.260 OAR 437-002-0377

12/13/01 |NC

Communicable Disease - GBEB/GBEBA
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/433.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/433.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_437/437_002.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GBEC
Adopted: 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/013; 5/02/025: 2/07/08
Orig. Code(s): GBEC

Drug-Free Workplace *

The district prohibits the unlawful manufacture, distribution, possession and/or use of any narcotic drug,
hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana or any other controlled substances or alcohol as
defined in schedules I through V of section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act (21U.S.C. § 812) and as
further defined by regulation 21 C.F.R § 1308.11-1308.15 in the workplace.

“Workplace” is defined to mean the site for the performance of work done in connection with a
federal grant or contract. That includes any school building or any school premises; any school-
owned vehicle or any other school-approved vehicle used to transport students to and from school or
school activities; off school property during any school-sponsored or school-approved activity, event
or function, such as a field trip or athletic event, where students are under the jurisdiction of the
school district where work on a federal grant is performed.

No employee shall knowingly sell, market or distribute steroid or performance enhancing substances to
kindergarten through grade 12 students with whom the employee has contact as part of the employee’s
district duties; or knowingly endorse or suggest the use of such drugs.

As a condition of employment, employees must abide by this policy and inform the district within five
days of any criminal drug conviction that occurred in the workplace.

The district shall establish and maintain a drug-free awareness program. This program shall include
information about the impact of drug/alcohol abuse in the workplace and the availability of drug
counseling services. Each employee shall also receive as part of the staffhandbook new employee
orientation materials a copy of the district’s policy, information regarding the district’s employee
assistance program and other available resources with regard to assistance with drug or alcohol abuse.

Violation of this policy may result in discipline up to and including dismissal or a requirement that the
employee successfully complete a drug assistance or rehabilitation program.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.650 ORS 342.723 OAR 581-022-0416

ORS 336.222 ORS 342.726 OAR 584-020-0040(5)(e)
ORS Chapter 475 ORS 657.176

ORS 342.721 ORS 809.260

Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 U.S.C. §§ 701-707 (2006); General Principles Relating to Suspension and Debarment
Actions, 34 C.F.R. §§ 85.600 - 85.645 (2006).

Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 812; Schedules of Controlled Substances, 21 C.F.R. §§ 1308.11 - 1308.15 (20006).

Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 7101-7117 (2006).

R9/28/07 | W Corrected 4/10/14

Drug-Free Workplace * - GBEC
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/336.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/475.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/657.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/809.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html

Code: GBEDA
Adopted: 2/01/96
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/013: 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GBEDA

Drug and Alcohol Testing - Transportation Personnel*

The district adheres to a policy of providing all employees, students and the public and environment which
is free of drugs as defined by the Drug Free Workplace Act and Board policy GBEC - Drug-Free
Workplace. In addition, the district complies with the requirements of the Omnibus Transportation
Employee Testing Act of 1991.

The district or its transportation provider shall have an in-house drug and alcohol testing program or be a
member of a consortium that provides testing that meets the federal regulations, and shall annually certify
this information to the Oregon Department of Education.

All employees subject to commercial drivers license (CDL) requirements shall be subject to pre-
employment drug testing and random, reasonable suspicion, post-accident, return-to-duty and follow-up
testing for alcohol and drugs in accordance with the above-named Omnibus Act.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 657.176
OAR 581-053-0015 (7)(t)

Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991, 49 U.S.C. §§ 31301-31317; 49 C.F.R. Parts 40, 382, 391-395 (2006).

R12/18/01 | MW

Drug and Alcohol Testing - Transportation Personnel* - GBEDA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/657.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html

Code: GBG
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Staff Participation in Political Activities

Employees may exercise their right to participate fully in affairs of public interest on a local, county, state
and national level on the same basis as any citizen in a comparable position in public or private
employment and within the law.

All district employees are privileged within the limitations imposed by state and federal laws and
regulations to choose any side of a particular issue and to support their viewpoints as they desire by vote,
discussion or persuading others. Such discussion and persuasion, however, will not be carried on during
the performance of district duties, except in open discussion during classroom lessons that consider various
candidates for a particular office or various sides of a particular political or civil issue.

On all controversial political activities, employees acting in their district capacity must designate that the
viewpoints they represent on the issues are personal and are not to be interpreted as the district’s official
viewpoint.

No employee will use district facilities, equipment or supplies in connection with his/her campaigning, nor

will he/she use any time during the working day for campaign purposes. exceptasattowedmrthe-distriet’s
faetlity use peliey:

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS Chapter 244
ORS 260.432

OR. CONST., art. XV, § 8.

4/3/01 |[NC

Staff Participation in Political Activities - GBG
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/244.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/260.html

Code: GBH/JECAC
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Custodial Parent**

The Board encourages parents to be involved in their student’s schootaffatrs-educational activities, and;
unless otherwise ordered by the courts, an order of sole custody on the part of one parent shall not deprive
the other parent of the following authority as it relates to:

1. Receiving and inspecting education records and consulting with school staff concerning the student’s
welfare and education, to the same extent as provided the parent having sole custody;

2. Authorizing emergency medical, dental, psychological, psychiatric or other health care for the
student if the custodial parent is, for practical reasons, unavailable.

It is the responsibility of the parent with sole custody to provide any court order that curtails the rights of
the noncustodial parent at the time of enrollment or any other time a court order is issued.

Noncustodial parents will not be granted visitation or telephone access to the student during the school
day. The student will not be released to the noncustodial parent without written permission of the parent
with sole custody.

In the case of joint custody, the district will adhere to all conditions specified and ordered by the court.
The district may request in writing any special requests or clarifications in areas concerning the student and
the district’s relationship and responsibilities.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 107.154
ORS 109.056
ORS 163.245 - 163.257

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 1232¢g (2011); Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 34
C.F.R. Part 99 (2011).
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2006); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34
C.F.R. Part 98 (2006).

2/26/09 | MS

Custodial Parent** - GBH/JECAC
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/107.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/109.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html

Code: GBI
Adopted: 7/11/94
GreSham'BarIOW SD 10 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/015; 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GBI

Gifts and Solicitations

Students and their parents shall not be encouraged to routinely give gifts to district employees. The Board
welcomes as appropriate the writing of letters by students to staff members expressing gratitude and
appreciation.

Individual employees will refrain from giving gifts' of more-thannominat-vatue to staff members who
exercise any direct or indirect administrative or supervisory jurisdiction over them. Collecting money for
group gifts is discouraged except in special circumstances such as bereavement, serious illness or for
retirement gifts. Staff-initiated “sunshine funds” are exempt from this policy.

All employees are prohibited from accepting items of material value from companies or organizations
doing business with the school district. Material value is defined as $+6650 from a single source in a
single year.

No organization may solicit funds from staff members within the schools, nor may anyone distribute flyers
or other materials related to fund drives through the schools without the superintendent’s approval. Staff
members may not be made responsible, or assume responsibility, for collecting money or distributing any
non=school-sponsored fund-drive literature within the schools without the superintendent’s or designee’s
approval.

The soliciting of staff by sales people, other staff or agents during on-duty hours is prohibited. Supervisors
shall not solicit staff. Any solicitation should be reported at once to the sehoot-principal or supervisor.
Advertising is not allowed in district facilities without the superintendent’s or designee’s approval.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 244.010 to-244.400 OAR 584-020-0000 to-0045
ORS 33%{%0 OAR 199-005-0005 to-199-020-0020

“Gift” means something of economic value given to a public official or the public official’s relative or household member
without valuable consideration of equivalent value, including the full or partial forgiveness of indebtedness, which is not
extended to others who are not public officials or the relatives or household members of public officials on the same terms and
conditions; and something of economic value given to a public official or the public official’s relative for valuable consideration
less than that required from others who are not public officials. See ORS Chapter 244 for gift definition exceptions.

Gifts and Solicitations - GBI
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/244.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_199/199_005.html

Code: GBJ
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Weapons in Schools - Staff*

Employees, district contractors and/or their employees and district volunteers shall not possess a dangerous
or deadly weapon or firearm on district property or at school-sponsored events. This prohibition includes
those who may otherwise be permitted by law to carry such weapons.

For purposes of this policy, and as defined by state and federal law, weapon includes:
1. “Dangerous weapon” = means any weapon, device, instrument, material or substance, which under
the circumstances in which it is used, attempted to be used or threatened to be used is readily capable

of causing death or serious physical injury;

2. “Deadly weapon” = means any instrument, article or substance specifically designed for and
presently capable of causing death or serious physical injury;

3. “Firearm” = means any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily
be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, frame or receiver of any such
weapon, any firearm silencer or any other destructive device including any explosive, incendiary or
poisonous gas.

Weapons under the control of law enforcement personnel are permitted.

The superintendent will ensure notice of this policy is provided.

Employees in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including dismissal.

Individuals contracting with the district and volunteers will be subject to appropriate sanctions. A referral

to law enforcement may be made.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 161.015
ORS 166.210 - 166.370
ORS 332.107

Gun-Free School Zones Act of 1990, 18 U.S.C. §§ 921(a)(25)-(26), 922(q) (2006).
Doe v. Medford Sch. Dist. 549C, 232 Or. App. 38, 221 P3d 787 (2009).

9/10/07 |RC

Weapons in Schools - Staff* - GBJ
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/161.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/166.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html

Code: GBK/JFCG/KGC
Adopted: 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Revised/Readopted:  1/11/015; 5/02/02:; 10/06/05

Orig. Code(s): GBK

Tobacco-Free Environment

The district recognizes that tobacco use may create a health hazard for nonusers as well as users. In order
to protect the health of students, staff and the general public, provide a healthy working environment and
promote good health for students and staff alike, tobacco use, distribution, or sale in any form shall be
prohibited on all district property and in district-owned vehicles at all times. Tobacco use is also
prohibited by employees, volunteers, students, chaperones; and the general public participating off campus
in a school or district-sponsored activity.

Tobacco use is defined as the carrying or smoking of any kind of lighted or unlighted pipe, cigar, cigarette,
bidi, clove cigarette or any other smoking equipment or material, or spit tobacco, also known as smokeless,
dip, chews; or snuff in any form, nicotine or nicotine delivering devices, chemicals or devices that produce
the physical effect of nicotine substances or any other tobacco substitute (e.g., e-cigarettes). This does not
include FDA-approved nicotine replacement therapy products used for the purpose of cessation.

“Tobacco Use Prohibited” signs will be posted in appropriate locations in all district buildings and on
district property.

Violation of this policy will lead to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion, for
students. When considering disciplinary action for a child with disabilities, the district must follow the
requirements of Board policy JGDA/JGEA — Discipline of Students with Disabilities, including those
involving functional behavioral assessment, change of placement, manifestation determination and an
interim alternative educational setting. Community or school service may be required. A referral to law
enforcement may be made. Parents will be notified of all violations involving their student and subsequent
action taken by the school. Information about cessation support and/or tobacco education programs and
how students can access these programs will be provided. At the discretion of the buttding principal,
attendance and completion of such programs, or successful completion of a behavior modification plan,
may be allowed as a substitute for, or a part of student discipline.

Violation of this policy by non students may result in the removal of the individual from district property.
The district reserves the right to restrict access to district property by individuals who are repeat offenders.

The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as needed to implement this policy.

Tobacco-Free Environment - GBK/JFCG/KGC
1-2



END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107 ORS 433.835 -433.990 OAR 581-022-0413

ORS 336.222 OAR 581-053-0015

ORS 336.227 OAR 581-021-0050 to -0075 OAR 581-053-0545(4)(c)(R)-(T)
ORS 339.240 OAR 581-021-0110 OAR 581-053-0550(5)(q)-(s)
ORS 339.250

Pro-Children Act of 1994, 20 U.S.C. §§ 6081-6084 (2006).

R2/24/11|RS

Tobacco-Free Environment - GBK/JFCG/KGC
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/336.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/336.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/433.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_053.html

Code: GBL

Adopted: 5/02/02
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 10/6/05

Personnel Records *

An official personnel file will be established for each person employed by the district. Such files will be
maintained in the district administration office.

All records containing employee medical condition information such as workers’ compensation reports and
release/permission to return to work forms will be kept confidential, in a separate file from personnel
records. Such records will be released only in accordance with the requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act or other applicable law.

The superintendent will be responsible for establishing regulations regarding the control, use, safety and
maintenance of all personnel records. Employees will be given a copy of evaluations, complaints and
written disciplinary actions to be placed in their personnel file as per the collective bargaining agreement.
All charges resulting in disciplinary action shall be considered a permanent part of the teacher’s personnel
file and shall not be removed for any reason. Employees may submit a written response to any materials
placed in their personnel file.

Except as provided below, or required by law, district employees’ personnel records will be available for
use and inspection only by the following:

1. The individual employee. An employee or designee may arrange with the human resources office to
inspect the contents of his/her personnel file on any day the human resources office is open for
business;

2. Others designated in writing by the employee;

3. The comptroller or auditor, when such inspection is pertinent to carrying out his/her respective
duties, or as otherwise specifically authorized by the Board. Information so obtained will be kept

confidential. No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection;

4. A Board member when specifically authorized by the Board. Information will be kept confidential.
No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection;

5. The superintendent and members of the central administrative staff;
6.  District administrators and supervisors who currently or prospectively supervise the employee;
7. Employees of the human resources office;

8. Attorneys for the district or the district’s designated representative on matters of district business.

Personnel Records * - GBL
1-2



Notwithstanding the foregoing, the disciplinary records of a school employee convicted of a crime listed in
ORS 342.143 may be released to any person upon request. “Disciplinary records” is defined as records
related to a personnel discipline action or materials or documents supporting that action. Prior to
disclosure, the district shall remove any personally identifiable information from the record that would
disclose the identity of a child, a crime victim or a school employee who is not the subject of the
disciplinary record.

The superintendent may permit persons other than those specified above to use and to inspect personnel
records when, in his/her opinion, the person requesting access has a legitimate official purpose. The

superintendent will determine in each case the appropriateness and extent of such access.

Release of personnel records to parties other than those authorized to inspect them will be only upon
receipt of a court order.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 342.850
ORS 652.750
ORS 342.143
ORS 339.370 - 339-375

OSEA v. Lake County Sch. District, 93 Or. App. 481 (1988).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

R8/30/05 | JW

Personnel Records * - GBL
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/652.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html

Code: GBLA
Adopted: 10/05/95
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/015: 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GBLA

Disclosure of Information

District administrators, as authorized by the superintendent, may disclose information about a former
employee’s job performance to a prospective employer. District officials are immune from civil liability
for such disclosures under the following conditions:

1. Disclosure of information is upon request of the prospective employer; or

2. Disclosure of information is upon request of the former employee;

3. The information is related to job performance;

4. The action is presumed to be in good faith.

Presumption of good faith is rebutted by showing the information disclosed was:

1.  Knowingly false;

2. Deliberately misleading;

3. Rendered with malicious purpose;

4.  Violated civil rights.

The disclosure is of the disciplinary records' of a district employee who has been convicted of a crime
listed in ORS 342.143. These records are not exempt from disclosure under ORS 192.501 or ORS 192.502
and shall be released to any person upon request. Prior to the disclosure of a disciplinary record an
education provider shall remove any personally identifiable information from the record that would
disclose the identity of a child, a crime victim or a school employee who is not the subject of the
disciplinary record.

The disclosure is the result of a request from a law enforcement agency, the Department of Human

Services or the Teachers Standards and Practices Commission regarding the records of investigations of
suspected child abuse by a district employee.

'Disciplinary records is defined as records related to a personnel discipline action or materials or documents supporting that
action.

Disclosure of Information - GBLA
1-2



Not later than 20 days after receiving a request under ORS 339.374, an education provider that has or has
had an employment relationship with the applicant shall disclose the information requested and any
disciplinary records that must be disclosed as provided by ORS 339.388(7).

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 30.178 ORS Chapter 659
ORS 339.370 - 339.375 ORS Chapter 659A

ORS 339.388(7)

12/02/10 | JW

Disclosure of Information - GBLA
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/030.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html

Code: GBM
Adopted: 7/11/94
GreSham'Barlow SD 10 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/015; 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GBM

Staff Complaints *

The superintendent or designee will develop and maintain a complaint procedure which will be available
for all employees who contend they have been subject to a violation, misinterpretation or inappropriate
application of district personnel policies and/or administrative regulations. The complaint procedure will
provide an orderly process for the consideration and resolution of problems in the application or
interpretation of district personnel policies.

The complaint procedure will not be used to resolve disputes and disagreements related to the provisions
of any collective bargaining agreement, nor will it be used in any instance where a collective bargaining
agreement provides a dispute resolution procedure. Disputes concerning an employee’s dismissal or
contract non=renewal or contract non=extension will not be pursued under this procedure.

All reasonable efforts will be made to resolve complaints informally.

Policy KL-AR Public Complaints shall be used as the Regulatrons-willbedeveloped-toouthne procedural

timelines and steps under this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
OAR 581-022-1720

Anderson v. Central Point Sch. Dist., 746 F.2d 505 (9th Cir. 1984).
Connick v. Myers, 461 U.S. 138 (1983).

R2/10/04 | MW

Staff Complaints * - GBM
1-1


http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GBN/JBA
Adopted: 5/02/02
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Revised/Readopted: 3/12/015; 5/20/02:; 8/13/07

Orig. Code(s): BP 1711

Sexual Harassment

The Board is committed to the elimination of sexual harassment in district schools and activities. Sexual
harassment is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated. This includes sexual harassment of students, or
staff or third parties by other students, staff, Board members or third parties. “Third parties” include, but
are not limited to, school volunteers, parents or guardians', school visitors, service contractors or others
engaged in district business, such as employees of businesses or organizations participating in cooperative
work programs with the district and others not directly subject to district control at interdistrict and
intradistrict athletic competitions or other school events. “District” includes district facilities, district
premises and nondistrict property if the student or employee is at any district-sponsored, district-approved
or district-related activity or function, such as field trips or athletic events, where students are under the
control of the district or where the employee is engaged in district business. The prohibition also includes
off duty conduct which is incompatible with district job responsibilities.

Sexual harassment of students and staff shall include, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances,
requests for sexual favors and other verbal, nonverbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

1. The conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of demanding sexual favors in exchange for
benefits;
2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct or communication is used as the basis for educational

decisions affecting a student or employment or assignment of staff;

3. The conduct or communication is so severe, persistent or pervasive that it has the purpose or effect
of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational performance or with an employee’s ability to
perform his/her job; or creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile educational or working
environment. Relevant factors to be considered will include, but not be limited to, did the individual
view the environment as hostile; was it reasonable to view the environment as hostile; the nature of
the conduct; how often the conduct occurred and how long it continued; age and sex of the
complainant; whether the alleged harasser was in a position of power over the student or staff
member subjected to the harassment; number of individuals involved; age of the alleged harasser;
where the harassment occurred; and other incidents of sexual harassment at the school involving the
same or other students or staff.

'As used in this policy, the term parent includes legal guardian or person in a parental relationship. The status and duties of a
legal guardian are defined in ORS 125.005 (4) and 125.300 - 125.325. The determination of whether an individual is acting in a
parental relationship, for purposes of determining residency depends on evaluation of those factors and a power of attorney
executed pursuant to ORS 109.056. For special education students, parent also includes a surrogate parent, and adult student to
whom rights have transferred and foster parent as defined in OAR 581-015-0005 (18).

Sexual Harassment - GBN/JBA
1-3



Examples of sexual harassment may include, but not be limited to, physical touching or graffiti of a sexual
nature, displaying or distributing of sexually explicit drawings, pictures and written materials, sexual
gestures or obscene jokes, touching oneself sexually or talking about one’s sexuality in front of others or
spreading rumors about or rating other students or others as to appearance, sexual activity or performance.

All complaints about behavior that may violate this policy shall be promptly investigated. Any student or
employee who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy or feels he/she is a victim of sexual
harassment must immediately report his/her concerns to the butlding principal, compliance officer or
superintendent, who has overall responsibility for all investigations. A student may also report concerns to
a teacher, counselor or school nurse, who will promptly notify the appropriate district official. The student
and the student’s parents or guardians or staff member who initiated the complaint shall be notified of the
findings of the investigation and, if appropriate, that remedial action has been taken.

The initiation of a complaint in good faith about behavior that may violate this policy shall not adversely
affect the educational assignments or study environment of a student complainant or any terms or
conditions of employment or work environment of the staff complainant. There shall be no retaliation by
the district against any person who, in good faith, reports, files a complaint or otherwise participates in an
investigation or inquiry of sexual harassment.

It is the intent of the Board that appropriate corrective action will be taken by the district to stop the sexual
harassment, prevent its recurrence and address negative consequences. Students in violation of this policy
shall be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion and/or counseling or sexual harassment
awareness training, as appropriate. The age and maturity of the student(s) involved and other relevant
factors will be considered in determining appropriate action. Employees in violation of this policy shall be
subject to discipline, up to and including dismissal and/or additional sexual harassment awareness training,
as appropriate. Other individuals whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject
to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the superintendent or Board.

Additionally, the district may report individuals in violation of this policy to law enforcement officials.
Licensed staff, staff registered with the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC) and those
participating in practicum programs, as specified by Oregon Administrative Rules, shall be reported to the
TSPC.

The superintendent shall ensure appropriate periodic sexual harassment awareness training or information
is provided to all supervisors, staff and students and that annually, the name and position of district
officials responsible for accepting and managing sexual harassment complaints, business phone numbers,
addresses or other necessary contact information is readily available. This policy as well as the complaint
procedure will be made available to all students, parents or guardians of students and staff in student/parent
and staff handbooks. The district’s policy shall be posted in all schools. Such posting shall be by a sign of
at least 8 12" by 11".

The superintendent will establish a process of reporting incidents of sexual harassment.

END OF POLICY

Sexual Harassment - GBN/JBA
2-3



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.706 ORS 342.865 OAR 581-021-0038
ORS 342.700 ORS 659.850 OAR 584-020-0040
ORS 342.704 ORS 659A.006 OAR 584-020-0041
ORS 342.708 ORS 659A.029
ORS 342.850 ORS 659A.030

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2006).

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e (2006).

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2006); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2006).

Davis v. Monroe County Bd. of Educ., 526 U.S. 629 (1999).

Gebser v. Lago Vista Indep. Sch. Dist., 524 U.S. 274 (1998).

Bartsch v. Elkton School District, FDA-13-011 (March 27, 2014).

R3/7/02 | MW Corrected 6/12/14

Sexual Harassment - GBN/JBA
3-3


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_020.html

Code: GBNA
Adopted: 5/02/02
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 4/10/08; 1/06/11

Hazing/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying/Cyberbullying/Menacing — Staff

The Board is committed to providing a positive and productive learning and working environment.
Hazing, harassment, intimidation, menacing, ot bullying, and acts of cyberbullying of staff, students or
third parties by students, staff or third parties is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated in the district.
Retaliation against any person who reports, is thought to have reported, files a complaint or otherwise
participates in an investigation or inquiry is also strictly prohibited.

Staff whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline, up to and
including dismissal. Third parties whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject
to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the superintendent or Board. Students whose
behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including
expulsion.

Individuals may also be referred to law enforcement officials. Licensed staff will be reported to Teacher
Standards and Practices Commission.

The superintendent is directed to develop and maintain administrative regulations to implement this policy.
Regulations shall include descriptions of prohibited conduct, reporting and investigative procedures, and

provisions to ensure annual notice of this policy is provided to students, staff and third parties.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 163.190

ORS 163.197(2)

ORS 166.065

ORS 166.155 - 166.165
ORS 332.072

ORS 332.107

ORS 659A.030

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2006).

HR12/10/09 | PH Corrected 6/12/14

Hazing/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying/Cyberbullying/Menacing — Staff - GBNA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/166.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/166.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html

Code: GBNAA/JFCFA
Adopted: 4/10/08
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 2/22/13; 4/04/13

Cyberbullying

The Board is committed to providing a positive and productive learning and working environment. Any
form of harassment using electronic devices, commonly known as “cyberbullying,” by students, staff or
third parties is prohibited and will not be tolerated in the district. “Cyberbullying” is the use of any
electronic communication device to convey a message in any form (text, image, audio or video) that
defames, intimidates, harasses or is otherwise intended to harm, insult or humiliate another in a deliberate,
repeated or hostile and unwanted manner under a person’s true or false identity. In addition, any
communication of this form, which substantially disrupts or prevents a safe and positive educational or
working environment may also be considered cyberbullying. Students and staff will refrain from using
personal communication devices or district property to harass or stalk another.

The district will take any report of cyberbullying seriously and will investigate credible reports promptly.
Students or volunteers are encouraged to report an incident immediately to a teacher or principal, who will
take appropriate action. Students or volunteers who make a report are expected, but not required, to
preserve evidence of cyberbullying. For example, a student may save or bring a copy of an email, text
message, picture or other electronic transmission that the student believes was intended harm, insult or
humiliate. Students or volunteers may report cyberbullying anonymously. Remedial action shall not be
based solely on an anonymous report.

Failure of an employee to report an act of cyberbullying to the school or program administrator may be
subject to remedial action, up to and including dismissal.

The district may revoke the privilege of a student or third party, who uses district equipment or electronic
communication system to engage in cyberbullying, to use any district electronic equipment under the
procedures for Board policy [IBGA - Electronic Communications System.

Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to loss of privileges,
discipline, up to and including expulsion. Staff whose behavioris found to be in violation of this policy
will be subject to discipline, up to and including dismissal. Third parties whose behavior is found to be in
violation of this policy will be subject to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the
superintendent or Board. The district may also report individuals to law enforcement if necessary.

The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for students and staff information related to
cyberbullying and the prevention of, and the appropriate response to acts of cyberbullying.

END OF POLICY

Cyberbullying - GBNAA/JFCFA
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 163.190 ORS 332.107 OAR 581-021-0045
ORS 166.065 ORS 339.240 OAR 581-021-0046
ORS 166.155 to-166.165 ORS 339.250 OAR 581-021-0055
ORS 6) ORS 339.351 t0-339.364 OAR 581-022-1140

- ﬁ

Cyberbullying - GBNAA/JFCFA
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/166.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/166.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/174.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/339.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GBPA
Adopted: 12/02/04
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Orig. Code(s): GBPA

Children on District Premises

The district reserves the right to ask any person to leave district premises at any time.

During normal school hours, school age children will not be allowed on district premises or in any facility
used by the district, unless the child is enrolled in a district class, studying for a class in which the child is
enrolled within the district, involved in a district approved event; or have the prior written consent of the
building administrator.

Staff members may not bring dependent children, on the job, during their regular working hours without
prior written consent of an administrator.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS339:246(2)
ORS 332.107

Children on District Premises - GBPA
1-1


http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339

Code: GCA
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

License Requirements

All applicants requiring licensure shall hold a valid Oregon license as a condition of employment and shall
meet any other condition required by Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC). Those offered
employment in the district must present their original license to the superintendent’s office before the
Board will consider approving their employment. Applicants not presenting their license prior to the
beginning of school or the first day employment is to begin, will not be employed until such license is
presented to the superintendent’s office.

The district requires licensed staff to submit a copy of all license endorsements to the human resources
office. It shall be each licensed staff member’s responsibility to keep all endorsements current and to
submit them to the superintendent’s office.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 342.120 - 342.203

OAR Chapter 584

4/3/01 | MW

License Requirements - GCA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS_500/OAR_584/584_tofc.html

Code: GCAB
Adopted: 6/02/11

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Personal Communication Electronic Devices and Social Media - Staff

Staff possession or use of personal eommunteation electronic devices on district property, in district
facilities during the work day and while the staff is on duty in attendance at district-sponsored activities
may be permitted subject to the limitations set forth in this policy and consistent with any additional school
rules as may be established by the superintendent. At no time will a personal eemmunteation electronic
device be used in a manner that interferes with staff duty and responsibility for the supervision of students
or in any manner that violates state or federal law.

A “personal commtrmcat-mn electronlc deV1ce isa dev1ce not 1ssued by the dlstrlct -t-l‘rat—emﬁs-an-aud-rb’re

t-he—dewce capable of electronlcally commumcatmg, sendmg, recelvmg, stormg, recordlng, reproducmg,
and/ or dlsplaylng information and data.—Fhe c - ¢ e

during instructional time, while on duty or at any other time where such use of the device would cause a
disruption of school activities or interfere with work assignment. €etutartetephones Devices which have
the capability to take photographs or record video or audio may be used for such purposes while on district
property or while a staff member is on duty in district-sponsored activities, unless it is used in a manner
that violates the acceptable use policy or when parents revoke permission to allow photographing or
videotaping of their children. EaptepeComputers, andPB#As tablets, iPads or similar devices brought to
school will be restricted to etassroomor-mstructronal=refated academic activities enty during on duty time.

Fossordamage Stolen and vandalized to personal communteation electronic devices brought to district
property and district-sponsored activities shall first be submitted to the staff member’s personal insurance
before submission to the district for reimbursement.

Staff members, while on duty and off duty, will utilize social network media websites e-g5Facebook;
MySpace-and-TFwitter), public websites and blogs, judiciously;and-wilt by not posting confidential
information about students, staff or district business.' Staff members, while on duty and off duty, will treat
fellow employees, students (and their families) and the public with respect while posting on social media
websites, etc., in order to prevent substantial disruption in school.

"Nothing in this policy is intended in any form to limit the right of employees to engage in protected labor activities via the use
of social media.

Personal Communtecation Electronic Devices and Social Media - Staff - GCAB
1-3



Communication with students usmg personal connﬁmncat-ron electronic devices will be appropriate; and

and retate vittesonty. Communication with students using
personal electronic deV1ces regardmg non-school related matters is prohibited during work hours and
strongly discouraged at all other times. If communicating with students electronically regarding school-
related matters, staff should use district e-mail using mailing lists to a group of students rather than
individual students. Texting students during work hours is discouraged. Texting students while off duty is
strongly discouraged.

Exceptions to the prohibitions set forth in this policy may be made for health, safety or emergency reasons
with superintendent or designee approval.

Staff ts members are subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal for using a personal
communteatton clectronic device in any manner that is illegal or violates the terms of this policy;ortutes
establshedunder-thtspotiey. Staff actions on social media websites, public websites and blogs, while on
or off duty, which disrupt the school environment, are subject to disciplinary action up to and including
dismissal. A “disruption™ for purposes of this policy includes, but is not limited to, a threatened or actual
negative impact on the learning environment. The taking, disseminating, transferring; or sharing of
obscene, pornographic; or otherwise illegal images or photographs, whether by electronic data transfer or
otherwise (commonly called texting, sexting, emailing, etc.) may constitute a crime under state and/or
federal law. Any person taking, disseminating, transferring; or sharing obscene, pornographic; or
otherwise illegal images or photographs, will be reported to law enforcement and/or other appropriate state
or federal agencies.

Licensed staff are subject at all times to the Standards of Competent and Ethical Performance for Teachers.
(See Board policy GCAA..)

The superintendent shall ensure that this policy is available to all employees.

END OF POLICY

Personal Communtecation Electronic Devices and Social Media - Staff - GCAB
2-3



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 167.054 ORS 163.687 ORS 326.011
ORS 167.057 ORS 163.688 ORS 326.051
ORS 163.432 ORS 163.689 ORS 332.072
ORS 163.433 ORS 163.693 ORS 332.107
ORS 163.684 ORS 336.840
ORS 163.686 ORS 163.700

U.S. CONST. amend. XVIII, § 1466A

U.S. CONST. amend. XVIII, § 1470

U.S. CONST. amend. XX, § 7906

U.S. CONST. amend. XX, § 6777

Copyrights, Title 17, as amended, United States Code; 19 CFR Part 133 (2001).

Melzer v. Bd. Of Educ., City of New York, 336 F.3d 185 (2d Cir. 2003).

Ross v. Springfield Sch. Dist., No. FDA 80-1, aff’d, 56 Or. App. 197, rev’d and remanded, 294 Or. 357 (1982), order on remand
(1983), aff’d, 71 Or. App. 111 (1984), rev’d and remanded, 300 Or. 507 (1986), order on second remand (1987), revised order
on second remand (1988).

HR2/16/12|HP Corrected 6/12/14

Personal Communtecation Electronic Devices and Social Media - Staff - GCAB
3-3


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/167.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/167.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/163.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/326.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/326.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/341.html

Code: GCBC/GDBC
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Associated Payroll Costs *

The Board shall pay insurance premiums for district employees. Such insurance will be provided and
notice given in compliance with any rules of the carrier regarding domestic partner benefits, current
relevant collective bargaining agreement, Board policy and state and federal law.

Employees eligible for insurance benefits at the close of the school year and who have been rehired by the
district for eligible employment the following school year will be considered eligible during the interim.

The superintendent will develop and maintain administrative regulations, as necessary, to implement this
policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 332.507
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1161-1169 (2006).

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 29 U.S. C. §§ 1001-1461.
Tanner v. OHSU, 157 Or. App. 502 (1998).

4/4/03 | DT

Associated Payroll Costs * - GCBC/GDBC
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html

Code: GCBDA/GDBDA
Adopted: 7/11/94
G reSha m'Ba I‘|OW S D 1 0 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/015; 5/02/02
Orig. Code(s): GCBDA/GDBDA

Family Medical Leave *

The district will comply with all provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) of 1993, the
Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA) of 1995 the Military Family Leave Act as part of the National Defense
Authorization Acts of 2008 and for Fiscal Year 2010 (which expanded certain leave to military families
and veterans for specific circumstances), the Oregon Military Family Leave Act of 2009, and other
applicable provisions of Board policies and collective bargaining agreements regarding family medical
leave.

In order for an employee to be eligible for the benefits under federal law, he/she must have been employed
by the district for-theprevious a total of at least (not necessarily consecutive) 12 months and have worked
at least 1250 hours during the past 12-month period.

In order to be eligible under state law, an employee must work an average of 25 hours per week and have
been employed at least 180 days prior to the first day of the family medical leave of absence. However, for
parental leave purposes—covered-underFiviEA; an employee becomes eligible upon completing at least 180
days immediately preceding the date on which the parental leave begins. There is no minimum average
number of hours worked per week when determining employee eligibility for parental leave.

Federal and state leave entitlements generally run concurrently.

The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as necessary for the implementation of the
provisions of both federal and state law.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.507

ORS 342.545

ORS 659A.090

ORS 659A.093

ORS 659A.096

ORS 659A.099

ORS 659A.150 - 659A.186

OAR 839-009-0200 to-0320

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).
Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2654 (2006); Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 29 C.F.R. Part
825 (2008).

National Defense Authorization Act of 2008, Public Law 110-181, § 585(a).

National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2010, Public Law 111-84, § 565.

R12/10/09 | RS

Family Medical Leave * - GCBDA/GDBDA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_800/oar_839/839_009.html

Code: GCBDB/GDBDB
Adopted 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/015: 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s: GCBDB/GDBDB

Early Return to Work

Efforts will be made on a case by case basis to return ill or injured employees to work. Returns will be
within the requirements of the injury, the limitations of the law and the limitations of the district.

In the event an employee is not able to perform essential job functions completely after an illness or injury,
the district will determine whether reasonable accommodations are appropriate that would provide
temporary light duty assignment, restructuring of job to include modified work days, shift or part-time
work, hours of work or modifications in facilities, equipment, special aids and services. Reasonable
accommodations must not result in an undue hardship on the district.

If an employee cannot be reasonably accommodated in his/her current job, the district will review
alternative assignments. The employee, if qualified, will be offered an available vacant position with or
without reasonable accommodations. If no other assignment is possible, the district will provide unpaid
leave, in accordance with state and federal law, if recovery is ongoing and sick leave is exhausted. Unpaid
leave will be provided in accordance with Oregon law.

The district will maintain current job descriptions for each job category. Physical requirements for
appropriate job categories will be established.

The superintendent will develop procedures necessary to implement this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 659A.043
ORS 659A.046

OAR 436-110-0001 to -0900

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).

HR3/7/02 | MW

Early Return to Work - GCBDB/GDBDB
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_436/436_110.html

Code: GCBDC/GDBDC
Adopted: 3/06/08

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Domestic Violence/Harassment/Sexual Assault/Stalking Leave

Definitions:

1.

“Covered employer” means an employer who employs six or more individuals in the state of Oregon
for each working day through each of 20 or more calendar workweeks in the year in which the
eligible employee takes leave to address domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking or
in the year immediately preceding the year in which an eligible employee takes leave for domestic
violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking.

“Ehglble employee means an employee who werked—an—average—e—f—mere—thaﬁﬁ-lmurrperﬂweelrfor

andﬂvv‘he isa Vlctlm of domestlc Vlolence harassment sexual assault or stalkmg or is the parent or
guardian of a minor child or dependent who is a victim of domestic violence, harassment, sexual
assault or stalking.

“Protective order” means an order authorized by ORS 30.866, 107.095(1)(c), 107.700 to 107.735,
124.005 t0124.040 or 163.730 to163.750 or any other order that restrains an individual from contact
with an eligible employee of the employee’s minor child or dependent.

“Victim of domestic violence” means an individual who has been a victim of abuse as defined by
ORS 107.705; or any other individual designated as a victim of domestic violence by rule adopted
under ORS 659A.805.

“Victim of harassment” means an individual against whom harassment has been committed as
describe in ORS 166.805 and any other individual designated as a victim of harassment by rule
adopted under ORS 659A.805.

“Victim of sexual assault” means an individual against whom a sexual offense has been committed
as described in ORS 163.467 or 163.525 or any other individual designated as a victim of sexual
assault by rule adopted under ORS 659A.805.

“Victim of stalking means an individual against whom stalking has been committed as described in
ORS 163.732 or anyother an individual designated as a victim of stalking by rule adopted under
ORS 695A.805 or an individual who has obtained a court’s stalking protective order or a temporary
court’s stalking protective order under ORS 30.866.

“Victim services provider” means a prosecutor-based victims assistance program or a nonprofit
program offering safety planning, counseling, support or advocacy related to domestic violence,
harassment, sexual assault of stalking.

Domestic Violence/Harassment/Sexual Assault/Stalking Leave - GCBDC/GDBDC
1-3



A district (covered employer) shall allow an (eligible) employee to take reasonable leave for any of the
following reasons:

1. To seek legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies to ensure the health and safety of the
employee or the employee’s minor child or dependant, including preparing for and participating in
protective order proceedings or other civil or criminal legal proceedings related to domestic violence,
harassment, sexual assault or stalking:;

2. To seek medical treatment for or to recover from injuries caused by domestic violence or sexual
assault to or harassment or stalking of the eligible employee or the employee’s minor child or
dependent:;

3. To obtain or assist a minor child or dependent in obtaining counseling from a licensed mental health

professional related to an experience of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking:;

4.  To obtain services from victims services provider for the eligible employee or the employees minor
child or dependent:;

5. Torelocate or take steps to secure an existing home to ensure health and safety of the eligible
employee or the employee’s minor child/dependant.

The district may limit the amount of leave, if the employee’s leave creates an undo hardship on the district.
The district shall not deny leave to an employee or discharge, threaten to discharge, demote, suspend or in
any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee with regards to promotion, compensation or other

terms, conditions or privileges of employment as a result of taking such leave.

The employee shall give the district reasonable advanced notice of their intent to take leave unless giving
advance notice is not feasible.

The district may require the employee to provide certification that:

1. The employee or minor child/dependent is a victim of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault
or stalking; and

2. The leave is taken for one of the identified purposes in this policy.
Sufficient certification includes:

1. A copy of a police report mdteatronsindicating the employee or child/dependent was a victim of
domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking

2. A copy of a protective order or other evidence form a court, administrative agency or attorney that
the employee appeared in or was preparing for a civil, or-criminal proceeding or administrative
related to domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking.

Domestic Violence/Harassment/Sexual Assault/Stalking Leave - GCBDC/GDBDC
2-3



3. Documentation from an attorney, law enforcement officer, health care professional, licensed mental
professional or counselor, member of the clergy or victims services provider that the
employee/child/dependent was under going counseling, obtaining services or relocating as a result of
domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking.

All records and information kept by the district regarding the employees leave, including the request or
obtaining of leave is confidential and may not be release without the expressed permission of the employee
unless otherwise required by law. This information will be kept in a file separate from the employee’s
personnel file.

The employee may use any paid accrued vacation leave or may use any other paid leave that is offered by

the district in lieu of vacation leave. The employee may chose the order in which paid accrued leave is to
be used when more than one type of paid leave is available.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 192.502(38)
ORS 659A.270 to-659A.290
ORS659AE8S

5/23/12 |PH

Domestic Violence/Harassment/Sexual Assault/Stalking Leave - GCBDC/GDBDC
3-3


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/192.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html

Code: GCDA/GDDA
Adopted: 1/04/96
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 11/01/015: 5/02/025: 2/04/10
Orig. Code(s): GCDA/GDDA

Criminal Records Checks/Fingerprinting

In a continuing effort to further ensure the safety and welfare of students and staff, the district shall require
criminal records checks and fingerprinting of all newly hired full-time and part-time employees. Others
having direct, unsupervised contact with students shall also have criminal records checks and
fingerprinting, as required by law.

“Direct, unsupervised contact” means contact with students that provides the person opportunity and
probability for personal communication or touch.

In addition to the newly hired employees, such checks shall be required of the following:
1. All school district contractors and/or their employees, whether employed part-time or full-time;

2. All contractors and/or their employees who provide early childhood special education or early
intervention services in accordance with rules established by the employment department;

3. Any community college faculty member providing instruction at the site of an early childhood
education program or at a school site as part of an early education program,;
4. Anindividual who is an employee of a public charter school.

An individual who has failed to disclose the presence of criminal convictions that would not otherwise
prevent his/her employment with the district as provided by law may be employed or contracted with by
the district. The district’s use of criminal history must be relevant to the specific requirements of the
position, services or employment.

The district may begin the employment of an individual, volunteer service, or terms of a district contractor
on a probationary basis pending the return and disposition of criminal record checks and/or fingerprinting.

The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations as necessary to meet the requirements of law.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 181.525 ORS 336.631 OAR 414-061-0010
ORS 181.555 ORS 338.115 OAR 581-021-0500
ORS 183.413 - 183.470 ORS 342.143 OAR 581-022-1730
ORS 326.603 ORS 342.223 t0-342.232 OAR 584-036-0062
ORS 326.607

R9/24/09 | PH

Criminal Records Checks/Fingerprinting - GCDA/GDDA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/181.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/181.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/183.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/326.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/326.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/336.html
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/338.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/657.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_400/oar_414/414_061.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_036.html

Code: GCEC
Adopted: 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 1/11/015: 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GCEC

Job Sharing

The Board acknowledges that job-sharing is an appropriate personnel practice and directs the
superintendent to establish procedures for job-sharing as an employment option.

Job sharing shall be defined as “two staff members voluntarily sharing the responsibilities and benefits of a
single position, including attendance at meetings, workshops, etc.”

Job sharing requests will be considered on an individual basis and will be subject to the buttding
principal’s recommendation and superintendent’s approval. Requests will be based upon the following
guidelines:

1.

2.

The job sharing position is entered into voluntarily by both persons;

Job sharing will not be approved if there are indications student progress and/or educational
programs might be compromised;

The amount of fringe benefits as may be afforded in the current negotiated agreement and normally
assigned to one staff employee position shall be shared in a manner agreeable to both job-sharing
employees providing the total dollar amount does not exceed the amount designated for one staff
employee in a non-job-sharing position.

All leaves normally assigned to an employee are divided proportionately between the two employees.

Should one employee be unable to complete the job sharing assignment, the prorated fringe benefits
and leaves may be transferred to the remaining employee.

Job sharing will be evaluated annually to determine renewal;

If one employee discontinues job sharing, the other job-sharing employee shall assume the
responsibilities of the full-time position for the remainder of the school year, or until another
qualified employee will voluntarily job share the position or another job-share employee is hired;

If, upon the superintendent’s and administrator’s evaluation, job sharing is not renewed for the
ensuing school year, then the two employees affected may return to full-time positions subject to any
state statute, collective bargaining agreement or Board policy on reduction in force;

Job Sharing - GCEC
1-2



7. Responsibility for curriculum coordination will be designated by the buttding principal.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 332107

Eugene Education Association v. Eugene School District 4J, Case Nos. UP-8-87 and UP-18-87, 9 PECBR 9391 (1987); rev’d,
91 Or. App. 78 (1988); vacated and remanded, 306 Or. 659 (1988).

Job Sharing - GCEC
2-2


http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332

Code: GCL/GDL
Adopted: 7/11/94
GreSham'Barlow SD 10 Revised/Readopted: 1/11/015; 5/02/02

Orig. Code(s): GCL/GDL

Staff Development and Professional Growth*

Recognizing that student learning and employee performance is enhanced when staff members become a
community of learners, the district will provide on a continuing basis, a comprehensive staff development
program. The primary goal of the staff development program is improved student learning by improving
professional skills of educators. A meaningful and effective staff development program, therefore, should
then both raise and reflect the aspirations of staff, support district priorities and goals and provide a
collaborative learning environment which leads to the professional growth of all employees. The district
staff development program assists employees:

1. To extend vision of how he/she can better meet the needs of a diverse student population;

2. To improve initiative and capability to assist with changes expected in school services by his/her
school, the district, state and federal government;

3.  To motivate to contribute fully to achieving or exceeding job performance expectations;

4.  To encourage a rich sharing of ideas and collaboration leading to the use of more effective practices
and improved student performance;

5. To promote a safer and more productive learning environment for students, staff and community;

6.  To support continuing professional development (CPD) requirements as defined by Teacher
Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC) for license renewal.

All staff in the district are expected to contmually engage in staff development through professional study,
reading and discussions-tnde eve am. The district’s staff
development program supplements these activities by encouraging partlclpatlon in workshops, collegiate
coursework, conferences, collegial sharing, visitations and participation on school leadership teams and/or
improvement committees providing opportunities for staff to meet CPD requirements. Staff who
participate in professional growth opportunities are encouraged to share and reflect on their learning with
their colleagues. Staff development programs, whether provided directly by the district or through district
contracts with third parties, will provide appropriate reasonable accommodations to ensure such programs
are available to employees with disabilities.

Completion of CPD ptan requirements, as set forth in OAR Chapter 584, Division 090 by the TSPC for
license renewal, are the sole responsibility of the employee. The selection of the employee’s CPD advisor
shall be subject to approval by the individual’s supervisor.

END OF POLICY

Staff Development and Professional Growth* - GCL/GDL
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 329.095
ORS 329.125
ORS 329.704

OAR 581-022-0606
OAR 581-022-1720
OAR 584-018-0105
OAR 584-018-0205
OAR 584-090-0100 to-0120

Clackamas IED Assn. v. Clackamas IED, No. C-141-77, 3 PUB. EMPL. COLL. BARG. REP. 1848 (ERB 1978).

Eugene Educ. Ass'n v. Eugene Sch. Dist. 4], No. C-93-79, 5 PUB. EMPL. COLL. BARG. REP. 3004 (ERB 1980).

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2006); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2006).
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008.

R4/3/01 |NC

Staff Development and Professional Growth* - GCL/GDL
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/329.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/329.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/329.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584-018
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584-018
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584-090

Code: GCN/GDN
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Adopted: T/11/13

Evaluation of Staff

An effective evaluation program is essential to a quality educational program. It is an important tool to
determine the current level of a teacher’s performance of the teaching responsibilities. It is also an
important assessment of classified employees and current performance of their job assignments. Under
Board policy, administrators are charged with the responsibility of evaluating the staff. An evaluation
program provides a tool for supervisors who are responsible for making decisions about promotion,
demotion, contract extension, contract nonextension, contract renewal or nonrenewal, dismissal and
discipline.

Licensed Staff

Evaluation of licensed staff shall be conducted to conform with applicable Oregon Revised Statutes and
any applicable collective bargaining provisions.

Teachers’ evaluations shall be customized based on collaborative efforts and include the core teaching
standards adopted by the State Board of Education.

Evaluations must attempt to:
1.  Strengthen the knowledge, skills, disposition and classroom practices of teachers;

2. Refine the support, assistance and professional growth opportunities offered to a teacher, based on
the needs of the teacher and the needs of the school and district;

3. Allow the teacher to establish a set of classroom practices and student learning objectives that are
based on the individual circumstances of the teacher, including classroom and other assignments;

4.  Establish a formative growth process for each teacher that supports professional learning and
collaboration with other teachers;

5. Use evaluation methods and professional development, support and other activities that are based on
curricular standards and are targeted to the needs of the teacher.

Classified Staff

All classified employees will be formally evaluated by their immediate supervisor at least once during their
first year of employment and at least once every two years thereafter.

END OF POLICY

Evaluation of Staff - GCN/GDN
1-2



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 243.650
ORS 332.505
ORS 342.850
ORS 342.856

OAR 581-022-1720
OAR 581-022-1723
OAR 581-022-1724

Evaluation of Staff - GCN/GDN
2-2


http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-243
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022

Code: GCPB/GDPB
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Resignation of Staff *

A licensed staff member who wishes to resign from his/her position with the district must give written
notice at least 60 days prior to the date he/she wishes to leave district employment. The superintendent is
authorized to accept the resignation effective the day it is received and either release the teacher
immediately from further teaching or administrative obligations or inform the teacher that he/she must
continue teaching for part or all of the 60-day period.

Where less than a 60-day notice is given, the Board may request the Teacher Standards and Practices

Commission to suspend-for-theremainder-of-theschoot-yeardiscipline the licensee. Exceptions due to

emergency or other extenuating circumstances may be considered by the Board.

The superintendent is authorized to accept resignations of classified employees effective the day they are
received.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 342.553 ORS 652.140 OAR 581-022-1720

Pierce v. Douglas County Sch. Dist., 297 Or. 363 (1984).

HR9/24/09 | PH

Resignation of Staff * - GCPB/GDPB
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/652.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GCPC/GDPC
Adopted: 10/03/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Retirement of Staff

To assist the district in its planning efforts, staff members considering retirement are encouraged to notify
the district, preferably at the beginning of the school year, but no later than January 31 of the calendar year
in which the retirement will take place.

While it is not the intention of the district to engage in the common practice of providing employment for
district employees who retire, begin receiving benefits from the Public Employees Retirement system, and
request continued district employment, there may be circumstances where such an arrangement is in the
best interest of the district.

The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as may be necessary for district employees who
retire, begin receiving benefits from the Public Employees Retirement system, and request continued
district employment.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS Chapter 237

ORS Chapter 238
ORS 243.303

ORS 342.120

Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1161-1169 (2006).
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 29 U.S. C. §§ 1001-1461.
OR. CONST., art. IX, §§ 10-13.

4/4/03 | MW

Retirement of Staff - GCPC/GDPC
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/237.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/238.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/243.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html

Code: GCQA/GDQA
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Outside Employment

All employees are expected to accomplish those tasks required by the district.

Employees must avoid outside employment that interferes with the performance of their responsibilities
and the maintenance of productive relationships with students, parents and other staff members. If outside
employment interferes with job performance, the employee will be required to make a choice between
district employment and outside employment.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107

3/25/99 | MW

Outside Employment - GCQA/GDQA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html

Code: GCQB
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Research*

Employees are encouraged to participate in research for the development and improvement of education.

If an employee plans to engage in a research project during the work day or use district resources or
students, either for study toward advanced work or for use in classroom instruction, approval must be
secured from the superintendent. If the study results in material which would be useful to other employees,
it is recommended that it be made available for distribution throughout the district. For the protection of
all concerned, privacy rights of students or other individuals involved in research projects must be
protected.

Research which is conducted by or for a nondistrict employee must be approved by the superintendent or
designee.

Classroom-based research approved by the buttding principal is not subject to this policy.
Research publications, articles, materials, models and other items produced by district personnel for
district use with district time, money and facilities as part of an employee’s job responsibilities remain the

property of the district.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 1232¢g (2011); Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 34
C.F.R. Part 99 (2011).
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2006); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34
C.F.R. Part 98 (2006).

8/24/01 |NC

Research - GCQB
1-1



Code: GCQBA
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Copyrights and Patents

The Board asserts the district’s proprietary rights to publications, instructional materials and other devices
prepared by district employees during their paid work time. The Board also recognizes the importance of
encouraging its professional staff to engage in professional writing, research and other creative endeavors.
Publications, articles, materials, models and other items produced by district personnel for district use with
district time, money and facilities as part of an employee’s job responsibilities remain the property of the
district.

The district will apply for copyrights and patents when deemed appropriate by the superintendent.
Employees will be expected to cooperate in the district’s efforts.

In the event that an employee produces items described above partly on his/her own time and partly on
district time, the district reserves the right to claim full ownership. The employee, however, may petition
the district for assignment of copyright or patent rights. Employees will not attempt to copyright or patent
such items without the knowledge and consent of the superintendent.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 332.745

Copyrights, 17 U.S.C. §§ 101- 1332; 19 C.F.R. Part 133 (2006).
Patents, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1-376 (2006).

HR8/24/01 |[NC

Copyrights and Patents - GCQBA
1-1


http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html

Code: GDA
Adopted: 12/02/04
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 12/02/10

Educational Assistants

Educational assistants shall be hired by the Board upon recommendations of the superintendent.

All educational assistants must:

1. Have a high school diploma or the equivalent;

2.  Beatleastl8 years or older; and

3. Have standards of moral character as required of teachers.

In addition to the above, educational assistants providing translation services must have demonstrated
proficiency and fluency, knowledge of and ability to provide accurate translations from a language other
than English into English and from English into another language.

Educational assistants' who work in programs provide instructional support must have:

1.  Completed at least two-yearsofstudy 72 college quarter credit hours at an institution of higher
education; or

2. Obtained an associate’s or higher degree; or

3. Met arigorous standard of quality, and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local academic
assessment or para-professional certificate program, knowledge of, and the ability to assist in
instructing, as appropriate, reading/language arts, writing and mathematics or reading readiness,
writing readiness and mathematics readiness.

"Educational assistants may be assigned to: (1) provide one-on-one tutoring for eligible students, if the tutoring is scheduled at a
time when a student would not otherwise receive instruction from a teacher; (2) assist with classroom management, such as
organizing instructional and other materials; (3) provide assistance in a computer laboratory; (4) conduct parental involvement
activities; (5) provide support in a library or media center; (6) act as a translator; or (7) provide instructional services to students
while working under the direct supervision of a teacher. Educational assistants may assume limited duties that are assigned to
similar personnel who are not working in a program supported with Title I funds, including duties beyond classroom instruction
or that do not benefit participating children, so long as the amount of time spent on such duties is the same proportion of total
work time as prevails with respect to similar personnel at the same school.

These requirements do not apply to an educational assistant: (1) who is proficient in English and a language other than English
and who provides services primarily to enhance the participation of children in Title I programs by acting as a translator; or (2)
whose duties consist solely of conducting parental involvement activities.

Educational Assistants - GDA
1-2



The district will require individuals newly hired as Title I educational assistants who have met another
district’s academic assessments as set forth by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, to meet the district’s
academic assessment standards.

The general responsibilities of an educational assistant shall be outlined in a job description. The major
responsibility shall be to assist the classroom teacher, specialist or supervisor with instruction. The
educational assistants shall be under the supervision of the appropriately licensed classroom teachers,
specialist or supervisor. Other supporting tasks may include, but not limited to are: clerical support,
student control, personal care, translation or parent/family involvement activities and media center or
computer laboratory support.

Educational assistants shall not be used by the district or teacher as substitute teachers, unless the
educational assistant has a current Oregon teaching license. The responsibility for classroom supervision

remains with the teacher at all times.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107
ORS 332.505
ORS 342.120

OAR 581-022-1710(2)
OAR 581-037-0005 to -0025
OAR 584-005-0005(41)

OR. DEP’T OF EDUC., SUGGESTED PERSONNEL POLICY GUIDELINES FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS - EDUCATIONAL
No Child Left Behind Act 0of 2001, 20 U.S.C. § 6319 (20006).

The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212.

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008.

Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

2/24/11|PH

Educational Assistants - GDA
2-2


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/342.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_037.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_584/584_005.html

Code: GDC
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Recruitment of Classified Staff *

The superintendent will develop and maintain a recruitment program designed to attract classified
personnel to the district.

It is the responsibility of the superintendent, with the assistance of other district administrators, to
determine the district’s personnel needs and to locate most suitably qualified candidates to recommend for
district employment.

The search for classified staff members may extend to a wide variety of educational institutions and
geographical areas. Those factors considered will include, but not be limited to, the district’s diverse

characteristics.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 326.051 ORS 659A.109 OAR 581-021-0045
ORS 332.505 ORS 659A.142 OAR 581-022-1720
ORS 659.805 ORS 659A.145

ORS 659.850 ORS 659A.233

ORS 659A.009
ORS 659A.029
ORS 659A.030

ORS 659A.236
ORS 659A.309
ORS 659A.409

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2006).

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e (2006).

Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107 (2006).

Equal Pay Act of 1963, 29 U.S.C. § 206(d) (2006).

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 503, 791, 793-794 (2006).

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2006).

The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212.
Title IT of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008.

HR9/23/10 | RS

Recruitment of Classified Staff * - GDC
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/326.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_021.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

Code: GDIA
Adopted: 5/02/02

Gresham-Barlow SD 10

Notice of Employment *
The Board shall give, in writing, individual notices by May 30 to all employees for whom a teaching
license is not required.

The notices shall address reasonable assurance of continued employment as covered in the Oregon Revised
Statutes and Oregon Administrative Rules.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 332.554

OAR 581-022-1720(5)

HR7/10/00 | MW

Notice of Employment * - GDIA
1-1


http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/332.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_500/oar_581/581_022.html

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Janell Black
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 6 — Physical Restraint and Seclusion Review, 2013-14
EXPLANATION: As required by state law, the district annually reviews, analyzes

and makes a public reporting of the number of physical restraints
and seclusions used during a school year.

This is the district’s report on physical restraints and seclusions
for the 2013-14 school year.

The analyzed data is provided in the attached report.

PRESENTER: Janell Black

SUPPLEMENTARY Annual Physical Restratin and Seclusion Review, School Year
MATERIALS: 2013-2014

RECOMMENDATION: This data is provided as information only

REQUESTED ACTION: No action is needed

JB:lc



Annual Physical Restraint and Seclusion Review

School Year: 2013-2014 Date of Review: June 2014 Reviewer’s Names: Ben Kates, Teresa Stubbs, Amber Lindly
Date of Leadership Review: June 13,2014 Participants: Carl Smith, Deb Miller, Teri Pitts, Janell Black
Total Restraints 74 Economically Disadvantaged 50
Total Restraints by Level/ Program: Restrained more than 10 times
o Elementary 62 Restrained more than 15 minutes 1
o Middle 11 Restraints by Disability:
o High 1 o Autism Spectrum Disorder 15
o Post-secondary 0 o Communication Disorder 8
o Structured Skills Center 13 (incl. in above) o Emotional Disturbance 27
Students restrained greater than 10 times 0 o Intellectually Disabled 8
Number of restraints by demographic: o Other Health Impaired 6
o Hispanic or Latino 12 Restraints by Gender:
o American Indian or Alaska Native 0 o Male 52

(includes Natives of North, South
and Central America)

o Asian 0 o Female 22
o Black or African American 0
o Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander | 0 Injuries to Students during Restraints 0
o White 62 Injuries to Staff during Restraints 0
o Multi-racial English Language Learners 3
Students with no disability 10 Children of Migrant Parents 0
Students with disabilities 64
Restraints Performed by Untrained Staff *4 *Emergencies to protect student/others

SSSO:JB:bk:9.23.14 Multnomah Education Service District (MESD) programs data was reviewed by MESD and is not included in the counts above.



Total Seclusions 0 Economically Disadvantaged 0
Total Seclusions by Level/Program: Secluded more than 10 times 0
o Elementary 0 Secluded more than 15 minutes 0
o Middle 0 Seclusions by Disability 0
o High 0 Seclusions in Locked Room 0
o Post-secondary 0
o Structured Skills Center 0
Number of seclusions by demographic:
o Hispanic or Latino 0
o American Indian or Alaska Native 0 Seclusions by Gender:
(includes Natives of North, South
and Central America)
o Asian 0 o Male
o Black or African American 0 o Female
o Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander | 0
o White 0 Injuries to Students during Seclusions
o Multi-racial 0
Students with no disability 0
Students with disabilities 0 English Language Learners
Seclusions by untrained staff 0 Children of Migrant Parents

SSSO:JB:bk:9.23.14 Multnomah Education Service District (MESD) programs data was reviewed by MESD and is not included in the counts above.



Unique Findings/Concerns/
Highlights:

* The total of physical restraints was reduced from 103 in 2012-2013 to 74 in 2013-2014, a reduction of
28%.

* Restraints at the elementary level have been significantly reduced from 90 to 62 (-31%) following
consistent use of de-escalation techniques by school staff and monthly review and follow-up by
behavior coaches.

* Restraints at the Structured Skills Center have been drastically reduced from 38 to 13 (-66%) with
increased mental health support.

* No seclusions of students were necessary in 2013-2014.

Recommendations:

Behavior coaches will continue to review physical restraint, seclusion and suspension data monthly to ensure
students are getting the support they need.

Actions already taken:

None needed based upon this review.

SSSO:JB:bk:9.23.14 Multnomah Education Service District (MESD) programs data was reviewed by MESD and is not included in the counts above.




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter

DATE: October 2, 2014

RE: No. 7 - Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update

EXPLANATION: Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation updates are typically

presented every-other month. Accordingly, the Foundation’s
executive director, Victoria Alley, or a representative will be
present this evening to report on Foundation activities.

PRESENTER: Victoria Alley or a Foundation representative
SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

dc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Athena Vadnais
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 8 — District Advisory Council (DAC) Report
EXPLANATION: The most recent DAC meeting was held on September 11, 2014, at

Springwater Trail High School. Board members present were
Matt O’Connell, Carla Piluso, Kris Howatt, Dan Chriestenson, and
Sharon Garner.

This evening, the board will hear a report concerning the DAC

meeting.
PRESENTER: Athena Vadnais
SUPPLEMENTARY 1. Minutes of the September 11, 2014, DAC meeting
MATERIALS: 2. Draft of 2014-15 DAC Roster
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

dc



EVERY STUDENT
© PREPARED FOR SUCCESS °

2014-15

District Advisory Council Meeting
September 10, 2014

Springwater Trail High School

DAC Members present:

Deep Creek-Damascus |Teri Kane Powell Valley ES Sia Rezvani
Brandie Baseler

East Gresham ES Melissa Smith West Gresham ES ~ |Trisha Knobbs
Sharley Massman Michael Deveney

East Orient ES Midge Collins Clear Creek MS
Amy Buren

Hall ES Dexter McCarty MS |Melissa Smith

Highland ES Gordon Russell MS

Hogan Cedars ES Jennifer Levens West Orient MS

Hollydale ES Megan Johnson Gresham HS Dawn Bures

Matt Wells

Kelly Creek ES Sam Barlow HS Maria Grevstad

North Gresham ES Michelle Carter Springwater  Trail [Kelley Gilman
Diane Spencer HS

School Board Members: Matt O’Connell, Carla Piluso, Kris Howatt, Dan Chriestenson,
and Sharon Garner

Administrators: Jim Schlachter, Athena Vadnais, James Hiu, Teresa Ketelsen, Tim
Drilling, Linda Okazaki, Mike Schofield, Randy Bryant, Janell Black, and Terrence
Smyth.

-MINUTES-

Called To Order

Chair Matt Wells called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. and reviewed
the evening’s agenda.

District Introductions — Superintendent Jim Schlachter

Superintendent Jim Schlachter introduced the school board members. Members of his
district-level administrative team were also introduced.

Community Relations Director Athena Vadnais presided over DAC member
introductions. DAC guidelines and a list of member duties were passed out. Ms.

DAC Minutes — 9/2014
Page 1 of 2
DB:jnh



Vadnais gave a brief overview of the document and what was expected of the DAC
members. At least one representative from each school needs to attend all meetings, if a
representative is unable to fulfill their duties, they should contact their principal, so
another person can attend for them.

Athena spoke about the Key Communicator Network. DAC members are a part of that
network. There are two Key Communicator meetings a year, with two time options.
DAC members will be notified of the meetings.

Strategic Planning - Superintendent Jim Schlachter

Superintendent Schlachter also spoke about the Strategic Vision Planning Committee,
which will have its first meeting September 25. Students, parents, community
members, and staff wil be reviewing the district’s mission and vision and considering
what schools should be like in the year 2020.

Principal’s Report — Terrence Smyth, Principal of Springwater Trail High School
Terrence Smyth, Principal of Springwater Trail, spoke about his school. Affectionately
known as “The Trail” the school is in its 13 year. Mr. Smyth has been principal for the
last 8 years. People have a misconception of Springwater Trail. Is it specialty school?
Alternative school? Charter School? It is just a smaller high school with the same
requirements as our larger high schools. It’s a school that invests in the district’s most
vulnerable students. The smaller learning environment allows for closer relationships
with peers and more access to teachers and more personalized learning.

District Interaction with the Board — Board of Directors

We had some interaction with the School Board. Kris Howatt is one of our most
“senior” members. Carla and Dan have both been with the board around 5 years.
Sharon is the newest member. She replaces Dale Clark who retired from the board in
June. She has been involved with STEM after-school programs. When asked why she
wanted to be part of the Board, she said she was inspired to get involved and help with
the challenges of the district. She believes in opportunities for all students—equity and
diversity, especially gender equity with STEM. Matt talked about the importance of
our roles in DAC. He mentioned becoming involved as a parent with DAC 12 years
ago. He then became part of a budget committee and then eventually ran for the Board.

A question was asked of the board (specifically Dan) regarding support for a school
bond. It was felt that he didn’t support a bond for the district. He countered that he
did, in fact, support the bond. His desire was to refer the bond to the voters. When a
new bond is structured, communication will be very important, especially to voters
who do not have children in the district.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:00 p.m.

Minutes submitted by:
Dawn Bures
DAC Protem Secretary

DAC Minutes — 9/2014
Page 2 of 2
DB:jnh



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Teresa Ketelsen
Tim Drilling
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 9 — Achievement Compact Advisory Committee: Meeting Minutes
EXPLANATION: The most recent Achievement Compact Advisory Committee

meeting was held on September 11, 2014, in the Large Conference
Room at the District Office. Minutes of that meeting are being
provided with this executive summary as information only.

The Achievement Compact Advisory Committee is an advisory
committee appointed by the Gresham-Barlow School District
Board of Directors. Its purpose is to recommend goals and targets
for the 2014-15 Achievement Compact in a report to the school
board. (Refer to Action Items included with this agenda packet.)

The next Achievement Compact Advisory Committee meeting
will be held on February 9, 2015.

PRESENTERS: Teresa Ketelsen and Tim Drilling

SUPPLEMENTARY September 11, 2014, Achievement Compact Advisory Committee
MATERIALS: Minutes

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.

REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

dc



Gresham-Barlow School District
Achievement Compact Advisory Committee
September 11, 2014

4:00 - 6:00 p.m.

EVERY STUDENT

District Office Large Conference Room " PREPARSD FOR success

In attendance: Tim Collins, Renni Ferguson, Michelle Fulsher, Michelle Mercer,
Carlynn Capps, Lori Walter, Megan Sternberg, Molly Stewart, Maranda Turner, Jim
Schlachter

Facilitators: Tim Drilling and Teresa Ketelsen, District Office.

1. The meeting started at 4:05 p.m. with an overview of the agenda, and
introductions, including two new members: Carlynn Capps and Lori
Walter.

2. Minutes from the May 28 meeting were reviewed and approved.

3. Superintendent Schlachter talked about the origins of the Achievement

Compact Advisory Committee, and the evolution of the Oregon
Education Investment Board, now led by Nancy Golden, Oregon’s Chief
Education Officer, who followed Rudy Crew.

4. The group reviewed the work of the committee during the 2013-14 school
year, and also compared 2013-14 targets with actual end-of-year data. The
group then reviewed initial targets set during the May 28, 2014 meeting
for the 2014-15 school year. There was considerable discussion about the
possible impact of the Smarter Balanced Assessment on student
achievement results. The group adjusted some of the initial targets set
May 28, and then finalized recommendations to the Gresham-Barlow
School District Board of Directors.

5. The committee set its next meeting for February 9, 2015.

6. The meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m.



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Mike Schofield
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 10 — Nutrition Services Annual Report
EXPLANATION: Keely Malhiot will review the highlights of last year’s Nutrition

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:
REQUESTED ACTION:

MS:lc

Services Program.

The food service management company (Sodexo) employs a staff
of 90 plus to provide the nutrition services to approximately
12,000 students at 25 sites. Their main responsibility is preparing
and serving meals and meal supplements (snacks) to students and
participants in the National School Lunch and Breakfast
Programs.

The program runs on a cost-effective basis. The total of all direct
operating costs (including cost of food, supplies, wages, benefits,
and other direct costs) must not exceed total program revenues.
Our goals for the Nutrition Services Program includes: providing
nutritious, high-quality meals and snacks to students and
participants; accommodating special diets where medically
necessary; providing occasional catered food services; and,
improving nutrition awareness.

Mike Schofield

None
This report is being submitted as information only.

No action required.



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu
Linda Okazaki
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 11 - Enrollment and Class Size Report
EXPLANATION: This report is intended to provide the board with a general overview

of K-12 enrollment during the initial opening of school, and to
identify staffing adjustments that have been made to accommodate
enrollment numbers.

This year’s district enrollment as of September 24 totaled 11,120
students. Projections for 2014-15 were based on very modest growth.

In addition to the overall enrollment total, the attached enrollment
data provides information including class size averages and other
enrollment counts.

We will briefly share with the board some additional comments and
respond to any questions at the board meeting

PRESENTERS: James Hiu and Linda Okazaki
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: Gresham-Barlow School District Enrollment as of 9/23/14

RECOMMENDATION: None

REQUESTED ACTION: This report is being provided as information only; no formal action is
required.

JH:pkh:lc



Gresham-Barlow School District
ENROLLMENT as of 9/23/14

PSU
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 | 2015-16
9/21/12 9/24/13 9/23/14 Forecast
Elementary
K 792 783 771 865 874
1 855 846 831 930 924
2 788 840 847 973 948
3 790 791 865 984 992
4 861 778 822 888 1004
5 828 842 804 874 908
4914 4,880 4940 5514 5650
Middle School
6 879 840 890 985 911
7 882 887 863 931 1007
8 980 920 853 951 951
2741 2,647 2,606 2867 2869
High School
9 993 1,034 913 1023 986
10 940 960 941 1040 1004
11 892 874 899 907 1000
12 839 856 821 900 900
3664 3,724 3574 3870 3890
11,319 11,251 1,120 | | 12,251 12,409
Other:

Rosemary Anderson HS 60

L&C Montessori Charter 138

Alpha High School 60

Arthur Academy 112

Metro East Web Academy 341

CAL** 2

ALP 26

739

11,859

** CAL students are recorded in their home school




Middle Schools

9/23/14

14-15 Over/
School 6 7 8 Total proj. | (Under)
Clear Creek 220 212 209 641 652 (11)
Damascus 53 52 61 166 168 (2)
Dexter McCarty 203 195 191 589 582 7
Gordon Russell 260 266 250 776 751 25
West Orient 154 138 142 434 422 12
Total 890 863 853 2,606 2575 31
Core Sections 29.0 30.0 30.0 89.0
2014-15 Ratio 30.7 28.8 28.4 29.28
2013-14 Ratio 29.0 30.6 31.7
2012-13 Ratio 29.2 30.2 29.8
Elementary Schools
*14-15 | Over/
School K 1 2 3 4 5 * Total proj. | (Under)
Deep Creek 23 34 45 44 51 37 211 193 18
East Gresham 67 75 84 77 62 70 368 380 (12)
East Orient 47 60 64 78 71 80 353 334 19
Hall 103 88 81 84 82 77 412 418 (6)
Highland 93 88 82 97 83 65 415 405 10
Hogan Cedars 80 90 109 95 85 108 487 487 0
Hollydale 75 83 74 62 53 70 342 351 9)
Kelly Creek 87 87 88 89 102 94 460 460 0
North Gresham 82 91 101 89 95 98 474 448 26
Powell Valley 67 77 83 98 82 69 409 373 36
West Gresham 47 58 36 52 56 36 238 261 (23)
Total 771 831 847 865 822 804 4169 4110 59
Sections 29 30 29.5 29 27 24.5 169
2014-15 Ratio 26.6 27.7 28.7 29.8 304 328 24.7
2013-14 Ratio 28.0 27.9 29.3 31.8 32.0( 31.1 30.1
2012-13 Ratio 26.0 29.1 31.4 30.6 31.9( 304 29.7

* Does not include kindergarten




HIGH SCHOOLS

Over/
School 9 10 11 12 Total 14-15 Proj | (Under)
GHS 418 443 442 383 1686 1711 (25)
SBHS 452 457 415 401 1725 1774 (49)
STHS 43 41 42 37 163 165 2)
913 941 899 821 3574 3650 (76)
GHS Core Class Average
14-15 13-14 12-13
Math 28.2 33.0 35.8
Science 34.7 343 34.2
Social Studies 33.8 343 34.2
Language Arts 30.4 30.4 35.9
SBHS Core Class Average
14-15 13-14 12-13
Math 29.8 30.9 30.2
Science 33.0 35.2 30.0
Social Studies 34.1 33.0 31.6
Language Arts 32.8 31.3 30.9
STHS Core Class Average
14-15 13-14 12-13
Math 23.7 20.6 19.8
Science 20.8 17.3 18.0
Social Studies 21.0 19.5 19.4
Language Arts 19.0 16.6 18.0




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter
Tim Drilling

DATE: October 2, 2014

RE: No. 12 - Lewis & Clark Montessori Public Charter School Annual Evaluation and
Report

EXPLANATION: The Lewis & Clark Montessori Public Charter School (LCMCS)

competed its sixth year of operation in June 2013. In accordance
with ORS 338.095 (1), LCMCS must submit a report to the district
and the State Board of Education each year on the performance of
the school and its students in the preceding fiscal/school year.
This report must include, among other things, information
regarding the goals and assessments relating to student
performance.

Representatives from Lewis & Clark Montessori will present their
annual report to the board at the meeting.

An independent review of the Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter
School was conducted by Portland State University, and will be
included as part of the evaluation of this charter school.

PRESENTER: Tim Drilling

SUPPLEMENTARY Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation from
MATERIALS: Portland State University

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.

REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

TD:lc



GRADUATE SCHOOL OF EDUCATION

Center for Student Success

Lewis and Clark Montessori

Charter School Evaluation Report 2014
Gresham-Barlow School District

(7]
(7]
()
(O]
(O]
=
(7]
S~
©
()
()
(O]
S~
=
©
()
b3
©
Q
3
3
N
N
N

Portland State

UNIVERSITY




Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Charter School

Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School
15600 SE 232nd Drive

Damascus, OR 97089

503-427-0803

Charter Contacts

Melissa Harbert, Executive Director
503-427-0803
mharbert@Ilcmcs.org

Sponsoring School District
Gresham-Barlow School District

School District Contact

Tim Drilling, Executive Director of Assessment & Accountability
503-618-2450

drilling@gresham.k12.or.us

Center for Student Success Evaluator
Janice Adams

Center for Student Success Contact Information
503-725-9519

centerforsuccess@pdx.edu
www.pdx.edu/ceed/success

Evaluation Purpose
This evaluation is a third-party evaluation of the Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School during its
6th year of operation, 2013-2014.



Table of Contents

INErOAUCTION ...t e e 1-2
1.0 Mission-Specific Goals/Admissions & Enrollment...................... 34
2.0 Overall Student SUCCESS.......ccoerreieriniie et 4-6
3.0 Longitudinal Analysis of Student Achievement...........ccccoecuenee. 6-9
4.0 Federal Accountability: Student Performance & Programs........ 9-16
5.0 State Accountability......ccccecueieininirinrre e 16-25
6.0 Fiscal Performance and Accountability........ccocveveniniieineiceeennnn, 25-30
7.0 GOVEINANCE ..ottt 31-33
Conclusion/RecomMmeENdatioNnsS........oceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ee e eeeeeeeseeeeens 33-35
SUMMaAry of FINAINGS....ovvvieieiie ettt s 36
Appendix A: Evaluator Biography.......ccceeeceevene et 37
Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation RubricC.......ccccceeeevvivevvvvervennnne. 38-55

Portland State

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

INTRODUCTION

For the fifth consecutive year, Portland State University’s Center for Student Success (CSS) has been
contracted by the Gresham Barlow School District to conduct a comprehensive program evaluation of
their authorized charter school, Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School (LCMCS). These third-party
evaluation services focus on the school’s responsibility to fulfill the provisions of their charter with the
school district. Specifically, this evaluation is based upon the school’s performance relative to federal
and state statutes for the administration of charter schools, general standards of effective school
operation, and additional requirements identified by the school district as a condition of the charter
authorization.

The Center’s evaluation team revised our charter school rubrics to respond to the most recent state
statutory changes in Oregon state laws. We now use a common rubric for all charter school evaluations,
regardless of grade configuration, that includes recent data collection and accountability measures
required by ESEA and the Oregon Education Investment Board (OEIB). In order to provide an in-depth
and comprehensive evaluation, the Center’s rubric used for the evaluation of Lewis and Clark
Montessori Charter School includes the following seven areas of school functions critical to successful
school operation:

Mission-Specific Goals and Admissions & Enrollment
Overall Student Success

Longitudinal Analysis of Student Achievement

Federal Accountability: Student Performance & Programs
State Accountability

Fiscal Performance and Accountability

Ny .k wNe

Governance

Within each of these more general areas, specific competencies are identified that contribute to the
overall capability of the school to meet the expectations within the general areas of school operation. A
rating is assigned to each of the several areas and the range of the ratings includes: exceeding, meeting,
nearly meeting, and not meeting. The evaluator determines the rating on the basis of the review of the
evidence provided by the charter school as well as evidence collected during the site visit.

The site visit to LCMCS was conducted on May 22, 2014 and the CSS evaluator conducted this visit at
Damascus Middle School that housed the school’s lower and upper elementary school programs. Also,
the Center’s evaluator met with the chairperson from the school’s Board of Directors on June 26, 2014
in order to validate the level of school board compliance with the requirements for public meetings,
adherence to fiduciary responsibilities and statutes, and commitment on the part of the board to
leadership requirements and expectations.

School administrative staff consistently provided materials specific to the school’s program and
necessary for evaluation purposes in a timely and responsive manner. In addition to having extensive
access to interview and follow up with the school’s Executive Director, the evaluator also had the

Portland State Center for Student Success 1

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

opportunity to interview the school’s Education Director, the bookkeeper, a lower and upper
elementary teacher, and the Board Chair. The school’s office manager was also readily available to
provide requested materials. The opportunity to interview these key individuals, conduct an extensive
review of materials, and follow up with specific requests for additional information as needed were
extremely helpful and provided important insights into the school’s program.

Tim Drilling, Gresham Barlow School District Executive Director of Assessment & Accountability and
Melissa Harbert, LCMCS Executive Director reviewed this report prior to publication. The purpose of this
step in the evaluation process is to ensure that all information that is included in the final report is
factually accurate.

This report was commissioned by the Gresham Barlow School District administration and remains the
property of the school district.

Portland State Center for Student Success 2

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

1.0 MISSION-SPECIFIC GOALS/ ADMISSIONS & ENROLLMENT

1.1 Goals Specific to Mission Rating: Meeting
Has the charter school met its mission-specific goals as outlined in the contract with the

sponsoring School District?

Evidence:
e Charter School Agreement, August 27, 2010
e Exhibit B to Charter School Agreement
e Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School 2012 Charter Renewal Proposal
e Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Website
e Interviews with Executive Director and District Executive Director of Assessment &
Accountability
e Strategic Planning and Goals Documents

The mission of LCMCS as stated on the school’s website and in school documents is to “foster healthy
human development and a life-long love of learning in our community by providing a holistic approach
to education.”

Using the Montessori method of education, LCMCS helps student develop independent thought,
resourceful problem solving skills, and prepares students to make positive contributions in society.
“Critical to these outcomes is the development of the whole child: intellectually, socially, emotionally,
and physically. Montessori education prepares students for life.”

1.2 Student Admissions & Conditions of Enrollment Rating: Exceeding
Is there evidence that the charter school is following statutory and district guidelines regarding

student admission and enrollment?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Exhibit B to Charter School Agreement—Charter School Goals and Evaluation Guidelines
e Charter School Agreement—July 12, 2012

The Charter School Agreement ((July 12, 2012) between GBSD and LCMCS carefully outlines in Section 5
the Number of Grades (5.1), Number of Students (5.2) and Minimum Number of Students in School
(5.3). Section 5.1 states that “During the 2012-13 school year, LCMCS may provide instruction to
students in grades kindergarten through sixth grade. During the 2013-14 school year, a seventh grade
will be added. During the 2014-15 school year and in subsequent years, LCMCS may add an eighth
grade. It is the understanding of the parties that LCMCS is proposed to operate a K-8 school.”

Portland State Center for Student Success 3

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Further, the revised Charter Agreement (July 2012) specifically outlines in sections 5.2.1, 5.2.2, 5.2.3,
5.2.4, and 5.2.5 the maximum student enrollment acceptable for admission in each of the grades for
school years 2012-13 through 2016-2017.

In addition, this section of the agreement identifies the minimum number of students that must be
maintained for the school’s continued operation. Section 6 (Enrollment and Admission) speaks to the
following areas: eligibility, deadlines, process for application and enrollment, use of waiting lists,
enrollment phases, non-discriminatory practices, and limitation for nonresident students. The school
has worked to carefully comply with this expectation with the addition of grades only as outlined in the
agreement. In 2013-14, the school added a grade with the addition of a middle level program (7" grade
with 14 students and a total school enrollment of 221).

Since the inception of the LCMCS, applications for enrollment compared to actual enrollment has been

as follows:
Year Applications Enrollment
2008-09 95 82
2009-10 172 114
2010-11 221 144
2011-12 258 180
2012-13 341 204
2013-14 373 221

School administration continues to comply with the expectations of the school district related to grade
levels for the overall program as well as specified numbers for total school enrollment. Additionally, the
success of the school program is noted given the ongoing growth in both of these areas. The school
enjoys a 96% retention rate that reflects the commitment of parents to this program and its offerings.

2.0 OVERALL STUDENT SUCCESS

2.1 Enroliment/Retention/Attendance Rating: Meeting
To what extent are students making academic progress as measured by enrollment/retention rates and
attendance?

Evidence:

e Interview with Executive Director

e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)

e LCMCS Website

e School Attendance data

e Documents that include LCMCS 2013-14 Lottery Totals and LCMCS Enrollment by
Grade/Ethnicity

e Charter School Agreement—July 12, 2012

Portland State Center for Student Success 4

UNIVERSITY




Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

e Charter School Agreement dated August 27, 2010

The Charter School Agreement dated August 27, 2010 clearly outlined the expectations of the GBSD
related to enrollment and admissions for LCMCS in section 6 (Enrollment and Admissions). Section 6.1
outlines the standards and expectations for “Voluntary Enrollment: Who is Eligible”:

These requirements will follow District policies relating to admission of students into
any grade. Students must meet the age requirements for kindergarten as outlined in the
District Policy. Other than the age of a student and the preferences allowed by law, the
preference for District residents described in Section 6.8, and the preference in the first
year for students who are children of LCMCS founders, provided that the Oregon
Department of Education approves a waiver request from LCMCS, there will be no
criteria for selection of students...

The Charter Agreement in section 6 further clarifies the expected application process for the first year,
second and additional phases of enrollment, use of waiting lists, preferences after the first year of
operation, nondiscrimination, nonresident students and limitations, and application and enrollment for
special education students.

General information about the enroliment lottery process is available on the school’s website. A 2014-
2015 Student Enrollment Application is also available on the school’s website. The application requests
basic information that is required for application as well as supplemental information that includes a
request for IEP information and communication to the school. This statement, “If your child is currently
on an Individual Education Plan please notify your IEP team to discuss if LCMCS is the right educational
environment for your child” has been reviewed by the District Special Education team as was
recommended in the 2012-13 evaluation report. Their opinion is that the information is useful to
parents as they consider changing schools. It is wording that replaced discriminatory questions that
were asked on an application in previous years.

Staff from LCMCS also submitted for review the following breakdown of student enroliment information
for 13-14 that includes both grade level numbers and ethnicity information:

GRADE Total Hispanic | White | American | Asian | Black/African Native Two
Enrollment Indian/ American Hawaiian/ or
Alaskan Other More
Kindergarten 32 2 27 0 0 0 0 3
1 33 2 25 0 0 0 0 6
2 34 6 23 0 1 0 0 4
3 31 2 25 0 0 0 0 4
4 33 5 19 0 1 0 0 8
5 28 1 25 0 0 0 0 2
6 16 3 11 0 0 0 0 2
7 14 2 11 0 0 0 0 1
221 23 166 0 2 0 0 30

Portland State

UNIVERSITY Center for Student Success 5




Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

It is significant to note that LCMCS continues to maintain a 96% retention rate and maintains a waiting
list that is used for their lottery process in order to allow additional students into each grade level. This
indicator demonstrates the school’s proven ability to retain as well as attract new students—and it
provides assurance that a successful trend in school enrollment and retention should continue.

The state of Oregon Achievement Compact looks at an attendance indicator based on the number of
students attending school 90% of the time, or more. This indicator identifies the percentage of students
who are not chronically absent. The LCMCS attendance for 2013-14 using this indicator was 88.2%. The
Annual Measurable Achievement Objective (AMAO) for attendance is 92%.

The CSS evaluator suggests the school review attendance expectations and put practices in place to
ensure that a high number of students attend 90% or more school days.

2.2 Parent Satisfaction Rating: Meeting

To what extent do parent survey respondents indicate satisfaction with students' academic progress and
the educational program?

Evidence:
e |nterview with Executive Director

e |nterview with Board Chair

Due to emergent needs related to facilities, hiring staff, and enrolling additional students, the Executive
Board made the decision not to conduct a parent satisfaction survey this year. They intend to continue
the practice of administering parent and community surveys in the future, as they are important tools
for school improvement.

Parent involvement in the school is substantial. All families are asked to offer the school 40 hours of
“service to our community” each year. Open houses are held and 4-5 parent information nights are held
each year. Over 2,850 hours of volunteer time was recorded in 2013-2014.

3.0 LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

3.1 Student Achievement: Reading Rating: Nearly Meeting
Over time has student achievement in Reading improved measurably?

Evidence:
e 2013-14 Oregon Report Card (Preliminary)
e 2012-13 Oregon Report Card
e OAKS Report 2012-13, 2013-14
e Interview with the Executive Director

Portland State Center for Student Success 6

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

The purposes of the Oregon Statewide Assessment Program, as reported
on the ODE website, are (1) to provide information on individual student
achievement on performance standards set by the State Board of
Education at grade and benchmark levels; (2) to provide information for
federal ESEA requirements and for policy decisions by the legislature, the
governor, the State Board of Education, and local school districts; (3) to

support instructional program improvement efforts; and (4) to inform the
public about student achievement in Oregon schools. Additionally,
beginning with the class of 2012, components of the state assessment

system will be one means of demonstrating proficiency on Essential Skills
required for receiving an Oregon diploma.

The ODE website provides cautions when comparing OAKS student achievement data over previous
years’ data given changes in Common Core State Standards and the adoption of new “cut scores”
effective for the 2011-12 school year. As a result, the 2013-14 results for LCMCS are presented in
comparison only to the prior year’s results, 2012-13.

The chart below reports summary data for individual grades (grades 3, 4, 5, and 6) for reading and
literature from 2012-13 as compared to the same for the school year 2013-14. In addition, the school
added a 7" grade program during 2013-14 and this data is also reflected in this chart.

OAKS Reading & Literature
Percent of Students Meeting or Exceeding Benchmarks

Lewis & Clark Montessori Gresham Barlow State of Oregon
District
2012-2013 School Year
Grade 3 71% 59% 66%
Grade 4 67% 61% 73%
Grade 5 55% 61% 68%
Grade 6 87% 61% 63%
2013-2014 School Year
Grade 3 69.2% 57.6% 66.2%
Grade 4 59.4% 63.6% 72%
Grade 5 64% 58% 67.6%
Grade 6 56.2% 60.4% 64.6%
Grade 7 92.9% 73.5% 73.9%

There is no consistent pattern of improvement in LCMCS student performance on OAKS Reading &
Literature from one grade level to another or for comparison with commensurate groups in GBSD as
well as from across the state. The 3™ graders in 2013-14 demonstrated higher levels of performance
than either group. However, scores in grades 4 and 6 were lower than the GBSD and the state, and 5%
graders scored higher than other GBSD 5% graders but lower than the state.

Portland State Center for Student Success 7

UNIVERSITY




Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Noting the school’s high retention rate, it is reasonable to assume that 2013-14 fourth graders were the
previous year’s third graders. The decline from 71% meeting in 2012-13 to 59.4% meeting in 2013-14
suggests that an additional review of this grade level’s reading and literature curriculum is warranted.

2012-13 was the school’s first year of offering a 6™ grade program and the 6" graders demonstrated
exceedingly high levels of success in meeting or exceeding reading and literature benchmarks at an 87%
rate. The 7" grade scores rose to 92.9, a significantly higher rate of performance than the
commensurate groups in GBSD as well as from across the state.

3.2 Student Achievement: Math Rating: Not Meeting
Over time has student achievement in Math improved measurably?

Evidence:
e 2013-14 Oregon Report Card (Preliminary)
e 2012-13 Oregon Report Card
o OAKS Report 2012-13, 2013-14
e Interview with the Executive Director

OAKS Math & Science
Percent of Students Meeting or Exceeding Benchmarks

Lewis & Clark Montessori Gresham Barlow State of Oregon
District
2012-2013 School Year
Grade 3 49% 50% 61%
Grade 4 41% 51% 64%
Grade 5 (math) 20% 47% 58%
Grade 5 (science) 85% 64% 67%
Grade 6 53% 58% 59%
2013-2014 School Year
Grade 3 42.3% 46.8% 59.7%
Grade 4 34.4% 55.5% 63.7%
Grade 5 (math) 32% 47.5% 59.4%
Grade 5 (science) 72% 61% 68.5%
Grade 6 25% 49.8% 58.5%
Grade 7 78.6% 59.8% 62.7%

As with the OAKS Reading and Literature student performance, there is no consistent pattern of
improvement in LCMCS student performance on OAKS Reading & Literature from one grade level to
another or for comparison with commensurate groups GBSD as well as from across the state. As in
2012-13, this year’s 3™ graders underperformed in math achievement relative to both commensurate
groups in the GBSD as well as from across the state. This same pattern holds true for the school’s 4", 5t,
and 6™ graders. The 20% rate of meeting for 5" graders for 2012-13 is only slightly improved in the
2013-14 6™ grade 25% rate of meeting. Given the continuing pattern of low math achievement on the

Portland State Center for Student Success 8

UNIVERSITY




Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

state’s standardized tests, a thorough review of the LCMCS math curriculum and its alignment with
state standards for the 3", 4", and 5" grade levels is highly recommended by the CSS evaluator.

7™ graders at LCMCS outperformed the GBSD and state groups and demonstrated a high level of
performance for math. This was the first year for 7" graders at the school. It will be important to
recognize that the low 6" grade performance rate could be reflected again in 7t" grade scores if the
math curriculum is not adequately preparing students for the standardized tests.

5t grade science rates of meeting or exceeding in 2012-13 and in 2013-14 were higher than the district
and state rates; however, it is important to note the drop from 85% in 2012-13 to 72% in 2013-14.

3.3 Comparative Student Achievement Rating: NA

How does the charter school's performance compare to the sponsoring school district and the
state as a whole?

Evidence:
e Interview with Executive Director
e OAKS Report—2011-2012, 2013-2014 (Preliminary)
e 2013 Annual School Report

Data presented in Sections 3.1 and 3.2 include scores of LCMCS students in reading and mathematics in
comparison to statewide results and in comparison to other students in the Gresham-Barlow School
District. As the results are significantly varied for each of the content areas, see these sections for more
specific analysis.

4.0 FEDERAL ACCOUNTABILITY: STUDENT PERFORMANCE & PROGRAMS

4.1 Student Achievement Rating: Not Meeting

Did the charter school meet Oregon Annual Measurable Objectives in reading and math, as well
as for graduation, attendance and participation, approved through the Federal 2012 ESEA
waiver process?

Evidence:

2013-14 School Report Card (Preliminary)

2012-13 School Report Card

2011-12,2012-13, 2013-14 OAKS Reports

ODE School Rating Report: 2012-13

Preliminary 2013-14 ODE Report Card Rating Details

The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB, Public Law 107-110) required the state of Oregon to
annually determine whether schools, districts, and the state have made adequate yearly progress (AYP)

Portland State

UNIVERSITY Center for Student Success 9



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

toward the goal of having all students meet rigorous state academic standards by the 2013-2014 school
year. For the past several years, the performance of students in all schools, districts, and the state as
well as demographic subgroups of students, has been measured using the Oregon Assessment of
Knowledge and Skills (OAKS) with annual results compared against annual performance targets. In fall
2011, however, Congress announced that as a feature of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
(ESEA) reauthorization, states would have the opportunity to request flexibility from specific mandates
while maintaining a strong commitment to accountability and high standards for all students.

As a result, In January 2012, Oregon submitted an ESEA flexibility proposal to develop its own
alternatives to meeting federal accountability standards for public schools. With the approval of the
application in July 2012, Oregon began the work of retooling the mechanisms of the ESEA, or No Child
Left Behind Act, to create a more accountable and responsive system to meet the needs of Oregon
students and to strengthen Oregon schools.

The Oregon Department of Education’s website includes an Executive Summary of Oregon’s Approved
ESEA Flexibility Waiver which highlights the core elements of Oregon’s interim accountability system,
some of which were implemented in 2012-2013 and some of which continued to be developed and
refined as part of an application for extension of the waiver submitted in May 2014. Selected elements
of the new accountability system that pertain to LCMCS include the following:

e Replacing the federal system of Adequate Yearly Progress (met/not met designation) with an
“interim accountability system” for the 2012 report that will (1) use the existing Oregon Report
Card methodology to provide a rating of Outstanding, Satisfactory, or In Need of Improvement
for all schools; (2) include a report that describes a school’s performance for all students and
subgroups next to an Annual Measurable Objective (AMO) of 70% for reading and math (67% for
graduation); and (3) use a modified version of the Colorado Rating System to identify Title |
schools that need support (priority & focus schools) or that are performing well (model schools).

e Focusing on individual student growth in core skills of reading and math, in addition to
achievement and graduation, to differentiate between the performances of Oregon’s schools.

e Focusing on closing the achievement gap between all students and those historically
underserved.

e Developing a new report card that (1) creates a single system of accountability for the state that
is both understandable to the public and aligned with key outcomes identified in the
achievement compact; (2) more accurately reflects growth to (and beyond) standards as a
desirable outcome for Oregon’s students; and (3) looks beyond standardized test scores in
reading and math, to measures of broader content, more complex thinking skills, and
characteristics critical to success in college and workplace.

Prior to the approval of its ESEA Flexibility Waiver, Oregon was required under NCLB to make annual
determinations of whether schools and districts made Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) toward the goal
of having all students meet rigorous state academic standards by the 2013-2014 school year. For the
2011-2012 reports, Oregon produced Annual Measurable Objective (AMO) reports in place of AYP
reports. Although these reports still described performance against rigorous standards, they did not

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 10



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

make the AYP determinations of Met or Not Met. For 2012-13, the Next Generation Accountability
reporting system replaced these reports.

As the LCMCS grew into a K-4 school for the first year in 2010-11, that was the first year in which they
received a School Report Card rating and their AYP for the year was rated as “Outstanding.” The
following year as they grew and added a fifth grade, their Report Card rating was “Satisfactory” in their
AMOs.

One of several factors in computing a school’s final rating is whether it met the AYP goals set by the
federal government in No Child Left Behind for various subgroups of students who have special learning
needs. For the 2011-12 school year the school’s Hispanic subgroup had 66.7% of students meeting or
exceeding benchmarks in Language Arts and 50% meeting or exceeding in math. For the school’s
students with disabilities, 42.9% met or exceeded benchmarks in Language Arts while only 5% of these
same students met or exceeded in math.

In 2011-12, as part of the ESEA Waiver, ODE designed and piloted new school and district report cards
and implemented a new school rating system effective for the 2012-13 school year. The new report card
was made available to the public in October 2013. Schools receive an Overall rating level based on
performance indicators for Academic Achievement, Academic Growth, and Subgroup Growth (high
school ratings include Graduation and Subgroup Graduation points). Levels are calculated using the
percentage of points earned out of the total points eligible. For a school with data on all indicators, the
total points possible are 25 for Academic Achievement, 50 for Academic Growth, and 25 for Subgroup
Growth (high school level calculations include Graduation and Subgroup Graduation points). While
schools do not receive points for student participation, not meeting participation targets for all
subgroups and subjects lowers the Overall Level by one.

In 2012-13, LCMCS received an Overall Level of 2 on the report card. Academic Achievement was Level 3
and Academic Growth was Level 2. Subgroup Growth was not rated for LCMCS since the subgroups did
not meet the minimum size required to receive an Achievement rating (40 tests in the last two years
combined) and also did not have at least 30 students with growth percentiles. Subgroup data not part of
the achievement rating was included on the report card to provide additional information on subgroup
performance. For the 2012-13 school year the school’s Hispanic/Latino subgroup had 72.7% of students
meeting or exceeding benchmarks in Reading and 36.4% meeting or exceeding in math. For the school’s
students with disabilities, 11.1% met or exceeded benchmarks in Reading while 11.1% of those same
students met or exceeded in math. The information for 2013-14 will be made available to the public in
October 2014.

The preliminary 2013-14 ODE Report Card Rating Details again shows LCMCS receiving an Overall Level 2
rating. Academic achievement in Reading declined slightly for all students and the Academic Growth
percentile (student growth compared to peers throughout the state) is On Track. Academic achievement
in Math declined slightly for all students and the Academic Growth percentile for the second year is Not
On Track. The information for 2013-14 will be made available to the public in October 2013.

Portland State Center for Student Success 11

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

4.2 Highly Qualified Compliance Rating: Meeting
Do staff members teaching core academic subjects meet the requirements for "highly
qualified"?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Review of LCMCS Teaching Staff Credentials document
e Discussion with the GBSD Human Resources Department

The federal No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 requires all teachers in core academic subjects to be highly
qualified in the areas of teaching assignments. Teachers are considered to be highly qualified if they 1)
have a bachelor’s degree; 2) have a full state certification; and 3) have demonstrated subject-matter
competence in the area(s) taught.

The charter school law in Oregon requires that a minimum of 50% of teachers in a charter school must
be Oregon certified by the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC). Any teacher not Oregon
certified must still be registered with TSPC as a charter school teacher as well as pass an ORELA exam in
order to be licensed to teach in a charter school. For the 2013-14 school year, 62% of the teaching staff
was Oregon certified.

The following is a breakdown of staff licenses for LCMCS as submitted to evaluators by the Executive
Director:

e Full-time Teachers (1.0 FTE) — five with Oregon licenses

.5 teacher (.5 FTE) —two with Oregon licenses

.2 teacher (.2 FTE) —one with Oregon license

Full-time teachers (4.0 FTE)—four with charter school registration and HQ Status

Full-time administrator (1.0 FTE) —one with charter school administrator registration

The school’s administrative and office staff have worked diligently to more carefully monitor and
communicate to all staff their expectations related to licensing requirements and expectations after a
2013 finding of a teacher not meeting licensing requirements. The actions required by the GBSD for
compliance were carried out by the LCMCS administration. In another incident related to teacher
licenses noted by the school district, a miscommunication between licensing agencies was cleared up
and the school was in compliance.

School administration worked closely with GBSD throughout the 2013-14 to assured that licensure and
HQ status was appropriately monitored and reported. Their efforts have greatly reduced the impact on
the sponsoring district for ensuring that teachers meet the requirements for being “highly qualified.”

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 12



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

4.3.a_English Language Learners — Programs Rating: Meeting
Does the charter school implement appropriate practices in providing programs to English

Language Learners (ELL)?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)

Oregon Administrative Rule 581-0210-0046(8) requires public charter schools to (1) develop and
implement a plan for identifying students whose primary language is other than English; and (2) provide
those students with “appropriate programs” until they are able to effectively participate in regular
classroom instruction. In essence, a charter school must provide an English Language Learner with
instruction to improve English proficiency and provide access to academic content. ELL students must
also be assessed annually in English for proficiency (ELPA) in reading, writing, speaking, and listening.

All identified English language learners participate in ELPA annually as part of the Oregon State
Assessments, including those whose parents have waived services until they are able to be exited from
the program as proficient based on approved exit criteria. Students who are on monitor status,
however, do not participate in ELPA. ELL identified students at LCMCS are tested each year with the
GBSD adopted assessment (Woodcock-Munoz or pre-LAS) to ensure that adequate progress and growth
is being made.

One LCMCS teacher currently holds an ESOL endorsement (ECE/ELE authorization) and this meets TSPC
requirements related to staff certification for providing ELL services to identified students.

LCMCS provides a comprehensive explanation of its ELL services in the revised Student and Family
Handbook. A program description and the requirements of the federal law are explained, program goals
are outlined, the process for identification of students is clarified and very specific information is
included about ELL students who may be coming from another school district. An explanation of the
Home Language Survey developed by the District is included as is a description of the way in which ELL
eligibility is determined and how to obtain additional information if needed. To have all of this material
available for interested families in other languages would provide another enhancement.

4.3.b_English Language Learners — Monitoring Progress Rating: Exceeding
Does the charter school work to assess ELL students and monitor their progress so that they can

succeed in the charter school program?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)
e GBSD website and ELL Plan

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 13



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

The Oregon School Report Card for 2012-13 reports 201 students enrolled in the LCMCS program. ELL
enrollment is not displayed in order to maintain confidentiality of students due to the small number
enrolled. In its 2013-2016 ELL Plan, the Gresham Barlow School District reported 1,452 ELL students
enrolled in 2012-13, comprising 12% of the district’s total student population.

Given the exceedingly small number of ELL students currently attending the school, staff monitors ELL
student progress to ensure that adequate progress is being made. They administer the appropriate
test(s) to the school’s ELL students and validate that placement and service(s) are monitored and
continue to be appropriate.

The school’s Executive Director plans to do more community outreach to local residents who work in the
area’s agricultural industry in order to make certain that they have information about the Montessori
program and its ELL services. Given this effort, staff are hopeful that this population of students served
by the LCMCS will grow.

Only a small number of ELL students are served by the school and the report card rating does not
include ELL academic achievement and growth data due to the small number of students tested. The
“Exceeding” rating in this area reflects a well-developed plan that is in place to assess potential ELL
students and to monitor their progress.

4.4 Special Education Delivery of Services Rating: Meeting

Are requlatory guidelines implemented for IDEA-eligible students so that sponsoring districts
take responsibility for providing special education to charter school students?

Evidence:
e Interview with Executive Director
e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)
e LCMCS 2012-13 Annual Report

As specified by HB 2299 the following hold true: “...all students attending a charter school are
considered residents of the district in which the charter school is located, regardless of parent residency.
The new resident district has responsibility for providing a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) for
children with disabilities under IDEA and for implementing a comprehensive special education system
for all students enrolled/attending charter school. HB 2299 mandates parent notification regarding
these changes.”

Following the passage of HB 2299, the relationship between the District and LCMCS changed relative to
the delivery of special education services. GBSD employees are part of the Student Assistance Team
(SAT) and provide specialized services to IDEA-eligible students.

The revised Student and Family Handbook provides comprehensive information related to students with
special needs and disabilities including procedures for referral to the SAT, the best course of action for

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 14



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

evaluating, accommodating and/or serving the student within the regulations and options available,
development of an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) based on eligibility, and a description of who
might provide services to the student, as per the IEP.

The handbook contains the following statement: “LCMCS staff and personnel will comply with State and
Federal law regarding an incoming student identified as a special education students. The Administrator
at LCMCS will meet with the servicing district’s special education team to discuss the services required
and implementation need for the incoming student, as well as appropriateness of placement in the
charter school.” It is the recommendation of the CSS evaluator that the School District Special
Education staff (and legal counsel) review this statement for legal compliance with federal and state
guidelines for public schools and access and admission of special education students.

4.5 Section 504 Services Rating: Meeting

To what extent are regulatory guidelines implemented for Section 504-eligible students?

Evidence:
e Interview with Executive Director
e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)

The Student and Family Handbook clearly details LCMCS’s commitment to providing equal opportunities
for all students and outlines 504 referral processes and plan accommaodations provided by the school.
The school is prepared to make appropriate accommodations and provide appropriate supports to assist
students in meeting their educational goals. Referrals for 504 consideration may begin with teachers or
parents by talking to the Executive Director or the 504 coordinator.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (Meeting) or not in compliance (Not Meeting) with this requirement.

4.6 Free/Reduced Price Lunch Rating: Meeting

Does the school follow federal guidelines for identifying students for program eligibility and for
safeguarding student privacy?

Evidence:
e Interview with Executive Director
e  Materials submitted by office manager
e Student and Family Handbook (Revised 2013)
e School website

LCMCS participates in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and receives reimbursement for
lunches served.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 15



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

All school registration materials include pertinent information regarding participation requirements for
the free and reduced lunch program. Also, more extensive information about program participation is
included in the Student and Family Handbook, which was expanded in 2013 to include very specific
information (page 14) about Free and Reduced Lunch Eligibility Procedures for completion of an
application, eligibility determination and processing, timelines, and confidentiality assurances.

The handbook also includes other fee information that outlines for families additional areas of financial
assistance available to them if they qualify for the free and reduced lunch program. Included in this
expanded information are the programs and fees that may be eligible for reductions, reduction rates
(percentages) for the identified programs, process for securing fee reductions, and notification process
to parent-recipients of fee reductions.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (Meeting) or not in compliance (Not Meeting) with this requirement.

5.0 STATE ACCOUNTABILITY

5.1.a Non-Discriminatory Practices — Access to Programs Rating: Exceeding
Is the charter school complying with statutory guidelines for non-discriminatory practices in

regard to student access to programs?

Evidence:
e Charter School Agreement (August 27, 2010)
e Interview with Executive Director
e Student and Family Handbook (2013)

As stated in the LCMCS Charter School Agreement with the Gresham-Barlow School district (August
2010), the school’s admission policies and protocols align with federal and state charter school
admission regulations and guidelines.

Page one of the LCMCS Student and Family Handbook includes a lengthy narrative titled
“Nondiscrimination Policy.” Within this policy statement, information is detailed related to non-
discrimination on the “basis of an individual’s race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, marital
status, sexual orientation or age.” Also included in this section of the handbook are statements
addressing Title IX. This section describes forms of discriminatory treatment as well as processes for
“Dealing with Discrimination.” As was indicated in the 2013 evaluation report, it is again noted that
this section of the handbook, while important in terms of legal compliance, consistently used the term
“district” rather than the correct term and reference to the “school” as the non-discriminatory entity.
This incorrect reference suggests that it was taken directly from a district document and was not
corrected when it was included in the handbook. This oversight should be corrected.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 16



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

The 2013 updates to the Student and Family Handbook significantly improved in the area of
communication to student and families regarding services available to students with disabilities as well
as English Language Learners (ELLs). Pages 15-19 carefully outline the following: (1) the role of and work
of the school’s Student Support Team; (2) the parameters for special education and IDEA legal
responsibilities for schools; (3) policies and procedures for services delivered to LCMCS special education
students; (4) 504 Plan and accommodations; and (5) ELL services (goals, identification of students, home
language survey, determination of eligibility, process for refusal of services).

5.1.b Non-Discriminatory Practices — Staff Hiring Rating: Exceeding
Is the charter school complying with statutory guidelines for non-discriminatory practices in
regard to staff hiring?

Evidence:

e Interview with Executive Director
e LCMCS Employee Handbook (revised August 2013)

The Employee Handbook contains the statement “LCMCS does not discriminate in employment
opportunities or practices on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin,
age, marital status, disability, “whistleblowers” (those who report legal violations), victims of domestic
violence, sexual assault or stalking, or any other characteristics protected by law. This policy governs all
aspects of employment, including selection, job assignment, compensation, discipline, termination, and
access to benefits and training.”

Page one of the LCMCS Student and Family Handbook includes a lengthy narrative titled
“Nondiscrimination Policy.” Within this policy statement, information is detailed related to non-
discrimination on the “basis of an individual’s race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, marital
status, sexual orientation or age.” Also included in this section of the handbook are statements
addressing Title IX. This section describes forms of discriminatory treatment as well as processes for
“Dealing with Discrimination.” It is again noted that this section of the handbook, while important in
terms of legal compliance, consistently used the term “district” rather than the correct term and
reference to the “school” as the non-discriminatory entity. The Executive Director will make sure that
the website is correct when the revisions for the 2014-15 school year are completed.

The handbook also describes employment categories (including the fact that employees at LCMCS are

IM

overall classified by law as “at will” employees), employment reference checks, employment
applications, performance evaluation, and job descriptions. Job descriptions are created and maintained
for the stated purpose of: “. . . orienting new employees to their jobs, identifying the requirements of
each position, establishing hiring criteria, setting standards for employee performance evaluations, and

establishing a basis for making reasonable accommodations for individuals with disabilities.”

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 17



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

5.2.a Curriculum - Standards Rating: Meeting

Does the content of the curriculum meet state standards?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director and the Education Director
e 2012 Charter Renewal Proposal
e Curriculum notebooks (Grades K-3 and Grades 4-7)
e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)
e Exhibit B to Charter School Agreement
e LCMCS website

In a guide for charter school sponsorship published by the Oregon Department of Education, it is stated
that charter schools must incorporate all state content standards into their curriculum, participate in the
statewide assessment system, and comply with all health and safety, instructional minutes, special
education, and civil rights laws. However, they have some flexibility in terms of curriculum, structure,
schedule, staffing, and are exempt from some regulations applicable to traditional public schools.

It is evident that LCMCS adheres closely to the Montessori philosophy and commitment to a curriculum
that helps student develop independent thought, resourceful problem solving skills, and prepares
student to make positive contributions in society. The philosophy and teaching methodology is clearly
valued by the students and parents of the school.

The July 2012 revised Charter School Agreement outlined expectations for the school program and
curriculum that the staff at LCMCS have complied with by preparing a comprehensive outline of their
curriculum and aligning it with state requirements. Each grade level “curriculum Correlation” document
categorizes specific core content areas in the following areas: Oregon State Common Curriculum goals,
Oregon Standards, Montessori curriculum, and Lewis and Clark Montessori Extensions. As grade level
requirements for core curriculum and standard expectations are expanded at specified grade levels,
additional specifics are added to the curriculum documents that develop and expand this area of the
required curriculum as when LCMCS added 6™ grade in 2012-13 and 7" grade in the fall of 2013. As the
school continues to develop its “middle level” program with the addition of the 8" grade in 2014,
curricular materials will need to be in place and will need to align with state expectations.

Again this year, CSS evaluators suggest that the school’s website and student and family handbook
include additional information (beyond the description of the Montessori curriculum) related to state
curricular requirements and the way in which these are addressed at LCMCS. As reported by the
Executive Director, some of the information is copyrighted and can only be shared in summary form. In
addition, certain aspects of the work may be shared with parents in person. The website is undergoing a
major revision and when updated will include more direct information on how CCSS is applied in the
classroom, as well as how student evaluation is done.

Portland State Center for Student Success 18

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

5.2.b _Curriculum - Assessment Rating: Meeting
To what extent is the charter school conducting valid assessments of student performance

consistent with Oregon state standards?

Evidence:
e Charter School Agreement, July 2012
e Interview with Executive Director
e Student Family Handbook (revised 2013)
e LCMCS MAC Learner Performance Overview (2013)
e Montessori Adolescent Corps Trimester Report (June 2014)

The Montessori methods of assessment, evaluation, and reporting are rooted in observation.
Assessment can take the forms of formative or summative assessment. Evaluation, as described in the
MAC Learner Performance Overview (2013), is a “process of reaching conclusions and making judgments
based on evidence and criteria found through assessing” in order to make conclusions about the child’s
grasp of the concept, skill development, ability to manipulate information, and whether s/he is prepared
for lessons in the next sequential concept. Reporting demonstrates competency and accountability of
the adult in supporting the learning of the child, and it “...is provided to the learner and to others as
needed and required.”

In the review of a LCMCS Trimester Report for a student in June 2014, the CSS evaluator observed that
the Common Core Key Standards are aligned side-by-side with the school’s curricular areas related to
the content presented to the student and evaluated by the teacher. Observations of the student’s
progress were also written as part of the report.

During the interview with the Executive Director, she described the school’s use of “Curriculum-Based
Measurements” as being used most frequently to evaluate students’ progress in relation to their
successful mastery of the curriculum. Curriculum=Based Measurement (CBM) is a method teachers use
to find out how students are progressing in basic academic areas such as math, reading, writing, and
spelling. CBM can be helpful to parents because it provides current, week-by-week information on the
progress their children are making.

LCMCS also on an annual basis administers the state’s required OAKS standardized tests in specified
grades. Students in the school were not accustomed to participating in a computerized testing situation
with a large number of students being tested simultaneously. Consequently, a smaller testing
environment was created in the Executive Director’s office and another staff member supervised the
students during the testing. The Executive Director stated that they were going to more actively prepare
students to be more comfortable in a computerized testing environment in order to assist the students
in demonstrating more success on state-required standardized tests.

Absent from the Student and Family Handbook and the school website is any discussion of assessment
practices used by the school and/or required by the state of Oregon. It is again the recommendation of
the CSS evaluator that both of these assessment strategies and formats be identified and clarified for

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 19



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

the parent community in the handbook and on the website. That way, as parents monitor the school’s
progress, both specifically in relation to their child and generally in relation to the overall school
program, they have a deeper understanding of the school’s assessment practices and their child’s
(children’s) results.

5.3 Distinctive Teaching Technigues Rating: Exceeding
To what extent is the charter school implementing distinctive instructional practices as outlined

in their contract with the sponsoring district?

Evidence:
e Interview with Executive Director
e Student Family Handbook (revised 2013)
e LCMCS website
e Classroom Observations

In the classroom observations conducted by a CSS evaluator on May 22, 2014, it was apparent in a
Lower Elementary class that students were knowledgeable about the expectations related to their daily
learning experiences. They were gathered in a group working with the teacher at the beginning of the
class. The teacher was reviewing the work they had been doing the prior day and eliciting from the
students what their next steps would be for the day. In an Upper Elementary classroom, students were
working individually or in pairs or small groups. The students had free choice about their learning
activities, yet all were focused on their tasks most of the time. One student approached the teacher and
she directed him to one of the curriculum notebooks to explore what he was asking about. One student
was overly excited due to the presence of the evaluator, and the teacher thoughtfully and positively
directed the student’s attention back to the task at hand. The teacher pointed out to the evaluator
different activities in the classroom intended to develop reading and analytical skills, as well as
environmentally sustainable practices like recycling.

The school’s Executive Director and Education Director are both knowledgeable and experienced
Montessori trained educators. The Executive Director’'s commitment to Montessori instructional
practices and curriculum is pervasive throughout the school program. One example of her commitment
to Montessori education is found in the detailed explanation of Montessori education included in the
Student and Family Handbook. In this document, a parent or community member could easily discover
the school’s basic philosophy of education, an in-depth understanding of the “Six-Year Developmental
Cycle,” and details about the alignments of this cycle with the Montessori curriculum. Interested readers
are also provided a number of suggested reading and electronic websites about Montessori education.

Given the success of the school program as it builds in student enrollment with the addition of the
Middle School and additional classes, it is apparent that the schools fills a need and desire within the
community for this type of program. The obvious commitment and joy of the staff and the active and

Portland State Center for Student Success 20

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

enthusiastic participation of students in their classroom experiences validates the quality of this
program.

5.4 School Improvement and Staff Development Plans Rating: Meeting
Does the charter school develop school improvement goals and align staff development

strategies to achieve them?

Evidence:
e List of 2013-14 Professional Development activities submitted by the Executive Director
e Employee Handbook (revised August 2013)
e Interview with the Executive Director
e LCMCS 2012-13 Annual Report

The description of Professional Development Assistance for school employees as described in the
Employee Handbook (2013) encourages personal development through workshops, seminars and/or
formal education so that employees can maintain and improve job-related skills. Professional
development assistance is provided to all eligible employees who are regular full-time or regular part-
time employees. Assistance may be provided for courses that are part of a degree, licensing, or
certification program, or workshops and seminars if they are related to the employee’s job duties,
licensing requirements, or a foreseeable-future position in the organization.

Professional development activities for the 2013-14 school year focused on the following topics:

e School policy and professional/ethical conduct

e  First Aid/CPR

e Montessoriin Practice

e Student Special Services—Special Education pre-referral, referral, and IEPs
e Problem-solving strategies for students and adults

e The Power of Positive Thinking

e Development of professional teams

e Classroom management in the Montessori environment

e Working as a team with a classroom assistant

e Strategies for successful parent conferences

Given the selected areas of focus for the year’s professional development, it is evident that the school’s
priorities directed toward enhancing teachers’ knowledge about Special Education and associated
expectations, developing staff into a professional team, and successful communication with parents are
clearly in place. Although no formalized School Improvement Plan was submitted by the school for this
review, their priorities for the year are clearly in place and pervasive across the school.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 21



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

5.5 Licensure of Charter School Staff Rating: Meeting
Is the charter school compliant with Oregon statutes regarding teacher licensure and

registration and charter agreements?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Correspondence with GBSD Human Resources license specialist
e Review of LCMCS Teaching Staff Credentials document

The charter school law in Oregon requires that a minimum of 50% of teachers in a charter school must
be Oregon certified by the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC). Any teacher not Oregon
certified must still be registered with TSPC as a charter school teacher as well as pass required ORELA
exams in order to be licensed to teach in a charter school. Additionally, LCMCS requires its teachers to
be Montessori trained.

As is described in 4.2, for the 2013-14 school year, 62% of the teaching staff was Oregon certified. All
teachers not Oregon certified were charter registered with TSPC.

5.6 _Teacher Evaluation Rating: Exceeding

Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and sponsoring school district policy
regarding teacher performance evaluation, including the requirements of SB 290 if teachers are
school district employees?

Evidence:
e |nterview with the Executive Director

e Employee Handbook (revised August 2013)

The Employee Handbook includes a section titled Performance Evaluation and it includes a two-
paragraph explanation of the expectations and process that is used by the school’s Executive Director to
evaluate staff. The process described in the handbook includes an informal set of expectations of the
employee/Director relationship as well as the more formal process used over the course of the school
year.

Informally, staff is encouraged to discuss job performance and goals on a day-to-day basis knowing that
the Executive Director and Education Director visit classrooms for informal observations. Informal
discussions are held with staff providing positive feedback and asking numerous questions. In the more
formal performance evaluations, the process includes: the Executive Director meets with each teacher
early in the school year to review last year’s goals and progress (for new staff she begins the goal-setting
process). She determines if specific things need to be added to the teacher’s goals for the year, monitors
progress towards the teacher’s specific goals over the course of the year and conducts a formal mid-year
review of the progress. At the conclusion of the school year an end-of-year conference is held to

Portland State Center for Student Success 22

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

establish goals for the next year with measurable goals being emphasized. Written evaluations are
included in the personnel file.

Supporting this process are documents for teacher and administrator use that provide the written
accountability necessary for a comprehensive teacher evaluation process. The process incorporates
numerous opportunities for the teacher and the administrator to discuss and pursue instructional
improvement strategies.

5.7 Screening and Hiring Practices Rating: Meeting
Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and school district policy regarding

criminal background checks?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Employee Handbook (revised August 2013)
e Charter School Agreement (August 27, 2010)

Criminal background checks and fingerprinting must be completed for the school employment process.
Also, as indicated in the Employee Handbook, all individuals who join the LCMCS staff have their
employment references checked and are subject to criminal background checks. Fingerprinting is
expected during this process. In addition, all of the school’s assistants undergo a criminal records review
and volunteers in the school undergo the same. As per the school’s agreement with GBSD, no later than
October 15 of each school year, LCMCS provides the district with a list of names and job positions of all
employees, including the date that the criminal background check was initiated.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (Meeting) or not in compliance (Not Meeting) with this requirement.

5.8 Reporting of Child Abuse, Training on Identification/Prevention Rating: Meeting
Is the charter school and board compliant with statutory requirements for reporting child abuse

or sexual conduct, and for providing school employees, parents/quardians, and children annual
training on the prevention and identification of child abuse and sexual conduct, and on the
obligations of school employees for reporting?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Interviews with two teachers
e Employee Handbook (revised August 2013)

Portland State Center for Student Success 23

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

The Employee Handbook includes a section titled Reporting of Suspected Child Abuse that describes
LCMCS employees as mandatory reporters and states “All LCMCS employees must promptly comply with
the statutory requirements regarding suspected child abuse.” The GBSD policy is included in the
handbook.

One teacher interviewed by the CSS evaluator clearly understood the policy and expectations as a
mandatory reporter while the other teacher interviewed didn’t seem as knowledgeable. The evaluator
asked the Executive Director if the law and guidelines for mandatory reporters was reviewed annually
with the staff and she replied that she might not specifically review it every year. The CSS evaluator
strongly suggests that annual review of these statutory requirements is implemented beginning in the
2014-15 school year.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (Meeting) or not in compliance (Not Meeting) with this requirement.

5.9 Employee Relations Rating: Exceeding
Has the charter school employed generally acceptable employee relations practices including

the provision of professional development plans?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Interview with the Board Chair
o Employee Handbook—Revised August 2013

Eligible employees at LCMCS are provided a range of benefits that include those prescribed by law (i.e.
Social Security, worker’s compensation) and some that may vary from year to year based on enrollment
and financial concerns of the school. The LCMCS Board annually evaluates necessary contingencies to
determine the availability or amount of benefits in any given year.

The salary schedule for LCMCS is based upon the GBSD’s salary schedule and is typically 80% of their
salary schedule (as the Board Chair has indicated, the school is currently funded at an 80% rate of the
state’s ADMw allocation). Teachers qualify for the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) once
they have worked 600 hours and been employed by LCMCS for six months, or if they have been
previously eligible through another State agency.

Regular full-time employees are eligible to participate in certain Kaiser Permanente medical and dental
plans with LCMCS currently offering up to $475 per month. Additional family members may be added to
the plan and paid for by the individual employee (pre-tax from payroll).

Salaried employees only may use five personal leave days that include time off for illness, injury or
personal business. Paid holidays are only for legal holidays as per the GBSD calendar.

Portland State Center for Student Success 24

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Paydays are semi-monthly, on the 15" and 30" of the month (exception for holidays—paid on the last
day of work prior to regularly scheduled payday). If a payday fall during a scheduled school vacation, the
employee will in most cases receive his or her paycheck before departing for vacations.

As is noted in section 5.4 of the report, staff has numerous opportunities to participate in professional
development sessions that appear to be tied directly to school priorities. Professional development
assistance is also available to eligible employees.

NOTE: The benefits as described above are reflected in the Employee Handbook revised in August 2013.
In an interview with the Board Chair, he described that part of the strategic planning done in spring 2014
included a revamping of the employee benefits. The changes in part are based on a market survey of
employee benefit trends and in reviewing benefits in other charter schools. Some of the changes
occurred during the middle of the 2013-14 school year and the others will take effect for the 2014-15
school year. The Employee Handbook is currently under revision and will reflect these changes.

6.0 FISCAL PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

6.1 Accounting Rating: Meeting
Are the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) being implemented?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e LCMCS Proposed Budget (2013-14)
e LCMCS Approved Budget (2013-14)—Revised March 2014
e Annual Audit for by Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C., for School Year Ended June 30, 2013

The LCMCS Board relies on a third-party financial audit to ensure that the oversight of its fiscal
operations is both rigorous and legally in compliance. The Executive Director (and school bookkeeper)
prepares regular financial statements and proposed budget documents for the school’s Finance
Committee and for the Board’s review.

LCMCS contracts with an independent accounting firm (Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C.) to conduct their
annual audit of the financial statements, pursuant to ORS 297.405-297.555, ORS 297.990 and ORS 338.
Generally this audit occurs in late May of a given year and findings are issued in August or early
September of that same year on the prior year’s budget.

The 2012-13 audit was issued September 27, 2013. Results of the audit submitted to LCMCS included (1)
an Audit opinion letter indicating that the school was given a “clean” opinion with no reservations; (2)
State minimum standards (no exceptions or issues required comment); and (3) a Management letter
detailing significant deficiencies in internal control (this is covered more in the next section of this
report).

Portland State Center for Student Success 25

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

As part of best practices, the auditors recommend that the Board improve internal controls by more
closely monitoring the financial activities of the school and recording in the minutes when those
activities occur. In addition, given that QuickBooks is not designed to segregate self-balancing funds and
may allow for transactions being deleted with any audit trail remaining, the auditors recommend that
the Board evaluates the risk of using that accounting software.

Auditors are expected to deliver the results of the 2013-14 school year audit by October 2014. Results
will be shared with the GBSD Board of Directors as part of its own fiscal review.

6.2 Internal Controls Assessment Rating: Nearly Meeting

Does the school have evidence of effective operational procedures and internal controls?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2013—Pauly Rogers and Co., P.C.
e LCMCS Fiscal Policies document—Revised September 2012

The CSS evaluation report for the 2012-13 school year noted a number of deficiencies in internal
controls that existed in 2010-11 and 2011-12. As a result, the school and its Board added a number of
steps that increased the review of the accounting process. Financial statements are available to the
Finance Committee monthly and the committee reviews and signs the bank reconciliations. Duties are
more carefully segregated to ensure that there is no overlap in access to funds, checks or the authority
to sign checks. The Fiscal Policies document provides details for the following:

e authorization of expenditures

e preparation of checks and appropriate posting practices
e banking arrangements

e deposits of receipts

e petty cash

e purchasing and contracting

e record keeping

e property inventory

e payroll

e attendance accounting

e Executive Director’s expense account

The 2012-13 audit report issued September 27, 2013 included a Management letter detailing significant
deficiencies in internal control (this is covered more in the next section of this report). The report
describes “A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 26



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.”

The significant deficiencies and recommended changes in practice included (1) the difficulty with limited
personnel to adequately segregate the accounts payable, payroll, journal entries and money receipting
duties, increasing the possibility that unintentional or intentional errors or irregularities could exist and
not be promptly detected. The recommendation by the auditors is for the Board to continually monitor
the financial activities to help mitigate this risk; (2) the school’s used of debit cards provides cardholders
with instant access to cash and the auditors recommend using credit cards instead; and (3) an
independent approval of disbursements was not being performed in a timely manner for all debit card
purchases. The auditors recommend that the Board review and approve debit card purchases by
reviewing bank reconciliations on a monthly basis.

The recommendation of the CSS evaluator is that school administrators and the bookkeeper, and the
Board of Directors, continue to practice due diligence relative to the oversight of the school’s finances
and internal control practices. The Board Executive Committee should implement the practices
recommended in the audit report with fidelity. Once the 2013-14 annual audit becomes available,
these should again be carefully reviewed and modified accordingly.

6.3 Financial Reporting Rating: Meeting
Has the school presented financial statements including board-approved budgets, annual

audits, and interim financial statements that comply with financial reporting requirements and
their Charter?

Evidence:
e Charter School Agreement between GBSD and LCMCS dated July 12, 2012
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Interview with the Board Chairperson

As specified in the Charter School Agreement between GBSD and LCMCS, “LCMCS shall have audits
performed in compliance with any applicable laws, as such laws may be changed from time to time. At
the present time, ORS 338.095 (2) requires LCMCS to have an annual audit of the accounts of LCMCS
prepared in accordance with the Municipal Audit Law, ORS 297.405-297.555 and 297.990, and it
requires that the annual audit be forwarded to the District, the State Board of Education, and the
Department of Education. LCMCS shall provide a copy of its financial audit for the preceding fiscal year
by October 1 of each year. LCMCS will also provide quarterly financial statements to the District’s Chief
Financial Officer.”

The Board and school administrative staff are committed to reconciling the financial challenges that face
LCMCS and are confident that continued student growth as grades are added and as additional space is
available to add classrooms will remedy prior years’ negative general fund ending fund balances. The

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 27



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Board chair is committed to careful spending practices that take into account possible downward trends
in per-pupil funding or in enroliment.

Upon receipt of the financial audit documents for the 2013-14 school year from Pauly and Rogers Co.,
P.C. auditors, the information will be made available for additional review to the GBSD and its Board of
Directors.

6.4 Response to Fiscal Crisis Rating: Meeting
Has the school prepared contingency plans in response to fiscal instability and financial

uncertainties related to school funding as well as charter school legislation?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e 2013-14 Approved Budget (revised March 2014)
e Financial Report (June 30, 2013) by Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C.

In an interview with the LCMCS Board Chair, he provided details related to the responsibilities of the
school’s board of Directors as they participate in their fiduciary responsibilities and oversight of the
school’s program. Financial management has been a key consideration for the Board and fiscal policies
have been rewritten to address that consideration. The previous Finance Committee was incorporated
into the responsibilities of the Executive Committee as a part of the Board’s strategic planning in spring
2014. The Executive Committee provides oversight for LCMCS's fiscal policies and operations,
participates in reviewing the annual draft budget and is actively involved in developing strategies for the
required fundraising activities for the year.

The Board Chair described in the interview how the first part of the 2013-14 school year was the most
challenging financial time to date for the school. An Educational Director was hired, the school expanded
to include 7" grade students, a music teacher was hired to provide music instruction, Spanish for every
child became part of the offerings of the school, and the Montessori Adolescent Corps (MAC) program
serving middle school students was started with a small number of students.

The school continues to operate on a limited budget. The revised growth plan 2012-2019 shows an
intended K-8 enrollment of 340 by 2018. The 8" grade addition in 2014-15 and the waiting list of
students gives some reassurance to the Board that the necessary growth is possible. The move to the
Deep Creek ES facility allows the school to incorporate all of its programs (including pre-K) under one
roof and should provide some efficiencies in operating expenses.

Portland State Center for Student Success 28

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

6.5 Insurance Rating: Meeting
Does the school hold current insurance policies for performance bonding and for buildings and

items in the contract?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e Charter School Agreement—July 12, 2012
e Lewis and Clark Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2013—Pauly Rogers and Co., P.C.

Section 16 of the Charter School Agreement, Insurance and Indemnification (1611-16.9.3) clarifies all
expectations for LCMCS by the GBSD in the areas of appropriate insurance necessary for the school’s
operation. The school holds current insurance policies for performance bonding and for buildings and
other insurance as specified in the Charter contract. In an interview with the Board Chair, he noted that
the Board intends to increase coverage to ensure that their insurance is adequate.

Currently there are no reports of litigation pending against LCMCS and the Board has not extended the
faith and credit of the school to any third party or entity.

Note: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (Meeting) or not in compliance (Not Meeting) with this requirement.

6.6 Site and Facilities Rating: Meeting

Are all licenses, approvals, permits, and inspections current and procedures for corrective
actions and emergency plans in place?

Evidence:
e GBSD emergency procedures packet
e LCMCS Revised Growth Plan Proposal 2012-2019
e Exhibit B to Charter School Agreement—5.1, 5.2, and 5.3

The school followed all emergency procedures and expectations for the Damascus Middle School setting
and had a complete set of Emergency Procedures in place for the St. Paul’s Campus. Damascus MS is a
GBSD school site and the school uses the school district safety packet of materials that includes the
following:

e Lock-in procedures

e Lock-down procedures

e Earthquake procedures

e Fire response and drills information

e Basic safety information (evacuation, bomb threat, medical emergency, electrical outage,

biohazard/suspicious chemical spill, and earthquake)
e Damascus Middle School Evacuation Map

Portland State Center for Student Success 29

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

e Emergency attendance sheet

In 2012, the GBSD Board authorized the school’s expansion with the “understanding...that LCMCS is
proposed to operate a K-8 school.” The new middle school program added grade 7 in 2013-14 and will
add grade 8 in 2014-15. As this evaluation report is being written, the school has just relocated to the
Deep Creek Elementary School site in Damascus. All LCMCS programs are now under one roof.

The CSS evaluator noted in discussion with the Executive Director that there was no clear plan for where
parents could rejoin their children away from the school site after a major safety event that locked the
entire school down. The evaluator strongly urges the school to identify that location at the new school
site and publish it to parents.

6.7 Health and Safety Rating: Meeting
Are health, safety, and accessibility standards being met and is documentation being kept
current?

Evidence:

e Interview with the Executive Director

e Interview with the GBSD Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability
e Charter School Agreement—August 27, 2010

e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)

e Copy of food service inspection report (Clackamas County—4/9/13)

The Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013) and the school website includes comprehensive
information related to “School Arrival and Departure Procedures” that ensure that the safety of over
300 students is actively addressed. The website shows an updated “Operations, Hours, Arrival &
Departure” schedule for 2012-15 based on the school’s move to Deep Creek Elementary School.

The Oregon Safe Employment Act statute requires employers to provide each employee a place of
employment that is free from recognized hazards. The Executive Director of LCMCS makes every
attempt to comply with all state and federal requirements, and staff members have participated in
training for CPR, blood-borne pathogens and first aid as required.

Portland State Center for Student Success 30

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

7.0 GOVERNANCE

7.1.a Open Meeting Law Rating: Exceeding
Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding public meetings?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e School Website
e Board Meeting Minutes
e Student and Family Handbook (Revised 2013)

The following statement appears on the school’s website under LCMCS Board: “LCMCS’s Board of
Directors meets every third Tuesday of the month at 7:30pm. All meetings are public meetings. We are
bound by the State of Oregon’s Open Meeting Law and its Public Records Law. Time is set aside at each
meeting for input from our community.” During the interview with the Board Chair, he mentioned that
he adheres strictly to the requirements for moving from Executive Session to the regular Board meeting.
He also described that copies of all meeting agendas and minutes are available in the school office.
Copies of current year meeting agendas are posted on the website for ease of access by the community.

The Student and Family Handbook provides a description of their governance by a Board of Directors,
the board meeting dates and times, and a statement of adherence to the open meeting and public
records law.

7.1.b _Public Records Rating: Exceeding

Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding public records?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Executive Director
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e School Website
e Board Meeting Minutes
e Student and Family Handbook (Revised 2013)

As noted in 7.1.a, the school and Board of Directors are in full compliance with federal and state law
regarding public records.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 31



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

7.1.c_Student Records Rating: Meeting

Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding student records?

Evidence:
e Interview with the school Executive Director and Office Manager
e Student and Family Handbook (revised 2013)

LCMCS complies with all statutory requirements related to the storage of student records. They have an
on-site locking fireproof file cabinet that is located in an area that is secured when school is not in
session.

Parents of LCMCS students are notified through the Student and Family Handbook of the school’s
privacy policy for student records. A description of how parents may access student records is provided
in the handbook.

7.2 Fiduciary Responsibilities Rating: Meeting

Is the charter school meeting its fiduciary responsibilities?

Evidence:
e LCMCS Fiscal Policies—Revised 2012
e LCMCS Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e Interview with the school Executive Director
e LCMCS Proposed budget 2013-14 and LCMCS Approved Budget for 2013-14

As stated in the interview with the Board Chairperson, he has now served in this role for three
consecutive years. During that time the school’s fiscal policies have been rewritten twice. This process
has ensured due diligence on the part of the LCMCS Board, and the school’s Executive Committee by
carefully attending to the fiscal requirements and ongoing financial vagaries.

The Board Chair is working in partnership with the GBSD chief financial officer to finalize the school’s
lease arrangements for the Deep Creek ES facility. He also works closely with the Parent Teacher
Organization in order to maintain positive relations between this group and the Board. The opportunity
for these two groups to carefully discuss the school’s financial needs continues to be critical to the
overall financial stability of the school.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 32



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

7.3 Board Stability Rating: Exceeding
Are the charter school leadership and Board of Directors stable and sustainable?

Evidence:
e Interview with the Board Chairperson
e Interview with the school Executive Director
e School website — “LCMCS Board”
e March Board Training Retreat agenda and materials

The LCMCS Board of Directors is comprised of six active members and one Emeritus member. All Board
positions were filled during the year, including the Board Chair, Secretary, Vice Chair/Treasurer, and
three other members. Advisory committees, established to assist in the leadership of the school, include
the following: Fundraising and Development Committee, Facilities Committee, Personnel Committee.
Previously there was a Finance Committee. The work of the Finance Committee was absorbed into the
responsibilities of the Board Executive Committee.

CONCLUSION

Given the overt support of the GBSD Board of Directors, as evidence by their commitment given the
five-year extension of the charter for LCMCS (until 2017) and the growth to include a Middle School
program, it is evident that this school continues to serve an important role in the community. Its
continued growth and enrollment waiting list demonstrate the need for this type of educational
program, and families continue to show an active interest in having their children participate in the
Montessori program. The obvious active and enthusiastic participation of students in their classroom
experiences validates the quality of this program. The high student retention rate demonstrates that the
parents and their children are pleased with the program offerings and find that the school provides a
“fit” for their child(ren).

Strategic planning agreements and documents completed over the last two years with the school’s
Board of Directors included the following focal points that also encompass the work of the next few

years:
1. Expand the organization’s programs and offerings to the community
2. Foster greater community presence
3. Update the by-laws of the school
4. Develop a new and more appropriate committee structure
5. Sustainably fund the organization to meet growth goals
6. Procure and develop facilities to best provide for the needs of the growing organization

In the summer of 2014, LCMCS relocated to Deep Creek ES at 15600 SE 232 Drive, Damascus OR 97089.
This facility accommodates the program expansion and provides the opportunity for the school to
improve many aspects of its program, including access to a commercial kitchen that allows the school to
offer a new food program. Future growth goals include the possibility of being able to construct a

Portland State Center for Student Success 33

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

permanent facility for the school. In spring 2014, the Board began development of a 5-year capital
program, working with local banks to establish a credit rating and to look at potential property in the
Damascus area. These plans will be several years in the making, but the student enrollment growth
allowable with the Deep Creek ES facility provides a solid foundation for the potential to be realized. The
Board Chair is confident of the ability of the Board of Directors and others in the community to
sustainably fund the organization to meet growth goals.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONSIDERATIONS

The following recommendations are made understanding that significant changes have occurred for
LCMCS since the date of the original evaluation meeting. The school has moved physical location and all
programs are now together at one site. The online website has sections that are still under
development. In discussion with the Board Chair, it is evident that the Employee Handbook and the
Student and Family Handbook are currently under revision but every effort should be made to
incorporate any of the recommendations that follow.

2.1 The CSS evaluator suggests the school review attendance expectations and put practices in place to
ensure that a high number of students (92% or higher) attend 90% or more school days.

3.2 Given the continuing pattern of low math achievement on the state’s standardized tests, a thorough
review of the LCMCS math curriculum and its alignment with state standards for the 3™, 4™, and
5% grade levels is highly recommended by the CSS evaluator.

4.1 The unique quality of the Montessori methodology and curriculum may not align with the state of
Oregon accountability system, but as a public charter school LCMCS will continue to be evaluated and
assigned a level that reflects Academic Achievement and Academic growth. In order to “Meet” on this
section of the evaluation rubric used by CSS, the school will need to be rated a “Level 4.”

4.2 It is important that the LCMCS Executive Director and Education Director continue to closely attend
to teacher licensing requirements in order to avoid licensing issues and not cause additional burden or
possible penalties to the school district.

4.3.b The Student and Family Handbook has been revised to reflect past recommendations made by CSS
evaluators related to ELL services, and the school is to be commended for these changes. Although the
school serves a very small number of ELL students, the processes in place to assess and monitor their
progress are excellent.

5.2.b It is again the recommendation of the CSS evaluator that assessment strategies and formats be
identified and clarified for the parent community in the handbook and on the website. That way, as
parents monitor the school’s progress, both specifically in relation to their child and generally in relation
to the overall school program, they have a deeper understanding of the school’s assessment practices
and their child’s (children’s) results.

5.8 The CSS evaluator strongly suggests that annual review of the statutory requirements for mandatory
reporters is implemented beginning in the 2014-15 school year.

6.2 The recommendation of the CSS evaluator is that school administrators and the bookkeeper, and the
Board of Directors, continue to practice due diligence relative to the oversight of the school’s finances

Portland State Center for Student Success 34

UNIVERSITY



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

and internal control practices. The Board Executive Committee should implement the practices
recommended in the audit report with fidelity. Once the 2013-14 annual audit becomes available, these
should again be carefully reviewed and modified accordingly.

6.6 The CSS evaluator noted in discussion with the Executive Director that there was no clear plan for
where parents could rejoin their children away from the school site after a major safety event that locks
the entire school down. The evaluator strongly urges the school to identify that location at the new
school site and publish it to parents.

6.7 Given a previous history of food service violations, it will be important that the food service program
at the new school location at Deep Creek Elementary School adhere to all health and safety
requirements.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 35



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Summary of Findings

Exceeding
1.2 Student Admissions & Conditions of Enrollment

4.3.b English Language Learners — Monitoring Progress
5.1.a Non-Discriminatory Practices — Access to Programs
5.1.b Non-Discriminatory Practices — Staff Hiring

5.3 Distinctive Teaching Techniques

5.6 Teacher Evaluation

5.9 Employee Relations

7.1.a Open Meeting Law

7.1.b Public Records

7.3 Board Stability

Meeting

1.1 Goals Specific to Mission

2.1 Enrollment/Retention/Attendance

2.2 Parent Satisfaction

4.2 Highly Qualified Compliance

4.3.a English Language Learners — Programs
4.4 Special Education Delivery of Services
4.5 Section 504 Services

4.6 Free/Reduced Price Lunch

5.2.a Curriculum — Standards

5.2.b Curriculum — Assessment

5.4 School Improvement and Staff Development Plans
5.5 Licensure of Charter School Staff

5.7 Screening and Hiring Practices

5.8 Reporting of Child Abuse, Training on Identification/Prevention
6.1 Accounting

6.3 Financial Reporting

6.4 Response to Fiscal Crisis

6.5 Insurance

6.6 Site and Facilities

6.7 Health and Safety

7.1.c Student Records

7.2 Fiduciary Responsibilities

Nearly Meeting
3.1 Student Achievement: Reading

6.2 Internal Controls Assessment

Not Meeting
3.2 Student Achievement: Math

4.1 Student Achievement

Not Rated
3.3 Comparative Student Achievement

Portland State Center for Student Success

UNIVERSITY

36



Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

APPENDIX A: Evaluator Biography

Janice M. Adams, MA
Evaluator, Center for Student Success
Portland State University

Janice M. Adams has worked in public education in Oregon for 30 years. Her leadership positions in
school included high school assistant principal, alternative school principal, and high school principal.
She managed large federal grants at two schools. Her key areas of focus included: high school
improvement, school improvement planning and implementation, teacher and administrator
professional development, and educational equity for all children. Her work in the last three years has
included leadership coaching for principals in schools identified under the Oregon ESEA waiver as focus
or priority schools.

In 2013, Adams returned to Portland State University to complete her dissertation for a doctorate in
Educational Leadership. Her dissertation topic is Principal Leadership: Accelerating Growth in Academic
Achievement of Children in High Poverty K-5 Elementary School in Oregon.

Portland State

PR Center for Student Success 37



Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
1.0 MISSION-SPECIFIC GOALS and ADMISSIONS & ENROLLMENT
1.1 Goals Specific to Has the charter school met its mission-specific goals as outlined in the contract with the sponsoring School
Mission District?

The school has clearly The school has met all of The school has met some of | The school has not met its
exceeded its mission- its mission-specific goals its mission-specific goal(s) mission-specific goal(s) as
specific goal(s) as identified | as identified in the Charter | as identified in the Charter identified in the Charter
in the Charter Application Application and Contract. Application and Contract. Application and Contract.
and Contract.

1.2 Student Admissions & | Is there evidence that the charter school is following statutory and district guidelines regarding student

Conditions of
Enrollment

admission and enrollment?

The school follows
statutory and contractual
guidelines for student
admissions, including the
admission of special
populations, and exceeds
its enrollment projections.

The school follows
statutory guidelines for
student admissions,
including special
populations, and meets its
enrollment projections.

The school does not follow
statutory guidelines for
admission, including special
populations, and may or may
not meet enroliment
projections.

The school does not follow
statutory guidelines for
admission, including special
populations, and does not
meet enrollment projections.

© 2014 Portland State University, all rights reserved. This rubric may only be displayed, distributed, or reproduced in its exact, original form and shall include this copyright notice. Editing, creating
derivative works and adaptations, or selling this rubric is strictly prohibited. The use, distribution or reproduction of this rubric is intended for educational and informational use only.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

38




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
2.0 OVERALL STUDENT SUCCESS
2.1 Enroliment/Retention/ | To what extent are students making academic progress as measured by enroliment/retention rates and
Attendance attendance?
Student retention rates are | Retention rates remain Retention rates vary from Retention rates and
increasing and enroliment steady and enroliment year to year. Student enrollment are declining.
is expanding. Attendance remains steady. Attendance | enrollment fluctuates Attendance data indicate
data indicate that high data indicate that above significantly from year to that low numbers of students
numbers of students are average numbers of year. Attendance data are attending 90% or more
attending 90% or more students are attending 90% | indicate that average school days or meeting
school days or meeting or more school days or numbers of students are virtual school requirements
virtual school requirements | meeting virtual school attending 90% or more for participation.
for participation. requirements for school days or meeting
participation. virtual school requirements
for participation.
2.2 Parent Satisfaction To what extent do parent survey respondents indicate satisfaction with students' academic progress and the

educational program?

The school regularly surveys
parents as a means to
improve. A high proportion
of parent-respondents (66%
or more of the sample)
indicate a high level of
satisfaction with students’
academic progress and the
educational program.

The school occasionally
surveys parents. A slight
majority of parent-
respondents (at least 50%)
indicate a high level of
satisfaction with students’
academic progress or with
the educational program.

The school seldom asks for
parent input and/or less than
half of parent-respondents
indicate a high level of
satisfaction with students’
academic progress or the
educational program.

The school does not solicit
parent input and/or at least
half of the parent-
respondents indicate
dissatisfaction with students’
academic progress or the
educational program.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

39




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

3.0 LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT
3.1 Student Over time, has student achievement in Reading improved measurably?
Achievement:
Reading
Over time, student Over time, student Over time, student Over time, student
achievement at all grade achievement overall has achievement overall is at or | achievement has consistently
levels has improved improved and remained at or | above state averages but been below state averages
measurably (or remained above state averages in has not indicated consistent | and/or has not shown
high relative to state Reading. Trends in 3" grade | improvement in Reading. measurable improvement in
averages) in Reading for reading proficiency and Trends in 3" grade reading Reading. Trends in 3 grade
students overall and key student growth show some proficiency and student reading proficiency and
subgroups. Trends in 3" improvement over time. growth are inconsistent in student growth show decline
grade reading proficiency terms of improvement over over time.
and student growth show time.
consistent improvement
over time.
3.2 Student Over time, has student achievement in Math improved measurably?

Achievement: Math

Over time, student
achievement at all grade
levels has improved
measurably (or remained
high relative to state
averages) in Math for
students overall and key
subgroups. Trends in 5%
and 8" grade math
proficiency and student
growth show consistent
improvement over time.

Over time, student
achievement overall has
improved and remained at or
above state averages in
Math. Trends in 5th and 8™
grade math proficiency and
student growth show some
improvement over time.

Over time, student
achievement overall is at or
above state averages but
has not indicated consistent
improvement in Math.
Trends in 5th and 8" grade
math proficiency and student
growth are inconsistent in
terms of improvement over
time.

Over time, student
achievement has consistently
been below state averages
and/or has not shown
measurable improvement in
Math. Trends in 5th and 8"
grade math proficiency and
student growth decline over
time.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

40




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

3.0

LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

3.3

Comparative Student
Achievement

How does the charter school's performance compare to the sponsoring school district and the state as a whole?

The school's performance
consistently outpaces the
sponsoring school district
and the state as a whole.

The school's performance
is better than either the
sponsoring school district
or the state as a whole.

The school's performance
is equivalent to the
sponsoring school district
and the state as a whole.

The school's performance is poor
relative to the sponsoring school
district and the state as a whole.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

41




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
4.0 FEDERAL ACCOUNTABILITY: STUDENT PERFORMANCE & PROGRAMS
Student Did the charter school meet Oregon Annual Measurable Objectives in reading and math, as well as for
41 Achievement graduation, attendance and participation, approved through the Federal 2012 ESEA waiver process?
The school overall The school overall met The school overall met The school did not meet targets
exceeded targets in both | targets in both math and targets in reading or math. in either reading or math.
reading and math. All reading. All student Most student subgroups Some, but not all student
student subgroups subgroups met targets for met targets, but the school | subgroups met targets for
exceeded targets for academic achievement, did not meet all criteria in academic achievement,
academic achievement, academic growth, and either reading or math. academic growth, and/or
academic growth, and subgroup growth. The Some, but not all student subgroup growth. The school
subgroup growth. The school met graduation, subgroups met targets for may or may not have met
school exceeded subgroup graduation, academic achievement, graduation, subgroup
graduation, subgroup attendance, and academic growth, and/or graduation, attendance, and/or
graduation, attendance, participation targets. The subgroup growth. The participation targets. The school
and participation targets. | school is rated “Level 4” on | school may or may not is rated “Level 2" or “Level 1" on
The school is rated the Oregon Report Card. have met graduation, the Oregon Report Card.
“’Level 5" on the Oregon subgroup graduation,
Report Card. attendance, and/or
participation targets. The
school is rated “Level 3" on
the Oregon Report Card.
4.2 Highly Qualified Do staff members teaching core academic subjects meet the requirements for "highly qualified"?
Compliance
100% of teachers in core 95% to 99% of staff are HQ | Less than 95% of core subject
subjects meet the federal due to enrollment teachers are HQ and/or there is
HQ requirements. fluctuation after the school not a plan of correction to
year began; there is a plan | address this deficiency for each
of correction for each affected staff member.
teacher not HQ in a core
subject.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

42




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
43.a English Language Does the charter school implement appropriate practices in providing programs to English Language Learners
Learners - Programs | (ELL)?
Provides exemplary Provides appropriate Partial implementation of ELL students are not taught
programs that teach practices in providing appropriate practices in reading, writing and speaking
reading, speaking and programs that teach providing programs to help in English by qualified staff at
writing to ELL students in reading, speaking and ELL students overcome the charter school or district
English until they can writing in English until ELL | language barriers. Those level.
effectively participate in students can participate in | delivering instruction may
regular classroom regular classroom lack training and the amount
instruction. Instruction is instruction. Instruction is of instructional time provided
delivered by well-trained delivered by qualified for ELL students is
charter school or charter school or inadequate.
sponsoring district staff. sponsoring district staff.
English Language Does the charter school work to assess ELL students and monitor their progress so that they can succeed in the
4.3b Learners — charter school program?

Monitoring Progress

A well-developed plan is in
place to assess potential
ELL students and to
monitor their progress.
Students are exited from
the program only when
they meet state criteria.

A plan is in place to
assess potential ELL
students, but the process
of monitoring their
progress and exiting
students could be
improved.

The process of assessing
potential ELL students,
monitoring ELL student
progress, or exiting students
is not clearly or consistently
defined.

There is no process to identify,
serve or exit ELL students
from the charter school
program.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

43




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

4.4

Special Education
Delivery of Services

Are regulatory guidelines implemented for IDEA-eligible students so that sponsoring districts take responsibility
for providing special education to charter school students?

An exemplary partnership
with the school district
exists to ensure that
students with disabilities
receive appropriate
services. Students’
progress toward meeting
their IEP goals is
monitored. Communication
between charter school
staff and district special
education staff is frequent
and ongoing.

A collaborative partnership
with the school districts
ensures that students with
disabilities receive
appropriate services.
Students’ progress toward
meeting their IEP goals is
monitored.
Communication between
charter school staff and
district special education
staff occurs regularly.

There is some degree of
monitoring of special
education students’ progress
toward meeting their IEP
goals. Communication
between charter school staff
and district special education
staff is sporadic.

There is little or no
collaboration with the school
district, limited monitoring of
special education students’
progress toward meeting IEP
goals, and little or no
communication between
charter school staff and district
special education staff.

4.5

Section 504 Services

To what extent are regulatory guidelines implemented

for Section 504-eligible students?

There is evidence that the
charter school is compliant
with all parts of Section
504 as they apply to
access to schools and
school programs. The
charter school may
negotiate specific
allocation of
responsibilities to the
sponsoring school district.

There is little or no evidence
that the regulatory guidelines
are implemented for Section
504-eligible students. There is
no evidence of negotiated
allocation of responsibilities for
504-eligible students with the
sponsoring school district.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

44




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency

Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

4.6

Free/Reduced Price
Lunch

Does the school follow federal guidelines for identifying students for program eligibility and for safeguarding

student privacy?

Evidence that federal
guidelines are followed for
identifying students for
program eligibility and for
safeguarding student
privacy.

Insufficient evidence that
federal guidelines are followed
for identifying students for
program eligibility and for
safeguarding student privacy.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

45




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
5.0 STATE ACCOUNTABILITY
5.1a Non-Discriminatory Is the charter school complying with statutory guidelines for non-discriminatory practices in regard to
Practices—Access to student access to programs?
Programs
There is evidence that Procedures are in place to | Some procedures are in Procedures are not in
policy and procedures are prevent discriminatory place to prevent place to prevent
in place to prevent practices but evidence is discriminatory practices but | discriminatory practices
discriminatory practices not presented for all areas. | evidence is not presented and findings indicate that
regarding student access to and/or findings indicate that | discriminatory practices
programs. some discriminatory exist.
practices exist.
5.1b Non-Discriminatory Is the charter school complying with statutory guidelines for non-discriminatory practices in regard to staff
Practices—Staff Hiring hiring?
There is evidence that Procedures are in place to | Some procedures are in Procedures are not in
policy and procedures are prevent discriminatory place to prevent place to prevent
in place to prevent practices regarding the discriminatory practices but discriminatory practices
discriminatory practices recruitment, hiring, and evidence is not presented and findings indicate that
regarding the recruitment, promotion of staff, but and/or findings indicate that | discriminatory practices
hiring, and promotion of evidence is not presented | some discriminatory exist.
staff. for all areas. practices exist.
5.2.a Curriculum - Standards | Does the content of the curriculum meet state standards?

Evidence exists that all
curriculum areas are fully
aligned with state
standards.

Evidence exists that the
core curriculum is fully
aligned to state standards.

Evidence exists that fewer
than four curriculum areas
are fully aligned to state
standards.

There is insufficient
evidence that curriculum
is aligned to state
standards.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

46




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
5.2.b Curriculum - To what extent is the charter school conducting valid assessments of student performance consistent with
Assessment Oregon state standards?
Evidence exists that there is | Evidence exists that there | Academic improvement is No evidence exists that
a detailed plan for academic | is a plan for academic not a consistent focus and there is a plan for
improvement and the improvement and the the school meets only some | academic improvement
school meets all content school meets most of the content standards required and the school meets
standards required by ORS | content standards required | by ORS 329.045. Student few or none of the
329.045. Student by ORS 329.045. Student | assessment results are not content standards
assessment results are assessment results are reviewed on a systematic required by ORS
regularly reviewed and reviewed on a systematic basis. 329.045. Student
instruction modified. basis. assessment results are
not regularly reviewed.
5.3 Distinctive Teaching To what extent is the charter school implementing distinctive instructional practices as outlined in their
Techniques contract with the sponsoring district?
Implemented in compliance | Implemented with Modification of Significant modifications
with the Charter Agreement; | modifications implementation plan in are required to
no modifications required. process. implement as planned.
5.4 School Improvement Does the charter school develop school improvement goals and align staff development strategies to

and Staff Development
Plans

achieve them?

Evidence exists that
indicates goals of the SIP
plan are being met. The
plan has been
collaboratively developed
and submitted to the district.
Staff training is aligned with
SIP goals.

A SIP plan has been
developed and is being
implemented. Staff
training is provided that
may help teachers meet
SIP goals.

There is evidence that at least
one major component of the
plan is being implemented.
Staff training may or may not
be aligned with the SIP plan.

There is insufficient
evidence that any
components of the plan
are being implemented.
Staff training is minimal
or non-existent.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

47




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
55 Licensure of Charter Is the charter school compliant with Oregon statutes regarding teacher licensure, and registration and
School Staff charter agreements?

More than 75 % of teachers | At least 50% The school is seeking Less than 50% of

are licensed by TSPC and of the teachers are restricted or emergency teachers are licensed

100% are registered by the | licensed by TSPC and licensure for less than 5% of through TSPC. One or

state prior to employment. 100% are registered by teachers to meet the more teachers does not
the state prior to requirement of at least 50% have the appropriate
employment. being properly licensed licensure.

through TSPC.

5.6 Teacher Evaluation Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and sponsoring school district policy regarding
teacher performance evaluation, including the requirements of SB 290 if teachers are school district
employees?
Written documents support | Written documents support | All teachers are evaluated by | There are few if any
a rigorous process of performance evaluation an administrator in writing written expectations
performance evaluation that includes goal setting, based on school, department | regarding teacher
including self-assessment, classroom observation, and grade level goals. performance.
goal setting around student | and formative and Evaluation efforts are
achievement and growth, summative evaluation. incomplete or sporadic.
data collection and both
formative and summative
evaluation.

5.7 Screening and Hiring Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and school district policy regarding criminal

Practices

background checks?

There is evidence that
criminal background
checks were conducted for
all staff members and
appropriate adult
volunteers.

There is no evidence
that criminal
background checks
have been conducted
for all staff.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

48




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

5.8

Reporting of Child
Abuse, Training on
Identification/Prevention

Is the charter school and board compliant with statutory requirements for reporting child abuse or sexual
conduct, and for providing school employees, parents/guardians, and children annual training on the
prevention and identification of child abuse and sexual conduct, and on the obligations of school employees

for reporting?

There is evidence that the
charter school and the
board are compliant with
the statutory requirements
of ORS 339.370, 339.372,
339.388, and 339.400.

There is no evidence
that the charter school
and/or the board are
compliant with the
statutory requirements
of ORS 339.370,
339.372, 339.388, and
339.400.

5.9

Employee Relations

Has the charter school employed generally acceptable employee relations practices including the provision
of professional development plans?

Written documents support
customary employee
benefits including
handbook, insurance
protections, and right to
form collective bargaining
group. Staff has easy
access to management for
addressing concerns and
75% of staff engaged in
some form of professional
development provided by
the school in the past year.

Written documents support
customary employee
benefits that includes
handbook on procedures,
leave policies, insurance
protection, and right to
form a collective
bargaining group. The
majority of members took
the opportunity to engage
in professional
development provided by
the school in the past year.

Written documents are
unclear regarding what are
considered customary
employee benefits such as
insurance protection or
leave provisions. Less than
half the staff engaged in
professional development
provided by the school last
year.

Written documents do not
show customary handbook
information or typical
benefits and protections
for employees such as
insurance or leave
provisions. Less than one
quarter of the staff
engaged in professional
development provided by
the school last year.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

49




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting

6.0 FISCAL PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

6.1 | Accounting Are the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) being implemented?
Exemplary implementation Full implementation of Partial implementation of There is little, if any, evidence
of Generally Accepted Generally Accepted Generally Accepted that Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in Accounting Principles in Accounting Principles in Accounting Principles are
maintaining accounting maintaining accounting maintaining accounting used in maintaining
records and preparing an records and preparing an records and preparing an accounting records.
annual audit. There is clear annual audit. There is annual audit. There are no plans underway
evidence that any evidence that some Plans are underway to to respond to the
recommendations from the recommendations from the | respond to the recommendations in the prior
prior year's audit were prior year's audit have been | recommendations in the year's audit. The Board was
implemented and that the implemented. Discussion of | prior year's audit. The Board | not aware of the audit or the
Board was fully informed of the prior year’s audit is may not be aware of any auditor’'s recommendations, if
any recommended changes | documented in Board recommendations. any.
and received the auditor’s minutes.
management letter.

6.2 | Internal Controls Does the school have evidence of effective operational procedures and internal controls?

Assessment

The school has evidence of
written, effective operational
procedures and internal
controls. No significant
concerns were presented in
the most recent auditor’s
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on internal
controls. All
recommendations from the
prior year's audit have been
implemented.

The school has evidence of
effective operational
procedures and internal
controls. No significant
concerns have been
presented with the most
recent auditor’s
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on
internal controls. Most
recommendations from the
prior year's audit have been
implemented or are in the
process of being
implemented.

The school has evidence
that it is in the process of
developing or improving
operational procedures and
internal controls. The school
has presented significant
concerns with the most
recent auditor’s
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on internal
controls.

The school does not appear
to have operational
procedures and/or internal
controls. The school has
presented significant
concerns with the most recent
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on internal
controls.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

50




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

6.3

Financial Reporting

Has the school presented financial statements including board-approved budgets, annual audits, and interim
financial statements that comply with financial reporting requirements and their Charter?

The school has presented
quality financial statements
over the past two years,
including board approved
budgets, annual audits, and
interim financial statements
that comply with financial
reporting requirements and
their Charter. The school is
applying for OASBO
(Oregon Association of
School Business Officials)
financial recognition.

The school has presented
quality financial statements
including board approved
budgets, annual audits, and
interim financial statements
that comply with financial
reporting requirements and
their Charter.

The school has not
consistently presented
quality financial statements
including board approved
budgets, annual audits, and
interim financial statements
that comply with financial
reporting requirements and
their Charter.

The school has not presented
quality financial statements
including board approved
budgets, annual audits, and
interim financial statements
that comply with financial
reporting requirements and
their Charter.

6.4 | Responseto Fiscal | Has the school prepared contingency plans in response to fiscal instability and financial uncertainties related to
Crisis school funding as well as charter school legislation?

The school has prepared a The school does not have a
comprehensive contingency comprehensive contingency
plan in case of fiscal plan in case of fiscal
instability and financial instability and financial
uncertainties. Annual uncertainties. There are no
fundraising goals are set fundraising goals or they are
and met. not met.

6.5 | Insurance Does the school hold current insurance policies for performance bonding and for buildings and items in the

contract?

The school holds current
insurance policies for
performance bonding and
for buildings and other
insurance as specified in
the Charter contract.

The school does not hold
current insurance policies for
performance bonding and for
buildings.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

51




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting

6.6 | Site and Facilities Are all licenses, approvals, permits, and inspections current and procedures for corrective actions and emergency
plans in place?
Evidence exists that all Evidence exists that all Evidence indicates that There is little, if any, evidence
licenses, approvals, permits, | licenses, approvals, some licenses, approvals, indicating that licenses,
and inspections are current. | permits, and inspections permits, and inspections are | approvals, permits, and
Corrective actions and are current. Procedures for | current. Procedures for inspections are current.
emergency plans have been | corrective actions and corrective actions and Procedures for corrective
successfully implemented. emergency plans are in emergency plans may or actions and emergency plans

place. may not be in place. are not in place.
6.7 | Health and Safety Are health, safety, and accessibility standards being met and is documentation being kept current?

Evidence exists that health,
safety, and accessibility
standards have been
exceeded and all
documentation is current.

Evidence exists that health,
safety, and accessibility
standards have been met
and all documentation is
current.

Meets basic health, safety,
and accessibility standards
but evidence is lacking
regarding regularly
scheduled reports,
inspections, and monitoring
procedures.

Does not meet one or more
health, safety, or accessibility
standard(s).

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

52




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
7.0 GOVERNANCE
7.1.a | Open Meeting Law | Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding public meetings?
Exemplary compliance with | Evidence indicates Evidence indicates There is little if any evidence
federal and state law compliance with federal and | compliance with some but indicating compliance with
concerning public meetings. | state law concerning public | not all federal and state law | federal and state law
meetings. concerning public meetings. | concerning public meetings.
7.1.b | Public Records Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding public records?
Exemplary compliance with | Evidence indicates Evidence indicates There is little if any evidence
federal and state law compliance with federal and | compliance with some, but indicating compliance with
concerning public records. state law concerning public | not all, federal and state law | federal and state law
records. concerning public records. concerning public records.
7.1.c | Student Records Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding student records?
Exemplary compliance with | Evidence indicates Evidence indicates There is little if any evidence
federal and state law compliance with federal and | compliance with some, but indicating compliance with
concerning student records. | state law concerning not all, federal and state law | federal and state law
student records. concerning student records. | concerning student records.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

53




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

7.2

Fiduciary
Responsibilities

Is the charter school meeting its fiduciary responsibilities?

The Board did not
guarantee any
indebtedness on behalf of
the school or a third party
provider; there are no
conflicts of interests or full
disclosure with a legal
rationale for financial
transactions. The Board is
involved in the inflow and
outflow of funds and
regularly reviews financial
statements. The Board
always engages other
school and community
members in the budget
process. The annual audit
meets standards.

The Board did not
guarantee any
indebtedness on behalf of
the school or a third party
provider; there are no
conflicts of interest or full
disclosure with a legal
rationale for financial
transactions. The Board is
involved in the inflow and
outflow of funds and
reviews financial
statements. The Board
sometimes engages
parents and school staff in
the budget process. The
annual audit meets
standards.

The Board did not guarantee

any indebtedness on behalf
of the school or a third party
provider; there are no
conflicts of interest or full
disclosure with a legal
rationale for financial
transactions. The Board is
somewhat involved in the
inflow and outflow of funds
and reviews financial
statements. The Board
solely engages school
management in the budget
process. The annual audit
does not meet standards.

Any of the following: The
Board guaranteed
indebtedness on behalf of the
school or a third party
provider; there are conflicts of
interest or no disclosure
including a legal rationale for
financial transactions. The
Board is not involved in the
inflow and outflow of funds
and there is little if any review
of financial statements. The
Board has limited
involvement in the budget
process. The annual audit
does not meet standards.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

54




Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School Evaluation Report - 2014

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

7.3

Board Stability

Are the charter school leadership and Board of Directors stable and sustainable?

Business is completed at
regular business meetings;
board meetings are not
cancelled due to quorum
issues; the Board has no
vacancies or has an active
plan to fill any that exist.
The Board has not been in
an exigent state in the past
year; an orientation process
for new members has been
implemented; the Board
encourages, supports and
participates regularly in
training opportunities; the
Board is not involved in
litigation; there is no
evidence of an intent to
revoke notice.

Not more than one meeting
per year is cancelled due to
guorum issues; the Board
has no vacancies; the
Board has not been in an
exigent state in the past
year; a written orientation
process for new members
is present; the Board
encourages and supports
training opportunities as
demonstrated through
attendance or budget
commitments; the Board is
not engaged in litigation;
there is no evidence of an
intent to revoke notice.

Not more than three
meetings per year are
cancelled due to quorum
issues; the Board has no
more than one vacancy; the
Board has not been in an
exigent state in the past
year; an orientation process
for new members is present
but not written; the Board
encourages training
opportunities but has no
supporting evidence that
training has occurred or that
new Board members are
being effectively recruited;
the Board is not engaged in
litigation; there is no
evidence of an intent to
revoke notice.

More than three meetings per
year are cancelled due to
guorum issues; the Board has
more than one vacancy; the
Board has been in an exigent
state in the past year; an
orientation process for new
members is not present; the
Board does not engage in
training opportunities or
actively recruit to fill
vacancies; the Board is
engaged in litigation; the
school has received a notice
of intent to revoke.

© 2014 Portland State University, all rights reserved. This rubric may only be displayed, distributed, or reproduced in its exact, original form and shall include this copyright notice. Editing, creating
derivative works and adaptations, or selling this rubric is strictly prohibited. The use, distribution or reproduction of this rubric is intended for educational and informational use only.

Portland State

UNIVERSITY

Center for Student Success

55




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Tim Drilling
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 13 - Technology Refresh Project
EXPLANATION: The Technology Refresh project was completed over the summer,

and provides 736 new computers for staff to replace technology
that was aging, and in some cases obsolete.

Approximately 692 staff computers that were still considered
usable were “cascaded” to schools for student use to replace
obsolete student computers.

Many existing student computer labs were upgraded and several
new labs were added.

A primary goal of the Technology Refresh project was to ensure
adequate lab capacity and quality computers across the district for
implementation of the Smarter Balanced Assessments in 2014-15.

PRESENTERS: Tim Drilling and Bill DeWitz

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

TD:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu

Linda Okazaki

DATE: October 2, 2014

RE: No. 14 — Deep

EXPLANATION:

PRESENTERS:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:
REQUESTED ACTION:

JKH:pkh:lc

Creek-Damascus K-8

We are pleased to confirm that the students living in Damascus
who are in grades Kindergarten through 8- started school this year
in one building. The move from Deep Creek to Damascus
involved numerous moving vans and outstanding staff support.
Deep Creek teachers packed up their classrooms in mid-June and
set up their new classrooms in the third week of August.

A minimal amount of carpet, paint and face lifting took place over
the summer to welcome previous staff, new staff, students and
parents to their new K-8 building. Principal Lori Walter has
worked tirelessly to create the supportive environment necessary
for this successful consolidation.

Celebrations were held in June and in late August to say goodbye
to Deep Creek and hello to Deep Creek-Damascus K-8 School.
Principal Walter will be at the board meetig to share photos and
information of some of the moving and start-up activities enjoyed
by students, staff and parents.

This transition to a K-8 school was necessary due to declining
enrollment in Damascus. We are confident that this consolidation
to one location will be successful and provide additional
opportunities for all students.

James Hiu, Linda Okazaki, and Lori Walter

None
This report is being provided as information only.

No action is requested.



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter
Teresa Ketelsen
Tim Drilling

DATE: October 2, 2014

RE: No. 15 — Common Core State Standards and Smarter Balanced Assessment
Consortium

EXPLANATION: The State Board of Education adopted the Common Core State

Standards for English/Language Arts and Math in October 2010.
These standards reflect the expectations of college and career
readiness by the end of high school. The State Board of Education
adopted the Smarter Balanced Assessments in May 2013. The
Smarter Balanced Assessments are aligned to, and measure
mastery of, the Common Core State Standards.

The district has worked for three years to transition to the
Common Core State Standards, which are now fully in place.
Over the last year, the district has been working to understand
what the Smarter Balanced Assessments will require of students
and staff, and prepare both groups to meet the challenge.

District administration will present a brief overview of efforts to
successfully implement the Common Core State Standards and
transition to the Smarter Balanced Assessment.

PRESENTERS: Teresa Ketelsen, Tim Drilling

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

TD:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Mike Schofield
DATE: October 2, 2014
RE: No. 16 — Date, Time and Place of 2014-15 Board Meetings — Amendment
EXPLANATION: As discussed at the board planning session in August, and at last

week’s work session, the administration proposes revisions to the
board and budget meeting calendar to allow more time to provide
better revenue estimates for the proposed budget.

The following summarizes the proposed changes:

April 23,2015 Legislative & Budget Update (originally

proposed budget)

April 30, 2015 ____Eliminated from the calendar

May 14, 2015 Proposed Budget (originally a budget committee

meeting if necessary)
May 28, 2015 Added Budget Committee Meeting, if necessary
(originally a Board Work Session)

These changed are reflected in red on the attached schedule.

PRESENTER: Mike Schofield

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: 2014-15 Board Meeting Schedule - Revised

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the 2014-15 Board
and Budget Committee Meeting Schedule as revised.

REQUESTED ACTION: Move to approve the 2014-15 Board Meeting Schedule as
amended.

MS:mkh:lc



2014-15 Board Meeting Schedule — Proposed Revisions 10/02/14
Note: These Meetings are Typically on Thursday Evenings (Exceptions are Noted)

Business Work Planning DAC Budget
Meeting Session Retreat Meeting Meetings

July 10, 2014 7 p.m.
August 14-15, 2014 TBD
September 4, 2014 7 p.m.
September 11, 2014 7 p.m.
September 18, 2014 6 p.m.
September 25, 2014 6 p.m.
October 2, 2014 7 p.m.
October 9, 2014 7 p.m.
October 16, 2014 6 p.m.
October 30, 2014 6 p.m.
November 6, 2014 7 p.m.
November 13, 2014 7 p.m.
November 20, 2014 6 p.m.
December 4, 2014 7 p.m.
December 11, 2014 6 p.m.

Date

January 8, 2015 7 p.m.
January 15, 2015 7 p.m.
January 22, 2015 6 p.m.
February 5, 2015 7 p.m.
February 12, 2015 7 p.m.
February 20, 2015 (Fri.) TBD
March 5, 2015 7 p.m.
March 12, 2015 7 p.m.

March 19, 2015 7% Budget 101 7 p-m.
April 2, 2015 7-p.m.
April 9, 2015 7 p.m.
April 23, 2015 2 Budget 101 7 p.m.

April-30:-2015  Delete
May 7, 2015 7 p.m.

May 14, 2015 Budget Mtg. No. 1 7 p.m.
May 21/ 2015 6:30 p.m. - BBQ
May 28, 2015  Budget Mtg. No. 2 7 p.m.
June 11, 2015 7 p.m. Bucet homring
July 9, 2015 7 p.m.

Aug. 13-14, 2015 (Thurs./Fri.) TBD
Board:lc  First Reading 06/12/14, Second Reading/Adoption 07/10/14

Note: Thursday evenings not scheduled above will be reserved for the addition of special work sessions and/or business meetings as needed.
If additional meetings are scheduled, advanced notices and agendas will be posted accordingly.

c: Board, Cabinet, Cabinet Secretaries, Receptionist, City of Gresham (Attn. Rachelle Perry), Oregonian, Outlook, Catering, Web, MESD,
Gina Sanstrum, Peggy Ducey, Metro Cable TV, Willamette Falls TV, Association Representatives, CAL



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter
Teresa Ketelsen
Tim Drilling

DATE: October 2, 2014

RE: No. 17 - Achievement Compact Advisory Committee Membership and
Recommendations

EXPLANATION: The Achievement Compact Advisory Committee (ACAC) is

responsible for recommending goals and targets for the
Achievement Compact for the 2014-15 school year in a report to
the board. The board is responsible for considering the
recommendations and report when it enters into the achievement
compact, and for filing the committee’s report with the
Achievement Compact it accepts to the Oregon Education
Investment Board (OEIB) by October 15, 2014.

The district board of directors has the responsibility to appoint the
members of the ACAC, which include teachers, administrators
and other educational personnel employed by the district. Last
year’s membership was approved by the Board in November of
2013. Since that time, there have been two changes: Jennifer
Paulsen and Bruce Schmidt have resigned, and the administration
is recommending Lori Walter and Carlynn Capps as their
replacements.

The proposed committee membership for 2014-15 is as follows:

2014-15 Achievement Compact
Advisory Committee

GBEA | Michelle Fulsher Gordon Russell MS

GBEA | Michelle Mercer East Gresham ES

GBEA | Maranda Turner DO (Inst. Coach)

OSEA | Renni Ferguson Sam Barlow HS

OSEA | Molly Stewart Clear Creek MS

OSEA | Megan Sternberg | Sam Barlow HS

AGSA | Tim Collins Gresham HS

AGSA | Lori Walter Deep Creek-Damascus K-8

AGSA | Carlynn Capps West Gresham ES

Jim Schlachter District Office




Board of Directors

Re: No. 17 — Achievement Compact Advisory Committee Membership and Recommendations

October 2, 2014
Page 2

PRESENTERS:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

TD:lc

The advisory committee met on September 11, 2014, to review
current data, and discuss and finalize it recommendations to the
board. (Refer to the minutes presented under Committee Meeting
Minutes and Reports included in this agenda packet.)

The final committee report will be distributed at the board
meeting on October 2, 2014.

Teresa Ketelsen, Tim Drilling

Advisory Committee Report and Recommendations; Achievement
Compact document (to be provided at the board meeting)

The administration has two recommendations for board
consideration: 1) Approve membership changes to the committee
for the 2014-15 school year; and, 2) Approve the Achievement
Compact, including achievement targets.

1. Move to approve the 2014-15 Achievement Compact Advisory
Committee membership as proposed.

2. Move to accept the 2014-15 Achievement Compact as
presented.



	00 00 Cover
	02 00 Financial Summary
	02 01 Financial Summary
	03 00 Personnel Changes
	04 00 Out-of-State Travel
	05 00 Policy Updates Section G Personnel
	05 01 Policy Updates Section G Personnel
	Policy Section G Cover Sheet
	Policy Section G 10:2:14
	GAA D1
	GAB D1
	GB D1
	GBA D1
	GBC D1
	GBCA D1
	GBCBA D1
	GBD D1
	GBDA D1
	GBE D1
	GBEB D1
	GBEC D1
	GBEDA D1
	GBG D1
	GBH_JECAC D2
	GBI D1
	GBJ D1
	GBK_JFCG_KGC D1
	GBL D1
	GBLA D1
	GBM D1
	GBN_JBA D1
	GBNA D1
	GBNAA_JFCFA D1
	GBPA D1
	GCA D1
	GCAB D1
	GCBC_GDBC D1
	GCBDA_GDBDA D1
	GCBDB_GDBDB D1
	GCBDC_GDBDC D1
	GCDA_GDDA D1
	GCEC D1
	GCL_GDL D1
	GCN_GDN G1
	GCPB_GDPB D1
	GCPC_GDPC D1
	GCQA_GDQA D1
	GCQB D1
	GCQBA D1
	GDA D1
	GDC D1
	GDIA D1


	06 00 Physical Restraint and Seclusion Report 2013-14
	06 01 Physical Restraint and Seclusion Report 2013-14
	07 00 Yes Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update
	08 00 DAC Report
	08 01 DAC Report
	09 00 Achievement Compact Advisory Committee Minutes
	09 01 Achievement Compact Advisory Committee Minutes
	10 00 Nutrition Services Annual Report
	10-02-14 Board Agenda copy
	11 00 Enrollment and Class Size Report
	11 01 Enrollment and Class Size Report
	Summary
	ES-MS
	HS

	12 00 Lewis & Clark Montessori Public Charter School
	12 01 Lewis and Clark Montessori Report to the Board
	Table of Contents

	Introduction

	1.0 
Mission-Specific  Goals/Admissions & Enrollment
	2.0 
Overall Student Success
	3.0 Longitudinal Analysis of Student Achievement
	4.0 Federal Accountability: Student Performance & Programs
	5.0 State Accountability
	6.0 Fiscal Performance & Accountability 
	7.0 Governance
	Conclusion/Recommendations

	Summary of Findings

	Evaluator Biography

	Evaluation Rubric

	13 00 Technology Refresh
	14 00 Deep Creek-Damascus K-8
	15 00 Common Core and Smarter Balanced
	16 00 Date Time and Place of 2014-15 Board Meetings
	16 01 Date Time and Place of 2014-15 Board Meetings



